Notice of Licensing Sub-Committee BCP

Council

Date: Wednesday, 27 April 2022 at 10.00 am

Venue: Virtual Teams

Membership:
Clir 3 J Butt Clir D Farr Clir T Johnson

Reserves:

Clir A Hadley (R1)
Clir S Anderson (R2)

All Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are summoned to attend this meeting to
consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=289&MId=4749&Ver=4

if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Michelle Cutler michelle.cutler@bcpcouncil.gov.uk or Democratic Services on
01202 096660 or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Available online and
on the Modern.gov
app

19 April 2022

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=289&MId=4749&Ver=4

Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct

Councillors should act solely

Declaring interests at meetings ?n terms of the public
Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in interest
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution.
Bgfore the meeting, rgad the agenda aqd reports to see if the matters to be Councillors must avoid
discussed at the meeting concern your interests placing themselves under

any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Openness

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPls)
(set out in Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
| have a DPI and cannot take part without finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
a dispensation Registerable Interests (ORIs)
(set out in Table 2)?

| have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgement s clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but | have no interest to disclose
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your

participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the Councillors should act with
item.

honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves
in situations where their
honesty and integrity may

At the time of making the decision, be questioned

did the decision maker have a closed Leadership
mind?

Councillors should exhibit

Bias Test Predetermination Test

In all the circumstances, would it
lead a fair minded and informed
observer to conclude that there was
a real possibility or a real danger that

the decision maker was biased?

. 4 these principles in their own
behaviour. They should
If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision, actively promote and
they must NOT participate in the meeting. robustly support the
" " " 7 - principles and be willing to
For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer challenge poor behaviour

(susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk) wherever it occurs


mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

1. Election of Chair

To elect a Chair of this meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee.

2. Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence from Members.

3. Declarations of Interests

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

4, Protocol for Public Speaking at Virtual Meetings 5-8

A revised protocol for public speaking at formal virtual meetings of the
Licensing Sub Committee when itis considering Licensing Act 2003
business is included with the agenda sheet for this meeting.

5. High Tide Festival, Bournemouth Beach 9-76

An application has been received for a time limited premises licence to
permit regulated entertainment and the supply of alcohol for a 2 day music
festival on the beach on 1stand 2" July 2022.

This matter is brought before the Sub-Committee for determination.

0. Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk 77 - 164

An application has been received for a new Premises Licence for the
premises known as ‘Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk’ to enable
customers to consume food and drink on a decking structure proposed on
the beach or elsewhere.

This matter is brought before the Sub-Committee for determination.

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.



This page is intentionally left blank



ggen!a Item !

Schedule 7

LICENSING COMMITTEE AND SUB COMMITTEE -
PROTOCOL FOR PUBLIC REPRESENTATION AT VIRTUAL
MEETINGS

1. Introduction

1.1. The existing protocol for public speaking has been adapted to apply in respect
of virtual hearings under the Licensing Act 2003, the Gambling Act 2005, and
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as
amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009).

1.2. This includes applications relating to the licensing of alcohol, regulated
entertainment, late night refreshment, gambling, and sex establishments,
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles, which are the responsibility of the
Licensing Committee/Sub Committee to determine as set out in Part 3(A)-3 of
the Council’s Constitution.

1. The Chair welcomes everyone, matters of general housekeeping are
dealt with, notification that the hearing may be recorded for live and
subsequent broadcast on the Council’s website, reminder to switch
mobile phones to silent, principles for managing formal skype meetings.

2. The Chair identifies all parties present and makes introductions.

3. Matters of general housekeeping are dealt with, notification that the
hearing may be recorded for live and subsequent broadcast on the
Council’s website, reminder to switch mobile phones to silent.

4.  All persons who have given notice of their intention to speak are
identified.

5. Identify if any person who wishes to withdraw a representation or wishes
not to speak

6. Chair explains proposed procedure and order of speaking for hearing as
set out in Appendix A. All parties confirm agreement or make
representations on procedure proposed.

7.  Licensing Officer’s report is presented.
8. Parties present their representations in the order agreed.

9. Parties who are speaking should not repeat the information which they
have already given in writing in their representation. They will be able to
expand on the written information given, provided the information
remains relevant. Any addition information should be limited to the
grounds of their representation(s). For example, if they are objecting on
the grounds of Public Nuisance, then they should confine their
comments to matters relating to Public Nuisance.

—



10. Members of the Licensing Committee or Sub Committee may ask
questions after each representation and at the end of all representations.
Parties, will be allowed to ask questions through the Chair.

11. Following representations, the parties will be given the opportunity to
sum up. Party who spoke first to go last. The hearing will then conclude.

12. Members will deliberate in private with the clerk and legal representative
as appropriate present.

13. The decision will be taken by the Committee and notification of the
decision will be given within the period of five working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held in accordance
with the regulations. The notification of decision will include information
about the right of appeal as appropriate.

14. The Legal Advisor will advise the parties of any right of appeal as
appropriate at the conclusion of the hearing.

2. General points

e The hearing may be adjourned at any time at the discretion of the
Members

e Members may amend the procedure at any time if they consider it to be in
the public interest or in the interest of a fair hearing

e The Sub Committee may decide to conduct all or part of a hearing in non
public session where it considers the public interest in doing so, outweighs
the public interest in the hearing.

e The Chair may exclude any person from a hearing for being disruptive.

e Meetings of the Licensing Committee in public session are recorded by
the Council for live and subsequent broadcast on its website.

e The hearing will take the form of a discussion.

e Only persons (or their representatives) who have made an application, are
subject to an application or have submitted a written representation to the
Licensing Authority under the relevant Act are permitted to speak at the hearing.

¢ Any further information to support an application or a representation must
be submitted at least 5 working days prior to the Hearing. Any submissions
submitted less than 24 hours before the hearing must be agreed by all
parties at the Hearing, before it can be considered

e If a party has informed the Authority that they do not intend to participate,
or be represented at the hearing, or has failed to advise whether they
intend to participate or not, the hearing may proceed in their absence

2.2. For other matters in Part 3(A)-3 of the Council’'s Constitution which are the
responsibility of the Licensing Committee, the procedures set out in Part 4D of

N



the Council’s Constitution in relation to public questions, statements and
petitions shall apply.

2.3. This includes such matters as making recommendations on relevant policies,
approving the level of fees charged by the Council, and making decisions on
tariffs charged by the Public Carriage Trade.

2.4. The Council's Constitution can be accessed using the following link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteelD=151&
Info=1&bcr=1

2.5. For further information please contact democraticservices@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

~N w


https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
mailto:democraticservices@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Appendix A
Proposed procedure and order of speaking for virtual hearings

e The Licensing Officer/Other Council Officer presents report
e Applicant will make their Application

e Questions of the Applicant by all parties, Members of the Committee/Sub-
Committee to go first

o Responsible Authorities and Other Persons will make their representations.

e Questions of the Responsible Authorities and Other Persons. Members of the
Committee/Sub-Committee to go first.

e All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke last
to go first). The hearing will then conclude.

e Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present.
(Councillors new to Licensing may observe but will not take part in the decision
making).

¢ Notification of the Sub Committee’s decision will be given within the period of five
working days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was
held in accordance with the regulations. The notification of decision will include
information about the right of appeal as appropriate.

e The Legal Adviser will advise parties of any right of appeal as appropriate at the
conclusion of the hearing.



Agenda ltem 5

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject

High Tide Festival, Bournemouth Beach

Meeting date

27 April 2022

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

Lacey’s Salicitors have made an application on behalf of High Tide
Festival Company Ltd for a time limited premises licence, to permit
regulated entertainment and the supply of alcohol, for a 2-day
music festival on the beach on 15t and 2" July 2022.

The provision of film, live music, recorded music, performance of
dance and on sales of alcohol is requested between the hours of
15:00 and 23:00 each day.

The Licensing Authority has received 3 representations on the
grounds that to grant the application it would undermine the
licensing objectives.

Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that:

Members are asked to decide whether to:-

a) Grant the application for a premises licence as made;

b) Refuse the application for a premises licence;

¢) Grant the premises licence subject to additional conditions.

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to make a
decision at the end of the hearing after all relevant parties have
been given the opportunity to speak. Members must give full
reasons for their decision.

Reason for
recommendations

The Licensing Authority may only consider aspects relevant to the
application that have been raised in the representation.

Where representations have been received from a responsible
authority or any other person, and the concerns have not been
resolved through mediation between all parties, the Scheme of
Delegation set out in the Council’s Constitution states that these
applications should be dealt with by the Licensing Sub-Committee.




Portfolio Holder(s):

Councillor Bobbie Dove — Community Safety & Regulatory Services

Corporate Director

Jess Gibbons — Chief of Operations

Report Authors

Sarah Rogers — Senior Licensing Officer

Wards East Cliff & Springbourne

Classification For Decision

Background

1.

An application for a premises licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003
was made on 28 February 2022. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix
1.

The proposed event has been before BCP Council’'s Safety Advisory Group (SAG)
several times since the beginning of the year however, the event organisers have

consistently failed to provide the necessary assurances to the SAG members that
the event will be delivered safely.

Concerns have been raised over the lack of detail specific to this event contained in
the paperwork provided which has therefore resulted in both Dorset Police and the
Fire Service, together with BCP Council’s Head of Destination & Events, expressing
those concerns by way of representations to the licence application.

An Event Management Plan has been produced which is attached at Appendix 3.
There are a number of appendices to this document which are available should
Members which to see further detail however the main points are dealt with within
this document.

Consultation

The application was served on all responsible authorities and the applicant
confirmed the statutory notices were displayed on site and published in the local

Dorset Police and Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service have made
representations against the application as responsible authorities on the grounds of
not upholding the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety licensing

Mr Jon Weaver, Head of Destination & Events at BCP Council, has made a
representation due to concerns over the operation of the event and the risk of it
undermining the licensing objectives.

5.

newspaper.
6.

objectives.
7.
8.

Copies of the representations received are attached at Appendix 2.

Options Appraisal

0.

Before making a decision, Members are asked to consider the following matters:

e The submissions made by or made on behalf of the applicant.

10




o The representation made by or on behalf of Dorset Police and other persons.

e The relevant licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder,
prevention of public nuisance, public safety and the protection of children from
harm.

e The Licensing Act 2003, appropriate Regulations, Statutory Revised Guidance
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 — April 2018 and the
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

Summary of financial implications
10. N/A

Summary of legal implications

11. if Members decide to refuse the application, or attach conditions to the licence which
the applicant does not agree to, the applicant may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court
within a period of 21 days beginning with the day that the applicant is notified, in
writing, of the decision.

Summary of human resources implications
12. N/A

Summary of sustainability impact
13. N/A

Summary of public health implications
14. N/A

Summary of equality implications
15. N/A

Summary of risk assessment
16. N/A

Background papers

BCP Council — Statement of Licensing Policy —

https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licencesandpermits/Documents/Licensing/solp2
020.pdf

Hearing Regulations —

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 —

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm ent
data/file/705588/Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003 April 2018 .pdf

11


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licencesandpermits/Documents/Licensing/solp2020.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licencesandpermits/Documents/Licensing/solp2020.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act%20_%202003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act%20_%202003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act%20_%202003__April_2018_.pdf

Appendices
1 — Copy Application

2 — Copy Representations

3 — Copy Event Management Plan v.6

12



APPENDIX 1

Application for a premiseslicenceto be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheetsif necessary.

Y ou may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/WeHIGH TIDE FESTIVAL COMPANY LTD ...
(Insert name(s) of applicant)

apply for a premiseslicence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises

described in Part 1 below (the premises) and |/we are making this application to you asthe

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 —Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

A section of Bour nemouth Beach between Boscombe and Bour nemouth Piers, asmore
precisely identified on the plan annexed hereto to be used for the purposes of an event to
be known as“High Tide Festival”.

Post town | Bournemouth Postcode N/A

Telephone number at premises (if any) None

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £0

Part 2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Pleasetick asappropriate

a) anindividual or individuals * [] please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *

i asalimited company/limited liability X  please complete section (B)

partnership
ii  asapartnership (other than limited [] please complete section (B)
liability)

iii  asan unincorporated association or [ ] please complete section (B)

iv  other (for example astatutory corporation) [ ] please complete section (B)
C) arecognised club [] please complete section (B)
d) a charity [] please complete section (B)
€) the proprietor of an educational establishment [] please complete section (B)
f) a health service body [] please complete section (B)
0) aperson who is registered under Part 2 of the [] please complete section (B)

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an

independent hospital in Wales
ga) apersonwhoisregistered under Chapter 2 of [] please complete section (B)

Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008

(within the meaning of that Part) in an

independent hospital in England
h)y  the chief officer of police of apoliceforcein [] please complete section (B)

England and Wales

13



* |f you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yesto one
box below):

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the X
premises for licensable activities; or

| am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or []
afunction discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’ s prerogative ]

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and register ed address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corpor ate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
HIGH TIDE FESTIVAL COMPANY LTD

Address
Registered Office:
90 Walcot Street
Bath BA15BG

Registered number (where applicable)
13876068

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Private Limited Company

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

DD MM YYYY
ophpl7lpoRf]

When do you want the premises licence to start?

If you wish the licence to be valid only for alimited period, DD MM YYYY
when do you want it to end? oORlplzlbRlP]

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

The premises to be licensed form part of Bournemouth Beach as shown on the plan attached to
this application.

The application isfor alicence to permit a2 day music festival planned for 1 and 2™ July
2022. Whilst it is hoped that this will become an annual event, the licence applied for isin
respect of 2022 only.

Daily attendance is expected to be between 6,000 and 9,000 members of the public with
approximately afurther 400 personnel including artistes, security and other staff and
contractors. Admission to the event will be by ticket only and restricted to persons over the
age of 18. Ticket saleswill be online only and not on the gate.

It is proposed that there will be two stages, food and drink vendors (including bars supplying
alcohol), medical, welfare and lavatory facilities and other infrastructure to support such an
event.

14



Thiswill be an outdoor event although some activities might technically be regarded as
“indoors’, as they will take place in marquees or on a covered stage.

The audience demographic is expected to be principally persons aged between 25 and 45 with a
mixed gender balance.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any

one time, please state the number expected to attend. | 9,999

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Pleasetick all that

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) apply

a) plays(if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films(if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

€) livemusic (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h) a!nythi ng of asimil ar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Supply of alcohal (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

MO O XMXXOOX O

In all cases complete boxesK, L and M
PLEASE NOTE THAT BOXESA, C,D,H AND J ARE BLANK AND HAVE NOT BEEN

REPRODUCED IN THE INTEREST OF SAVING PAPER AND SUSTAINABILITY
GENERALLY

15



B

Films Will the exhibition of filmstake place Indoors N

Standard days and indoor s or_outdoors or_both — please tick

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors [

Day | Start | Finish Both X

Mon Please give further details her e (please read guidance note 4)
Some performances of live or recorded music might be

Tue accompanied by videos playing on large screens within the event

u siteand in particular, on or adjacent to stages.

Wed State any seasonal variationsfor the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur None.

Fri 15:00 | 23:00 | Non standard timings. Whereyou intend to usethe premises
for_the exhibition of films at different timesto thoselisted in the

S 1500 | 23.00 column on theleft, please list (please read guidance note 6)
None.

Sun

E

Livemusic Will the perfor mance of live music take place | |ndoors ]

Standard days and indoorsor outdoorsor_both — please tick

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3) Outdoors ]

guidance note 7)

Day | Start | Finish Both X

Mon Please give further details her e (please read guidance note 4)
Thisis predominantly alive music event — please see the overall
description above.

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variationsfor the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thr None.

Fri 15:00 | 23:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the performance of live music at different timesto those

S 15.:00 | 23.00 listed in the column on the left, pleaselist (please read guidance
note 6)

Sun None.

16




F

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place Indoors N

Standard days and indoor s or_outdoors or_both — please tick

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors [

Day | Start | Finish Both X

Mon Please give further details her e (please read guidance note 4)

Tue Thisis predominantly alive music event — please see the overal

u description above.

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur None,

Fri 15:00 | 23:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the playing of recorded music at different timesto those

S 15:00 | 23.00 listed in the column on the left, pleaselist (please read guidance
note 6)

Sun None.

G

Per for mances of Will the per for mance of dance take place

dance indoors or outdoorsor both — please tick Indoors

Standard days and (please read guidance note 3)

timings (please read Outdoors ]

guidance note 7)

Day | Start | Finish Both X

Mon Please give further details her e (please read guidance note 4)
Some music performances may be accompanied by performances of

Tue d

ance.

Wed State any seasonal variationsfor the performance of dance
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur None.

Fri 15:00 | 23:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to usethe premises
for_the performance of dance at different timesto thoselisted in

S 15.:00 | 23.00 the column on theleft, pleaselist (please read guidance note 6)
None.

Sun

17




Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for Onthe <

Standard days and consumption — pleasetick (please read premises

timings (please read guidance note 8) Off the

guidance note 7) premises [

Day | Start | Finish Both []

Mon State any seasonal variationsfor the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 5)

Tue None.

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises

for the supply of alcohal at different timesto thoselisted in the
column on theleft, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri 15:00 | 22:40

None.

Sat 15:00 | 22:40

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
designated premises supervisor (Please see declar ation about the entitlement to work in the
checklist at the end of the form):

Name Daniel O Sullivan

Dateof birth I

Address

Postcode | [

Personal licence number (if known)
LN/201400777

I ssuing licensing authority (if known)
Enfield Council

K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
mattersancillary to the use of the premisesthat may give riseto concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

Admission to the event will be restricted to persons over the age of 18 and as such, there will
be nothing that might give rise to concern in respect of children. However, no adult
entertainment of any description isintended.

18



L

Hourspremisesare State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)
open to the public

Standard days and None.

timings (please read

guidance note 7) Please note that the intention is that the event will end at 23:00

Day Start Finish hours and this allows 30 minutes to clear the site of ticket holders.

Mon

Tue

Wed

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premisesto be
Thur open to the public at different times from thoselisted in the
column on theleft, pleaselist (please read guidance note 6)

Fri 15:00 | 23:30 | None

Sat 15:00 | 23:30

M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General —all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and €) (please read guidance note 10)

In these conditions:

“The Event” or “the event” means the proposed “High Tide Festival” scheduled to take place at
the licensed premises on 13t and 2" July 2022.

“The event site” means the premises that isidentified on the plan attached to the licence as
being the licensed area.

“SAG” means a Safety Advisory Group brought together by BCP Council comprising
representatives from Responsible Authorities (as defined by the Licensing Act 2003) and such
other persons or bodies that are concerned with the potential consequences of the Event taking
place.

The relevant mandatory conditions shall apply to the licence.

Admission to the event shall be restricted to persons aged 18 or over and to ticket holders.
A maximum of 9,500 tickets shall be made available for sale in respect of each day of the
event.

Attendees will not be permitted to bring alcohol or glass bottles into the event site.

The holder of the licence shall provide the SAG (if it has not already done so) details of all
artistes who are either booked or provisionally booked to perform at the Event within 14 days
of the grant of thislicence and thereafter notify any changes to the proposed line-up of artistes
within 7 days of the change.

19



The holder of the licence shall produce an Event Management Plan (“EMP”) in respect of
the event which shall be based on risk assessments.

The EM P shall include as a minimum (either as part of a single document or a series of
documents) the following:

An overall description of the event, the style(s) of music to be performed and the anticipated
demographics of attendees.

A detailed plan of the event site showing the proposed location of;

All stages and any sterile areaiin front of the stage(s);

All outlets selling alcohol;

All food outlets;

Any other trading concession (to include a brief description of the goods being sold or
supplied).

All lavatory and sanitary facilities;

First Aid points, welfare facilitiesincluding any medical provision;

All access and egress points to the Event site, including emergency escape routes;
Event Control;

Details of personswith specific responsibilities for ensuring the smooth running and safety of
the Event, their contact details and an outline of their responsibilities.

A Security and Stewarding Plan (with awritten risk assessment) detailing (inter aia):

The number of registered SIA staff and stewards to be deployed at different times during the
Event, where they are to be deployed and an outline of their duties (e.g. searching, removal of
attendees, patrolling the perimeter of the site, communication with each other and the Event
Controller);

A policy for searching people and their bags on admission to ensure that no acohol, glass
bottles, drugs, weapons, explosives and/or flares or pyrotechnic devices are brought onto the
event site;

A policy for verifying that all persons entering the event site are 18 years of age or older, the
policy to require proof of age of any person who appears to be under the age of 25 to produce
photographic proof of age being a passport, photo driving licence, PASS approved card with a
hologram or miilitary 1D;

A policy regarding the removal of persons from the site;

Measures to be taken to ensure that no person leaving the site (other than approved bar
contractors) does so with acohal;

Details of perimeter fencing, access and ingress points; and

Front of stage management.

The plan shall have due regard to any terrorist or other security threat.

A Crowd Management Plan to include measures to be taken in front of performance stages
and managing access and egress and generally to ensure the safety of attendees.

An Emergency and Contingency Plan to include:

Details of the “chain of command”;

Provisions for bad weather or heavy tides;

Protocols for dealing with any emergency situation to include:

Radio and other communications;

“Show stop” procedures;

Site evacuation (in part or in whole);

Procedures and protocols for handing control of the event to emergency services, including in
particular the police.

The plan shall have due regard and take into account any advice that may be given regarding
security and terrorism threats.

20




An Alcohol Management Policy, thisto include:

A policy for verifying that all persons attempting to purchase alcohol site are 18 years of age or
older, the policy to require proof of age of any person who appears to be under the age of 25 to
produce photographic proof of age being a passport, photo driving licence, PASS approved
card with ahologram or military ID;

Staff training regarding restricted sales and the conditions of this licence;

The maintenance of refusals registers at each bar or servery supplying alcohal;

A ban on the use of glass bottles and receptacles;

The deployment of SIA registered door staff at each outlet supplying acohol

A Drug Policy to be formulated in conjunction with the police to include:

Policies relating to the action (including the refusal of admission or removal from site) to be
taken regarding any person found to be in possession (or suspected to be in possession) of any
illicit drug (including any prohibited psychoactive substance); and

Specifying the circumstances in which any person found to be in possession of drugs might be
either reported to the police and/or detained and the procedures for the same;

Setting out the procedure for handling, storing and disposing of (including passing the sameto
the police) any substance suspected of being an illicit drug.

A Waste Management Plan to include disposal of rubbish, facilities for re-cycling and site
cleaning/clearance during and after each day of the event (including the immediate surrounding

area).

A Noise Management Plan to be prepared by an appropriately qualified noise consultant to
include:

An assessment of appropriate noise levels,

Arrangements for noise monitoring throughout the event and the recording of the same;
Response to any noise complaint (to include contact numbers for any residents to use should
any issue arising during the event); and

Action to be taken should noise monitoring establish that appropriate noise levels are being
exceeded.

A First Aid and Welfare Plan detailing:

Thefirst aid and medical provisions during the event;

Welfare facilities for persons who may be or become vulnerable through (for example)
intoxication or the misuse of illicit substances;

The provision of lavatory and sanitary facilities, including urinals and accessible facilities.

A Traffic Management Plan detailing:

How contractors and others concerned with building the event site will access and egress;,
Permitted vehicular movements within the suite during the event and restrictions on the same;
The deployment of traffic marshalls.

An Access and Egress Plan regarding pedestrians arriving at or departing from the event site,
to include:

Information about ow attendees will reach and then access and egress the event site, the
deployment of appropriate signage and information made available on-line;

Off-site stewarding of crowds.

A FireRisk Assessment asrequired by the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2003 to
include in particular:

Details of any proposed pyrotechnic display;

The number of fire wardens to be deployed on site; and

Details of fire-fighting equipment.

In addition, arisk assessment in respect of any “specia effects’ including but not limited to the
use of lasers, strabe lighting and smoke/fog effects.

21




Procedure with regard to the development and implementation of the EMP.

Save to the extent that documentation has already been provided, adraft EMP and all
supporting documents and policies shall be provided to the Licensing Authority and the SAG
no later than 14 days after the grant of the licence.

Thereafter, the holder of the licence shall ensure that it is represented and attends all duly
convened SAG meetings and shall have due regard to any advice tendered by members of the
SAG in considering amendments to the draft EMP.

A “fina” version of the EM P shall be provided to the SAG no later than 13 June 2022.

The provisions of the EM P will not then be altered, amended or changed without the specific
consent of the Licensing Authority (in consultation with the relevant responsible authority) and
its provisions shall form part of the Premises Licence and be regarded as part of the Licence's
conditions, save in the following circumstances:

Minor alterations to the detailed layout plan will be permitted, provided that the same are
necessary to accommodate last minute changes to contractors, caterers and the like or as may
be dictated by dynamic risk assessments;

Details of persons with specific responsibilities, should there be unavoidable changes as a
consequence of (for example but not limited to) illness;

Amendments to the security and stewarding plan should ticket sales and anticipated attendance
vary significantly from the assumptions made when the final version of plan was provided to
the SAG; and

Dynamic risk assessments undertaken during the event (and the build-up phaseto it) require
aterationsin order to promote the licensing objectives.

b) The prevention of crime and disor der

No alcohol shall be sold to attendees at the event in any glass bottle or container. Any alcohol
that comes to the event site in a bottle shall be decanted into a non-glass drinking vessel before
being handed to the customer.

¢) Public safety

The holder of the Licence shall (as part of the EMP or separately) produce an Electrical
Installation Plan.

All contractors (i.e. those concerned with constructing the temporary structures within the
event site) will be required to demonstrate their competence and provide evidence of
appropriate insurance, method statements, risk assessments and structural calculationsin
respect of any temporary structure erected with the event site.

Note for information purposes only —no other specific conditions are proposed beyond those in
section M(A) above.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Note for information purposes only — no specific conditions are proposed beyond those in
section M(A) above.

22



€) The protection of children from harm

Notwithstanding the condition to the effect that no person under the age of 18 shall be
permitted entry to the event site and the conditions relating to the EMP:

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 policy whereby any person who appears to be under
the age of 25 shall be required to prove that they are 18 years of age or older by the production
of a photographic proof of age being a passport, photo driving licence, PASS approved card
with a hologram or military ID.

All staff concerned with the sale or supply of alcohol shall be trained with regard to restricted
sales and the conditions of this licence before commencing their duties. A written record of the
training shall be made, signed by both the person being trained and the trainee and the records
shall be retained for 6 months post the event and made available for inspection by responsible
officers on request.

Checklist:
Pleasetick to indicate agreement

e | have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
® | have enclosed the plan of the premises.

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.

® | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to be
designated premises supervisor, if applicable.

® | understand that | must now advertise my application.

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.

® [Applicableto all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not
alimited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnershipg] |
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United
Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work ]
checking service (please read note 15).

X XX X XK

IT ISAN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT INOR IN CONNECTION WITH THISAPPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT ISAN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE ORWHO ISSUBJECT TO CONDITIONSASTO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLETO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 150F THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT,WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE ISDISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please statein what capacity.

23



« [Applicableto individual applicants only, including thosein a
partnership which is not alimited liability partnership] | understand |
am not entitled to be issued with alicenceif | do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if | am subject to a
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on
of alicensable activity) and that my licence will becomeinvalid if |
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance
note 15).

e The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing
work relating to alicensable activity) and | have seen a copy of hisor
her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to
work check using the Home Office online right to work checking
service which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)

Declaration

Signature Philip J Day for Laceys Solicitors LLP

Date 28 February 2022

Capacity Solicitors for the Applicant

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Philip Day

Laceys Solicitors LLP

9 Poole Road

Post town |Bournemouth Postcode |BH25QR

Telephone number (if any) | 01202 377867

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)
p.day @laceyssolicitors.co.uk

Notes for Guidance

The Notesdo not form part of the application form and have not been reproduced in the
interest of sustainability.

24



Ordnan,
Ukmap,

s1200

S0

Ce m:z\mw
centre.com,

10409

410509

410809

g

91200

East Cliff

Coastal Slopes

o RUBLIERIGHT ORACEESS _/ct 0000000
FUBLG RIGAT OFAGOESS o - B
HIGH TIDE STERILE ROUTE o — a1 N X e — PUBL(C RIGHT OF ACCESS: y
Rm H }IGH TIDE STERILE ROUTE MR
— Sopng masoy = ]
91000 Sang
Sand T
Groyne 2
° \\\I\\//
Groyne. —
Sang
\ Mean High Water
- — Q“ E— —
royne —_—
Groyne
Sang L
H
H
T I S| <
T T T 1
H
Revisions Project Status Drawn Checked
- HIGH TIDE - BOURNEMOUTH FB
: 2 _THIS __
- o Tl = — (=] m I—I Drawing Title Scale Date
= m < mZ 1:1750 @ A3 15.02.22
ALL STYLE. ALL SUBSTANCE. ﬁO. LICENSING PLAN _
Drwg. No. Revision
The Echo Building, www.hightidefestival.co.uk HT002 B
18 Albert Road, www.thisevent.co
Bournemouth www.thatgroup.co.uk
BH11BZ Copyright THAT Group. Do not scale from this drawing. Issued for purposes indicated only. All dimensions to be checked on site.




This page is intentionally left blank

26



APPENDIX 2
Good Morning Sarah,

| write further to receipt of the Application for a Premises Licence, submitted by Mr Day of Laceys
Solicitors, on behalf of the operators of High Tide Festival, Bournemouth, proposed to take place on
the 1%t and 2" July 2022.

On behalf of the Chief Officer of Dorset Police, | wish to object to the grant of the Premises Licence
on the grounds that to grant the licence will risk undermining the licensing objectives to Prevent
Crime and Disorder and ensure Public Safety.

Dorset Police have given due consideration to the application and its contents and at this time are
not satisfied that the licence is fit for purpose in promoting the licensing objectives detailed

above. Most significantly, the application relies heavily upon the contents of an Event Management
Plan and a variety of other documents which have yet to be completed and produced by the
applicant to the Responsible Authorities.

This application is being made in respect of one event, held over 2 days, and it is our expectation
that the conditions detailed within the licence application would appropriately reflect the operating
schedule of the event. Dorset Police are concerned that the intention of the applicant to rely upon
policies and documentation which exist alongside the licence application will restrict, and in some
cases prevent Dorset Police, and indeed our partners, from enforcing the measures expected for a
safe event to take place using the powers and procedures available under the Licensing Act 2003.

Throughout the past 5 months, Dorset Police and our partners have been engaging with the
operators of High Tide Festival and other key agencies and partners through the Safety Advisory
Group process and concerns have been raised by Dorset Police and our partners in relation to the
management and delivery of this event. This is reflected in the poor standards of documentation
received to date and confusion as to which parties will be responsible for the safe and compliant
delivery of the event. At the time of submitting this objection, Dorset Police remain concerned that
there is a distinct lack of management and control during the planning phase of this event which will
likely result in significant shortfalls and increased risk to public safety and increased demand on
public services during the operational delivery of the proposed event. Itis the intention of Dorset
Police to comprehensively detail these concerns in the forthcoming Sub-Committee hearing.

Dorset Police remain in constant dialogue with partners and those associated with the delivery of
this proposed event. Whilst we endeavour to continue to mediate and support the applicant to
deliver a safe event where we can be confident and reassured that the applicant is capable and
willing to make significant improvements to their overall management and planning of the event, at
this time Dorset Police currently have no confidence that the applicants will deliver a safe and
compliant event and consequently request that the Licensing Sub-Committee give consideration to
refusing this application.

Dorset Police reserve the right to introduce further causes for concern and evidence as they become
known to us between the date of this objection and the date of the hearing. We will consistently
endeavour to provide supporting documentation/evidence to the applicant and all parties as soon as
possible and certainly in advance of the Sub-Committee hearing.

27



If the Sub-Committee have any queries or concerns in advance of the hearing, they are welcome to
direct these to me via the Licensing Authority and | will endeavour to answer them as soon as
possible.

Regards,

Gareth

._ DORSET Gareth Gosling 2551
.. POLICE Police Sergeant

Drug & Alcohol Harm Reduction Team
Bournemouth Divisional Headquarters, 5 Madeira Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH1 1QQ

28



DORSET & WILTSHIRE Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service
FIRE AND RESCUE Five Rivers Community Health & Wellbeing Centre,

Hulse Road, Salisbury, Wiltshire SP1 3NR

Laceys Solicitors LLP Direct Line: (01722) 691717
9 Poole Road . .
Bournemouth Email:andy.downton@dwfire.org.uk

BH2 50QR Your ref: High Tide Festival
My ref: L0002859/117990
Date: 03 March 2022

FAO: Philip Day

Dear Philip

Licensing Act 2003 — Application for New Premises Licence

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

Address of Premises: High Tide Festival, Pier Approach, Bournemouth, BH2 5AA

| refer to your application dated 1st March 2022 for a New Premises Licence for the above
premises.

Based on the information received, | wish to inform you of the following.

| am unable to comment, as the information contained within the application is not enough
to enable it to be processed. Following the recent attendance by the event organisers to a
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole SAG it was evident that the Event Management plan

(EMP) and subsequent risk assessments required substantial improvement and further
details in order for public safety to be assessed.

The Requlatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

Articles 9 & 11 of The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 require that a suitable
and sufficient fire risk assessment is completed, and the significant findings are recorded.

e Further guidance can be found in the “Fire Safety — Risk Assessment” publication for
this premises type, available as a free download from www.gov.uk (fire safety law
and guidance documents for business).

Chief Fire Officer Ben Ansell
PASSIONATE ABOUT
Il CiANGING & SAVING LIVES page 1 of 2

29



| take this opportunity to remind you that fire safety is a dynamic process to be considered
on a daily basis, and the assessment of fire risk should be constantly under review and
updated as required, especially where the risk in the premises has been affected by
alterations, changes in procedures, use or occupancy.

Additional Support and Information

If you require further information about your responsibilities on how to comply with the law or
access additional help or guidance, please visit our website; dwfire.org.uk.

Yours Sincerley

Andy Downton
Fire Safety Team Leader

Page 2 of 2

30


https://www.dwfire.org.uk/

Hello Sarah

| am responding to the Application for a Premises Licence, submitted by Mr Day of Lacey’s Solicitors,
on behalf of the operators of High Tide Festival, Bournemouth, proposed to take place on the 1** and
2" July 2022.

On behalf BCP Council’s Director of Destination and Culture, | object to the grant of the Premises
Licence on the grounds that granting the licence will risk undermining the licensing objectives.

The application relies heavily upon the contents of an Event Management Plan and a variety of other
documents which are yet to be received from the applicant.

As this application is for one event the conditions within the licence application should reflect the
operating schedule of the event. There should be no reliance of the applicant on any policies and
documentation that may sit alongside the licence application which could prevent colleagues in BCP
Council and responsible authorities from enforcing the measures to ensure the event is run safely.

BCP Council has been liaising with the organisers over the past 8 months, and with other Safety
Advisory group members for the last 6 months, and concerns have been raised in relation to the
management and delivery of the event.

The documentation so far received has provided little detail on how the organiser plans to deliver
the event or the key management responsibilities for delivering the event and therefore there is an
increased risk to public safety which would be unacceptable.

We expect the applicant to make significant improvements in the overall management and planning
of the event but at this time of making our objection there is little confidence that the event can be
delivered safely and therefore we must ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to consider refusing the
application. In the meantime we will continue dialogue with the organiser between now and the
date of the hearing.

If the Sub-Committee have any queries or concerns in advance of the hearing they are welcome to
direct these to me via the Licensing Authority and | will endeavour to answer them as soon as
possible.

Regards

Jon Weaver

Head of Destination & Events
Destination & Culture
jon.weaver@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
bcpcouncil.gov.uk

My normal working days are Tuesday to Thursday

Sign up to BCP Council’'s email news service

@ hands S face te>t space

31


mailto:jon.weaver@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
http://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/
https://bournemouth.us19.list-manage.com/subscribe?u=a8a5b42a486fe4c6b83f98b58&id=7aff1ef782

This page is intentionally left blank

32



HIGH TIDE

BOURNEMOUTH BEACH

EVENT MANAGEMENT PLAN

Event Name

High Tide Festival

Event Location

Bournemouth Beach

Event Date

1 - 2nd July 2022

Organisation

Sundogs Production Company
High Tide Festival

Version

V.6

Document last updated

28.03.2022

33




Table of Contents

1: Introduction
Purpose of this Document
Definitions

2: Event Management
Event overview
Key event management contacts
Core staffing
Licence and applications
Timetable

3: Site Logistics
Overview
Infrastructure
Alcohol and Bars
Food Traders
Toilets
Backstage areas
Water supply and drinking water
Signage
Barriers and Fencing
Accessibility

4: Health and Safety
Introduction
Risk assessments and management
Insurance
Risk assessments - contractors
RIDDOR
Acceptable behaviour
Electricity
Site lighting
Strobe lights
Ultraviolet light
Smoke and fog effects
Security Operations Onsite
Security Provisions
Stewards
Traffic Management
Prevention of crime and disorder
Cash Handling Onsite
Drugs Policy
Fire Safety
Medical services
Welfare

N N oo ga i QU NG N

O O O

10
11
11
12
12
13
13
14

15
15
15
15
15
16
16
16
17
17
18
18
18
18
19
20
20
20
20
21
22
23



Safeguarding

Onsite Vehicles

Site entry and exit for vehicles
On-site traffic management

5: Crowd Management

Introduction
Festival Site Access
Site Capacity Calculations
Ingress & Ticket Holder Management
Flow Rates
Movement onsite
Egress
Other considerations for crowd management
DIM-ICE Model for Crowd Management
Fenced Festival Site
The promenade outside the fenced site
Levels of Evacuation

6: Event Communications

Local communication considerations
Radios

Event Control

Emergency Announcements

Press

7: Environmental & Local Considerations:

Local Flora and Fauna
Waste management
Recycling
Noise
Weather
Heavy Rain and Flooding
High Winds
Extreme Heat
Sea Safety

8: Miscellaneous

35

23
24
24
25

26
26
27
27
28
29
29
29
30
30
30
32
34

36
36
36
36
36
36

37
37
37
37
37
38
39
39
40
40

42



Appendix

1

Alcohol Management Plan

2 Water Management Plan

3 General Event Risk Assessment
4 Contractor H&S rules

5 Security Plan (including all policies and crowd management plan)
6 Traffic Management Plan

7 Fire Risk Assessment

8 Medical Plan

9 Site Plan

10 Ticketing T&C’s

11 Noise Management Plan

12 Waste Management Plan

13 Welfare and safeguarding plan
14 Emergency Response Plan

36




1: Introduction

High Tide Festival will be held on Bournemouth Beach on the 1st and 2nd of July 2022. This is a new, two day event,
focused on providing live music and entertainment. The artistic line-up will be diverse, ranging across the genres of
pop, indie, rock, folk, dance and mainstream music. It is a ticketed event with attendance of 6,000 - 9,000 expected
per day. The festival is an over 18’s only event, with the target demographic being between the ages of 25 - 55 drawing
both local and national attendees.

The intention is to create an annual event on Bournemouth Beach, which can grow year on year; bringing an exciting
new cultural addition to the residents of Bournemouth.

Purpose of this Document

This Event Management Plan is designed to provide a comprehensive set of information for the above event, including;
public and worker safety, running order and activities at the event, and a general overview of event policies and
documentation.

The High Tide Festival management team will make every effort to ensure that all of the information contained in this
document is correct and circulated amongst the relevant parties and authorities.

Definitions

Throughout this document, there will be both reference to certain bodies and abbreviations used for ease of reading.
These are:

The Event - refers to High Tide Festival 2022

The Event Organisers / The Organisers - refers to Hightide Festival Ltd

EMP - referring to this document, the Event Management Plan

AMP - referring to the Alcohol Management Plan which has been provided by One Circle, the bar contractor

37 4



2: Event Management

Event overview

The event will take place on 1st and 2nd July 2022 on Bournemouth Beach, and comprises of two stages, temporary
structures, local shop pop-ups, bars, food stalls and welfare facilities.

Doors open at 3pm daily for ticket holders, and last entry to the site is 7pm. Music will cease promptly by 10.59pm.
Trading times for bars and food are 3pm - 10.45pm. Security will be present at all times across the site throughout the
live event, alongside build and break days to ensure only authorised personnel have access to site.

The event build will take place on the week prior to the event, commencing Thursday 23th June; the first stage of
build will be works only within a compound created around the main stage area (23rd - 26th June) with full
commencement of site build from Monday 27th. The break will occur the week following the event, and is expected to
be complete by Wednesday 6th July. Working hours during build and break will be 6am - 10pm daily.

As a licensed event; an alcohol management policy will be in operation and can be found as an appendix to this
document.

A list of the responsible persons both for each area and the overall festival can be found in the team roles section of
this event management plan.

Listed below is an overview of each area of the festival site.

Main Stage - This is a covered stage and is the focal point of the whole event. Structural calculations will be provided
by Acorn and be included in the supporting documents for this EMP. The build, health and safety and day to day running
of this stage are the responsibility of Sundogs Production Company alongside the stage manager.

Secondary Stage - This is a covered stage which faces out to sea, and contains equipment for live musical
performances and DJ’s. Structural calculations will be included in the supporting documents for this EMP. . The build,
health and safety and day to day running of this stage are the responsibility of Sundogs Production Company alongside
the stage manager.

Food Vendors - Located in the main arena there will be 8 temporary stalls and trading vehicles. Details of each stall in
this area and the structures they are trading from will be confirmed by 1st June 2022.

Key event management contacts

The event director has overall responsibility for all aspects of the event. Depending on the nature and scale of the
event, other people will have key tasks and responsibilities allocated to them but will report to the event director.

Name Role Responsibility Contact Details
Simon Smith Event Overall responsibility ]
Owners/directors

38 >



Benjamin David

Event Manager

All event infrastructure,
ordering, delivery timings
and logistics. Responsible
for the delivery of the
event and reports directly
to the event director.

Rachael Event Manager Supporting the event

Heathcote manager in the
organisation and day to day
running of the event.

Lewis Stage Production | Build, management and

Richardson Manager running of stage and all of
its associated technical
equipment.

Paul Budden Health and Risk assessments, legal

Safety Officer compliance, fire points,

site inspections etc.

Dan O'Sullivan

Bar Manager

Personal licence holder and
responsibility for the bar
and compliance with
alcohol policy.

Jason Argyle

Green Events

Trader Management

Oliver Gardiner

Security Manager
Crime Reduction
Services

Management of all security
personnel and their
operations

Core staffing

High Tide Management Team (Sundogs Production Company) - 2 managers on site at all times
High Tide Festival Crew - Six members of staff at all times
Stages - Eight team members for build and de-rig

Security - 2 members of security on site at all times during build and derig (a full security schedule for live
event days will be included in the “security” section of this EMP)

39




Event Director

ELl
| | | | |
Event Consutants Event Manager 1 Event Manager 2 H&S Officer
ELT ELT ELT ELT
Technical Production Site Manager ‘ | . |
Manager ELT Traffic MEafigement Head %fLI\Ti'Iedlcal Water Safety Fire Safety
|
Head of Security .
Technical ELT Site Crew Welfare
Crew
e Traffic Stewards Medical Team
MNoise Monitoring
i i Bars, Traders &
Sponsors
Site Security Gate Managers Stewards

Licence and applications

The following licences and permissions are being sought from BCP Council:

e Premises Licence - For a capacity of 9,999. It is expected that this capacity will not be reached and ticket sales
are expected to be in the region 6000 - 8,000, plus 400 staff, artists, and contractors.

During the application process, Sundogs Production Company will consult with local council, and inform the police
about the application.

The event owners and management team will ensure that they promote all four licensing objectives set out in the
licensing agreement through the training of staff in all areas in the arrangements outlined in the event management
plan, risk assessments and health and safety policy.

They will ensure that all are fully implemented and the draft of the event management plan will be submitted to the
SAG at the earliest convenience. It should be noted that this is a draft only and complete and detailed plans will be

submitted within the timescales set out by BCP Council.

There are a number of licensing conditions that must be adhered to. Details of how the event will adhere to these
conditions can be found in the relevant sections of this document.

Timetable

The tables below shows opening times of each stage and the act timings. These timings may change depending on
programming or other circumstances; however, will always fall within the times set out in the premises licence. For the
bar opening times please refer to the AMP which is included as an appendix to this document.

40 7



FRIDAY 1ST JULY

MAIN STAGE SECOND STAGE

ARTIST START END SET LENGTH ARTIST START END SET LENGTH

Hush Club 15:20 15:50 30 minutes Tom Mayhem [15:20 15:50 30 minutes

Ibiza Showhawk

Orchestra 16:10 16:50 40 minutes Duo 16:10 16:50 40 minutes

Sigala 17:20 18:05 45 minutes JFB 17:20 18:05 45 minutes

Tinie Tempah |18:35 19:20 45 minutes Kosheen 18:35 19:20 45 minutes

DJ Fresh 19:50 20:40 50 minutes DJ Yoda 19:50 20:40 50 minutes

Clean Bandit |21:20 22:50 90 minutes Gregg Wilson |21:20 22:50 90 minutes

SATURDAY 2ND JULY
MAIN STAGE SECOND STAGE

ARTIST START END SET LENGTH ARTIST START END SET LENGTH
Local act

Harvey 15:20 15:50 30 minutes (TBC) 15:20 15:50 30 minutes

Dodgy 16:10 16:50 40 minutes Rich Keam 16:10 16:50 40 minutes
Beans on

Subways 17:20 18:05 45 minutes Toast 17:20 18:05 45 minutes
Ben Otewel

Morcheeba |18:35 19:20 45 minutes Gomez 18:35 19:20 45 minutes
Love

Supergrass 19:50 20:40 50 minutes Collection 19:50 20:40 50 minutes

Manic Street Sarah Cox

Preachers 21:20 22:50 90 minutes 80's 21:20 22:50 90 minutes

41




3: Site Logistics
Overview

The festival site consists of one arena, which will then be split into separate areas / stages as detailed on the site plan
and in the event overview above. The design of the site takes into consideration movement of crowds, accessibility,
and the natural surroundings. There will be no structures placed on the fence line that runs parallel to the water's
edge.

The event is situated on a public access beach which will be fenced off to ensure only ticket holders and staff have
access to the site, and that ticket holders do not have access to the sea whilst at the event. There is a sterile route for
emergency vehicle movement and access which runs the length of the site.

Outside of the event site, on Undercliff Drive, there is provision for a public access route which sits between the event
site and the cliff. This route is wide enough to allow a good flow of pedestrians, and seafront or emergency vehicles
access to pass along Undercliff Drive to access all parts of the seafront and cliff without the need to enter the event
site.

A full site plan is attached as an appendix and indicates:

e The site boundaries

e Entrances and exits to the site (including those for emergency services)

e All road and track ways (including emergency routes), car parks and other vehicle compounds

e The location of all structures and facilities on site

e The location of offices and/or relevant staff areas

e The location of toilet facilities

e The location of all lighting facilities including those for the event arena, associated walkways and vehicle
routes and emergency routes

e Welfare and medical services
Generators and other principal electrical connections
Fire exits and emergency routes

Infrastructure

All stages and structures will be supplied by competent contractors who will retain responsibility for them throughout
the event. Structural drawings, calculations and insurance certificates will be provided for all stages at the festival for
review as soon as they are available.

As part of the vetting process, the event management team requires information on the safe wind loads for each
structure. Wind and gust speeds will be monitored by the Event Management Team during all phases of the event, and
active communication with the supplier of each structure will take place. In the event of high winds or strong gusts
which may cause a structure to become unsafe, the evacuation plan will take place, and the structure will be
dismantled to a safe point.

Checks on the structures will be carried out by the contractors erecting them and they will supply completion
certificates following erection. These checks will be recorded and available for review. Full safety checks will be
carried out by the event managers and other appropriate persons prior to the public being allowed on site. Checks will
continue throughout the duration of the event.

42 9



Assurances will be sought from the contractor for all works completed at height, and works will not be allowed to start
before proof of planning and correct crew training has been given.

In the event of any changes to the structure, the contractor will be called to the site and if necessary, the structure
will be removed.

Structural and fire information for all larger structures, (i.e those with an area of greater than 100m2) as well as décor
to the satisfaction of the licensing authority will be provided at least 28 days prior to the event.

Structures will be compliant with the best practice mentioned in the MUTAmarq document “safe use and operation of
temporary demountable fabric structures” and conform to guidance within “Temporary Demountable Structures:
Guidance on Procurement, Design and Use. (third edition) 2007.

Completion certificates for each structure above 100m2 can be provided, on request, to the licensing authority to
demonstrate that they have been erected in accordance with design criteria prior to the public being allowed on site.

Below is a list of structures, the name of the contractor providing those structures, their intended use and a fire
calculation (where applicable). It will be completed when relevant paperwork has been provided to the event from
Marquee Nation.

Description of |Intended Use [Size Contractor |No and size of Fire Calculations [Safe wind load
Structure Exits
Main Stage Musical acts Acorn 2 X 4m exits
Open Fronted
Second Stage  |Musical acts Acorn 2 X 2.4m exits
Open fronted
Bar 1 Beverage service [40m x 6m |Marquee
Nation
Bar 2 Beverage service |30m x 6m [Marquee
Nation
Bar 3 Beverage service |25m x 6m |Marquee
Nation
Bar 4 (cocktail [Beverage Service One Circle
bar)
VIP Marquee VIP service 25m x 12m|Marquee
Nation

Alcohol and Bars

The bar contractor (One Circle) have experience running festival and large scale event bars and are a trusted, quality
provider with a strong track record. They will provide 5 bars with a total of 150m of bar frontage for service.

As responsible event organisers recognise that there is the potential for people to consume amounts of alcohol that
render them intoxicated. We have therefore taken steps to ensure that the potential for this is limited and managed
correctly:

The bar will stock a full range of beer, cider, wine and spirits; alongside non-alcoholic options
Bag searches will be conducted upon entry to ensure alcohol from outside the festival site is not brought into
and consumed onsite

e Bars will operate a Challenge 25 policy at all times

43 10




e The bar team has the right to refuse service at any time, and all refusals will be recorded in the Refusals Log
by the bar manager

e All bars will have a trained SIA member of security on hand who is specifically trained to deal with people
under the influence of alcohol to help diffuse any situations arising from intoxication

All alcohol sales are for on-premise consumption only and security will restrict guests from leaving the festival with
alcohol.

The full alcohol management plan is available as an appendix.

Food Traders

There will be 8 traders at various locations around the site. All food traders will be vetted internally by Green Events
Co, with a minimum standard of hygiene and H&S needing to be met for inclusion in the event. All traders must provide
the following with their application to trade, all documents will be kept on file, and trades will be required to carry
hard copies with them:

Rating of 4 or above for Food Hygiene

Risk Assessment for their stall or trading vehicle

Gas Safety Certificate (if using gas)

PAT Certificate for all electrical equipment being used onsite
HACCP

PLI Insurance documents (minimum £5 million)

Fire Risk Assessment

Food Hygiene training for staff onsite (minimum level 2)

All traders will supply their own trading structure or vehicle - all fabrics and materials without a fire retardancy
certificate must either be flambared or removed from the site.

Traders are not permitted to bring their own generators onsite, all power will be supplied by the festival. PAT
certificates are required for all electrical equipment brought onsite, and the event health and safety officer will
complete visual inspections of electrical equipment before trading commences. Any equipment without PAT testing
stickers, or equipment that is deemed unsafe by the onsite electrical team will not be permitted for use.

All traders and stalls with a medium to high risk of fire have been asked to bring their own fire fighting equipment
relevant to their facilities and cooking equipment. An inspection of all FFE will be carried out by Wessex Safety

Services prior to the event opening and recommendations made as appropriate.

Traders will operate under their own risk assessments and food hygiene practices; and the event will employ an
independent EHO to perform sign off checks prior to trading commencing.

Each trader using liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) is limited to two cylinders for each appliance, one in use and one
spare. All LPG must be tethered and any additional cylinders needed must be stored in designated gas storage areas.

A list of all food traders, their addresses and the local authority with whom they are registered will be confirmed and
that list sent to the environmental health department within the local authority within two weeks of the festival.

44 11



Toilets

Toilets will be located throughout the site in accordance with the levels set out in HSG 195 ‘The Event Safety Guide’
and if possible, go beyond those requirements. Toilet blocks will be distributed throughout the site, ensuring that there
are blocks close to all main areas, and also available outside the main festival gate for people entering / exiting the
site.

For an event with a gate opening time of more than six hours and using an even split of male and female ticket holders,
the following calculations apply:

Female Male
Recommended in HSG195 “The Event Safety 40 8 toilets, 27 urinals
Guide
High Tide Festival provisions 80 25 toilets, 40 urinal

Collection of waste can take place with minimal interaction with the public and will be removed at regular intervals by
Ace Lift Away. Disposal of liquids will be off site at a nearby location and will be the responsibility of the contractor.

Hand sanitising facilities will be inside the toilets and around the site.

8 accessible toilets will also be located at various convenient locations around the site and will be placed near other
sanitary facilities.

The toilet contractor (Ace Life Away), who provides the toilet facilities, will ensure staff check the toilets on a regular
basis in order for them to remain in a fit state for public use.

As this event is set over two separate, ticketed days, it is unlikely that the toilet provisions will not require emptying
during the festival opening hours; and all emptying will happen pre- and/or post-event days. The Festival does
recognise that there may be a need to empty toilets during the festival; and if this arises, will work with the sanitation
contractor for safe completion of this.

Backstage areas

The main artist and backstage compound will be situated behind the main stage. Here there will be artist changing
rooms, a small green room / chill out space and facilities for showering. These areas will be enclosed within a
scrimmed compound and only accessible with a permissable wristband. Any artist who is to perform on the second
stage will be transported via the production route to the back of the second stage.

A second compound will be erected on the east end of the site, this is to contain a security compound, welfare units,
bar storage, water tanks and a cash office. This area can only be accessed by crew with permissible wristbands.

Water supply and drinking water

Water will be supplied through a temporary water system from large storage tanks positioned onsite by Liquiline.
Designated water points will service all areas of the festival. Separate water points will be provided for stalls in their
back of house areas and conveniently spread throughout to avoid a build-up of queues.

45 12



Drinking water points will be set-up across the site to ensure ticket holders and crew have access to free drinking
water for the duration of the event. The site plan includes all water access points.

A water management plan will be provided by Liquiline following a site visit which is scheduled for April. All details will
be in compliance with BS 8551:2011 - Provision and management of temporary water supplies and distribution
networks. Water testing will be carried out and submitted to the local authority.

Signage

The event organisers will be using a combination of signage both onsite and on the route to site to help provide clear
information to ticket holders and crew. It is anticipated that the follow signage will be deployed, however, this list is
not exhaustive:

Correx directional signage on the route leading from public transport hubs to the festival, and again for egress
Clear, high banner style signage will be used onsite to denote areas of importance e.g. medic tent, toilets, gate
numbers

e LED screens on the main stage will be used for informative messages in between acts and for egress; including
messaging around health and safety, recycling, band times and egress instructions.

e Smaller signage maybe be used around site to advertise the program or similar

Consent will be sought from the correct local authorities; Highways and Transport and BCP Council before any
directional signage is deployed into areas of public access.

Barriers and Fencing
1. Heras Fencing:

2m high mesh Heras fencing will be used to segregate areas and enclose the site. This will be correctly braced every
fourth panel with triangle formed panels to produce a load bearing barrier and will resist light crowd pressure.
Scrim will be used to cover specific sections of heras fencing around the site. These will include:

e Length of fencing along the Promenade which separates the event site from the public access route

e Back of house areas viewable to the public - e.g boneyard, artists area and production compound

As scrim reduces the capacity of the fencing to withstand strong winds, the line of fencing between the event site and
the sea will not be scrimmed. All scrimmed areas will be hung but left rolled until show day. In the event of high winds
the use of scrim will be re-assessed before it is rolled into place.

2. FEront of stage barriers:
Front of stage barriers will be erected and overlooked by a competent person. All barriers will be certified ‘front of
stage barriers for use at indoor or outdoor music events’.
They are fully calculated and certified to 5Kn. The barriers are designed for the safety and comfort of the audience
and comply fully with the requirements outlined in both the Pop Code and the Institute of Structural Engineer’s
Guidelines.

3. Crowd Barrier:

A fixed foot crowd barrier will be used to create sterile areas or restricted access points at locations that will
experience low density crowd movement.

46 13



Accessibility

The management team accepts their responsibility to take all reasonably practicable steps to ensure that the site is
accessible to all who wish to attend. Details of the events accessibility will be included in the event information and on
the event and ticket websites. In particular, provisions will be made to ensure that:

e Event staff assist where applicable; although the event provides a free carer ticket to anyone with accessibility
needs

e Viewing platforms will be built onsite which can be accessed to give people a suitable vantage point to see the
stage
Trackmatting will be utilised at points throughout the site to aid with accessibility
Accessible toilets will be available throughout the festival
A dedicated entrance will be available to any accessible ticket holder

To date, the festival has had 11 accessibility tickets applied for.

47 14



4. Health and Safety

Introduction

It is the policy of Sundogs Production Company to achieve high standards of health and safety across the event. The
team will ensure the maintenance and monitoring of safe systems and processes of work which will comply with or
exceed current legislation for the protection of employees, contractors and customers and clients alike in accordance
with the Health and Safety at Work Act (1974).

Sundogs Production Company recognise that a number of activities which are undertaken at the event are done so on
their behalf and could potentially involve risk to health, safety and welfare of others. It is the policy of the event
managers and organisers to seek, as far as is reasonably practicable, safe working conditions for employees and all
other personnel working on their behalf and to ensure that any activity undertaken does not adversely affect the
health and safety of others.

Where contractors are bringing on a group of people to perform a role; Sundogs Productions or the specified contractor
will supply a management plan for this groups onsite work. Pre-identified areas are:

Waste Management Plan (Greenline Environmental)
Security & Steward Management Plan (Vespasian)
Electrical Installation Plan (Expression Events)

Bar / Alcohol Management Plan (One Circle)

Food Safety and Trader Management Plan (Green Events)

All contractors will be required to demonstrate their competence and present relevant method statements, risk
assessments, structural calculations, supporting documentation and insurance certificates relating to the work they are
contracted to carry out. No contractor will be permitted onsite, or work commenced without these documents.

Risk assessments and management
Risk assessments have been carried out and attached as an appendix with this document. Dynamic risk assessments will
take place on site throughout the course of the event. Any action to be taken arising from these assessments will be

recorded and acted upon immediately where necessary; with information on these actions passed onto all who will be
affected by the change.

Insurance

High Tide Festival is covered by its own insurance for public liability, employers liability, equipment cover and
cancellation insurance (£10 million). A copy of the insurance certificate will be provided.

All contractors, traders and artists must hold their own insurance and provide a copy of this prior to arriving onsite.
This will be kept on file and available for review.

Risk assessments - contractors

Below is a list of contractors that will be working onsite on behalf of the festival organisers. All contractors must
provide a method statement, copy of public liability insurance, risk assessment and sign off certificate (where

48 >



necessary). In addition, all contractors must read, understand and sign our contractor health and safety rules prior to
their arrival on site (a copy of which is in the appendices).

It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure all staff brought onsite are aware of and follow their individual /
specific work practices and controls for safe working.

Below is a list of contractors booked:

Marquee Nation - All marquees and temporary structures

Expression Events - Technical production - sound, lighting and power
Acorn - Staging and deck

Ace liftaway - Toilets - (RAs needed for delivery and set-up only)
Power Project - Generators, cabling and distro

Liquiline - Water provision

Vanguardia - Noise Management

Greenline Environmental - Waste Management

Vespasian - Security and Stewards

Wessex Safety Services - Fire Safety, General Site Risk Assessment and H&S
Road Traffic Solutions - Traffic Management

Response Medical Services - First aid and Medical

TKK - Site welfare services

*note - this list is not complete and will be updated as contractors are booked*

RIDDOR

During all phases of the event (build, show days and break) safety is to be of paramount importance for all. If an
incident was to occur which was deemed a RIDDOR reportable incident, the event management team would follow all
appropriate steps to investigate and report the incident to HSE.

The event management team, alongside crew and team leaders onsite will be well versed in RIDDOR and understand
what is considered reportable, and will always ensure they show due diligence when dealing with any incident or near
miss onsite.

Acceptable behaviour

High Tide Festival aims to offer an inclusive event for all; and will not accept racist or aggressive behaviour amongst
attendees, staff or contractors. Any reports of such incidents will be fully investigated and the perpetrators, if
apprehended, ejected from the event.

Electricity

All site electricity will be supplied through generators, the spec and location of these will be pre-determined based on
the calculated electrical load of the site. All generators and subsequent distribution equipment will be housed within
back of house compounds which ticket holders do not have access to.

A qualified electrician will install all electrics for the festival and will ensure that the following are met:

e All site electrical installations and generators are installed and checked by the qualified site electrician for
compliance with the current edition of the regulations for electrical installations issued by the Institution of

49 1



Electrical Engineers, relevant British standards (including BS7909 and BS7671), the law (EaWR, 1989 and
PUWER, 1998). Alongside HSE guidance notes GS50 (second edition 1997) and HSG195 ‘The Event Safety Guide’

e All electrical cables run to areas where public have access shall be matted, dug in or flown at an appropriate
height; and otherwise protected against physical damage including precautions to stop them from presenting a
trip hazard

e Any areas with equipment which pose a risk of electrical shock or fire (e.g generator or distribution areas) will
be fenced off or otherwise contained from public access and suitable warning signs will be in place

e During installation, any defects will be properly corrected or removed; and a ‘Completion Certificate’ shall be
submitted to the event owner or Senior Responsible Person

e Electrical Completion Certificates will be passed onto the local council representative prior to the
commencement of the event. The certificate must confirm that all electrical installations are in safe working
order and have been installed in compliance with the current electrical safety regulations. Separate
certificates shall be provided for each electrical installation on site

e The event managers will request that PAT certification has been carried out on all electrical equipment
contractors and subcontractors bring onto site. Evidence of PAT certification should be present on each
appliance with a sticker, and an item schedule should be available if requested. Visual checks will be carried
out by the health and safety manager throughout the build stage

Site lighting

Entrances to the site and arena area will be lit using towers and supplemented with the street lights along the
promenade. Festoon lighting will give ambient light to walkways for public use and a mixture of towers and other
lighting will be used around the site to create a safe environment for the public and crew. Sanitary facilities will be lit
using towers or flood lights. Architectural lighting will be used against certain structures and natural features to create
ambience.

All cables for lighting will be kept safely away from the public during the event and this will be checked as part of the
health and safety audits on site prior to the arena opening.

All marquees and structures will have permanently lit or highly visible fluorescent exit signage, these will be
strategically placed for safe egress from the structures.

Strobe lights

Effects and lighting will be carried out by Expression Events. Use of strobes is to be limited and only to be used on the
stages or in specific areas by trained and competent operatives. Signs upon entry will advise that strobe lighting effects
may be used.

Strobe lighting, if requested by the artist, will not exceed a flicker rate of more than four flashes per second. When in
use they shall be synchronised.

Use of strobe lighting will be in the event programme and will be advertised on the website. This information will also
be included in literature sent to all ticket holders prior to the event.

Any security working in front of the stage areas are experienced in these environments and will be trained to deal with
people suffering from epileptic fits.

50 17



Ultraviolet light

All ultraviolet lighting effects will be carried out by Expression Events and shall be by a competent member of staff
only.

Smoke and fog effects
All effects of this nature will be carried out by Expression Events.

Effects of this nature will be positioned on the stage only and not near exit routes; and always away from crew, crowd
and performers to reduce the risks of asphyxiation or reduced vision leading to accidental injury.

Any operator of these effects will be a competent and trained individual and risk assessments and method statements
will be supplied and available for review.

Security Operations Onsite

All security, stewards, supervisors and team leaders will be trained, briefed and equipped to a standard that reflects
their responsibilities. All SIA front-line security staff shall wear their identification badges in accordance with
legislation, and stewards in marked, high-visibility tabards or vests.

Stewards will be made aware that they are NOT security and must not enter into any situation that is confrontational;
rather that their own safety is paramount and they should report any situation that requires a security presence.
Stewards are to act as the eyes and ears for the festival and are there for general safety and information for the
public.

Security and stewards will have an office located onsite. Their office will be positioned within the production
compound.

A perimeter fence will be patrolled by SIA trained security and experienced stewards who will alert security of any
issues. The perimeter fence will be lit at strategic positions around the site and ensure the safety and security of those
inside the site.

All security, stewards, traffic marshals and fire wardens shall wear high visibility tabards unless in the pit area of any
stage. All SIA front-line security staff shall wear tabards of a different unique colour.

Admission for the general public will be by ticket only and entry lanes will be constructed using the correct barriers. All
production and working staff will be in possession of valid accreditation and enter only through designated entrance
points.

Security staff will be present on all entrances and exits throughout the event to assist with crowd control.

Bag searches will be undertaken at the entrance lane; after ticket validation. A search area will be available for ease
of searching and the festival will be advertised as part of the ticket terms and conditions. This policy can be found as
an appendix to this document.

Security Provisions

Vespasian Security will be responsible for the correct management and deployment of security on site. They are
specifically trained and experienced in dealing with high capacity events. The security supervisor will be responsible

51 18



for passing information to event control, coordinating assistance between the security team and making tactical
decisions with regard to security matters.

The security supervisor will maintain communication with the event management team throughout the event and will
liaise directly with the event managers as to the deployment of their resources in response to intelligence received by
event control. If required, the Security and Event Managers will liaise with police and emergency services. The event
managers will have authority to direct any member of the security staff to perform a duty in the interest of event
safety.

The security contractor will provide sufficient security personnel to cover the event during its opening times to ensure
security of the traders, the attendees, the structures and the site. The location of these will be a mixture of fixed and
roaming; these will be pre-determined and agreed between the Event Management Team and Vespasian Security.
Vespasian Security will provide their own policies and risk assessments for their activities and will be available for
review, attached as an appendix to this EMP.

Security will be identified through wearing of high-visibility tabards or jackets, with the exception of security stationed
in the pit of stages, who will be identified through an armband.

Security will also be provided during build and break periods, and overnight to ensure staff, site and structure safety -
please refer to the table below for numbers.

*These are current estimations - final numbers may vary depending on ticket sales. A final security schedule, including
key monitoring stations, will be completed no less than 4 weeks before the event.

Stewards

Vespasion will be responsible for the correct management and deployment of stewards around the festival site. They
will provide training for stewards on site prior to the event where all stewards will be briefed on their areas of
responsibility, expectations of the festival, hierarchy of the team, emergency procedures and communication methods.

It is the responsibility of the event management team to ensure that all stewards are given the information required to
maintain a safe environment for both attendees and members of their staff at all times.

Vespasian will provide their own policies and risk assessments for their activities and will be available for review.

Stewards will be positioned at key areas to protect equipment, maintain exit routes, maintain emergency routes and
monitor and control public flow. Event management will position information signage at all gates denotioning
permissible wristbands for any area with restricted access.

Stewards will also be briefed to give general information to the public regarding the event where necessary.

52 19



Traffic Management

As the event takes place in a prominent area along Bournemouth Beach, there will be special considerations around
traffic management; especially on Undercliff Drive and the parking bays it includes. The event is currently in
consultation with Road Traffic Solutions to create a full traffic management plan for all stages of the event.

Road Traffic Solutions have currently provided a .kmz file (to be opened with Google Earth Pro) outlining proposed taxi
bays and pick up / drop off locations for the event; alongside stewarding positions proposed for manning of these areas
and any other pertinent zones. Also included is a signage schedule and map of off site signage locations. Both of these
files are included as appendices to the EMP. The full traffic management plan will be made available once completed in
the coming weeks.

Prevention of crime and disorder

High Tide Festival is committed to reducing the potential for crime and criminal activity. No volatile areas are expected
on the site and special attention has been paid to making this festival have a relaxed and fun atmosphere. The festival
has a strong community focus and does not anticipate it to appeal to troublemakers or illegal activity. This is largely
due to the short showtimes, musical acts booked drawing a more mature, discerning crowd, and the visible presence of
security across site.

The event will employ a mixture of professional SIA registered security and trained stewards who will monitor the
festival site throughout the event. The gate will be subject to bag searches and the event reserves the right to refuse
entry and to search any person at any time whilst onsite.

Regular safety checks will be conducted across the site to ensure that no structure or equipment is tampered with.

Any incidence of theft or crime to a person should be reported to a member of the security team who will document
the incident and report to the local police.

Any persons apprehended by security due to illegal / criminal activities onsite will be passed to be police before being
ejected from the site. Security staff will also assist, where possible, in the identification of offenders and the

prevention of crime on the festival site.

Witness statements should be obtained both of the aggrieved and any independent witnesses and documented on an
incident report form.

The current breakdown of age and gender of ticket holders is available in the crowd management section of this
document.

Cash Handling Onsite
The bars and food vendors will be responsible for their own cash handling policies, however, the event management
team will provide all parties with guidelines to help minimise risk when handling cash, ensure safety of all staff and

reduce the likelihood of theft.

One Circle Bars will operate a cash office which will be located within a production area, this will be staffed by One
Circle who will also organise the security needed for this.

53 20



Drugs Policy

The festival operates a zero tolerance policy toward drug use and holds a strict drugs policy which is communicated in
the terms and conditions of ticket purchase - see appendix for full policy.

Security will be briefed to deal with anyone selling or using drugs on the site. Management will be informed of any
person found to be in possession of illegal substances as defined by the Misuse of Drugs Act. Local police will be
informed of any drugs that are found on persons or the site. Any such individual shall be denied access to the event and
the matter referred to the police.

Vespasian will operate a policy of random drug searches at the main entrance to the festival and in the festival site.
This will be included in the terms and conditions of the ticket, as well as being signposted at the main entrance so
individuals are aware. Male and female security will be placed around the site and on entrances and exits to carry out
drug searches if applicable.

Illegal drugs will be confiscated and handed to police. Amnesty bins will be provided at all entrances to the site and
appropriately signposted.

Anybody who refuses to cooperate with our security personnel may be evicted from the site. Where possible, searches
of individuals will be carried out by members of the same sex.

Fire Safety

The event is currently appointing an external fire safety firm who will be responsible for fire safety across the whole
site and will carry out all risk assessments and fire calculations for structures. A full fire risk assessment will be in
place and available as an appendix to this document.

1. Build and Break Periods

During the build and break periods, the management team will ensure that there is sufficient FFE in designated areas
along with the appropriate signage. Additionally all persons on site will be briefed as to the actions to be taken in the
event of a fire and will be advised of the site assembly point.

2. Event
A specific member of the team will be appointed the point of contact in the event of a fire on site.

The event management team has a duty to prevent accumulation of flammable materials (rubbish) especially near
structures and tented areas. A waste collection vehicle will be able to access the site to remove waste where
necessary. Waste receptacles will also be provided and traders will be asked to ensure that any waste is disposed of
accordingly.

All stewards and crew will be required to assist in fire prevention and maintain site safety.

Generators will be fenced off from the general public and diesel will be used on site. Traders will be asked to store fuel
appropriately and limit the risk of fuel and other flammable materials. All caterers and traders must also bring their
own fire fighting equipment where necessary and the onsite fire safety team will be available to assist in the event of a
fire situation.

54 21



All power supplies and any production equipment will be monitored and prepared with a full fire risk assessment by the
contractors who provide them.

A sterile route of 4m will be maintained on site for fire emergency vehicles.

All caterers and traders are required to bring their own fire fighting equipment suitable for use where a significant
hazard exists and fire risk assessments find it necessary.

3. Structures

All stages and structures will be supplied by competent contractors who will retain responsibility for them throughout
the event. Structures will be strictly vetted for flame retardancy, will comply with current British standards and up to
date certificates will be provided by contractors for inspection prior to the supplier and structure arriving onsite.

Insurance certificates will be provided and risk assessments carried out by each contractor erecting a structure and
these will be available for review.

Curtains, drapes and other materials that are made from durable and non-durable materials will conform to British
Standard (BS) 5867 and be accompanied by test certificates where applicable.

Checks on the structures will be carried out by the contractors erecting those structures and they will supply
completion certificates following erection. These checks will be recorded.

During the build and dismantling of the structures, the area will be cordoned off with hazard tape or another
appropriate barrier system in order to deter the general public or other persons onsite from entering the area.

Full safety checks will be carried out by the event management team and will continue throughout the duration of the
event. In the event of any changes to structures, the contractor will be called to the site and if necessary, the
structure will be removed.

Sign off certificates will be provided by the contractor. Fire calculations will be carried out for all structures over
150m2.

All large structures will have at least two exits of at least 3m each which allows the safe passage of 300 people and will
be placed no more than 18m apart. Fire calculations always take into account the removal of one exit.

Standing room only allows for 0.5m2 per person.

Medical services

The event has a fully qualified medic team onsite with medical tent and are capable of attending to any incident until
the emergency services arrive.

The medical team will be responsible for completing accident reports and will include details of how many patients
were treated on the day to the event after the event.

Response Medical Services will provide a full operational plan for medical services which will be available in the
appendix. Cover will include:

Response ambulance positioned onsite - with an easily accessible route
Additional conveying ambulances with assigned teams

Designated first aid structure with clear signage and adequate staffing
A roaming team within the festival arena

55 22



e All first aid officers onsite to be suitably trained to complete the job

The closest hospital with A&E facilities is Royal Bournemouth Hospital, this is 3.2miles from the event site and a 10
minute drive in regular traffic conditions. In the event that additional emergency vehicles are required, the RVP will be
situated on Undercliff Drive (East Gate); this is an area which has constant access.

Onsite first aid and medical cover

Response Medical Services (RMS) will provide the onsite medical team, including emergency response vehicles which
will be utilised onsite for transport to the medial tent, or for offsite transport to the local hospital for further
treatment.

RMS will provide a team of medics (see table below). These teams will be stationed across the site, including in the
specified medic tent which is clearly signposted with access for ticket holders and site workers. Others will be roaming
in the festival arena, or stationed with the response vehicles in the backstage areas.

There will also be a number of event staff and crew who are first aid trained to supplement first aid cover across the
site during all phases of operation.

Resource Purple Guide RMS
Recommendation Deployment
First Aid 0 2
Post
Mobile NOT 2
BLS STATED
Mobile NOT 1
ALS STATED
4x4 NOT 2
Ambulances STATED
Road 2 2
Ambulances
Doctors 0 0
Paramedics 2 4
Nurses 0 2
Beds 0 4
Additional NOT 2
Site AED’s STATED

Welfare

TKK will be providing welfare services onsite during the live phase of the event. They are experienced working in live
events and festivals and will offer the following services:

Welfare and safeguarding documentation prior to the event
Dedicated safeguarding manager

Welfare unit and crew

Lost property point and management

A full welfare plan will be added to the appendix of this EMP in due course.

56 23



Safeguarding

Definition: High Tide Festival is committed to safeguarding the welfare of all persons who are involved with, or
attending the festival. These guidelines and procedures will apply equally to any vulnerable adults.

Principles: All persons should be treated with care, respect and dignity. The responsibility for the creation of a safe
environment for each and every person at the event belongs to everyone in the production team, whether staff,
contractor or volunteer.

All staff members are expected to be professional in their conduct and work in a manner that is open, honest and
trustworthy. Staff members will behave responsibly throughout the event.

Safeguarding Manager: A safeguarding manager will be provided through TKK and they will have responsibility on site
for safeguarding. These responsibilities include:

Ensuring that all staff are aware of the requirement to work in compliance with the Safeguarding Policy

To be the point of referral for questions in relation to the Safeguarding Policy

To be the point of referral for anyone who, during the course of the event, believes that a person may be at
risk of harm, is told by a person of a welfare issue; or believes that a person may pose a risk of harm to any
other person; and keep a record of any safeguarding issues which arise

It should be noted that although the event is an over 18’s only event, there may be a lost / found child on the public
access beach who is brought to the attention of a member of staff outside the festival fence line. In this case, the child
would be handled by the welfare team and handed over to the beach rangers and seafront services would be notified.
At no point would the child be left alone with a member of staff or be moved from the area they were found into the
festival site.

Onsite Vehicles

A full traffic management plan will be available as an appendix and will include a plan for vehicle movement to site
(along Undercliff Drive) and the stationary vehicles required onsite. Sundogs Production Company estimates the
following numbers of vehicles onsite during any stage of the event:

10 x large lorries

10 x mid-sized lorries
30 x small vans

10 x large cars

10 x small cars

Site entry and exit for vehicles

Build and de-rig
The entrance for all large vehicles delivering to site is from Bournemouth Pier, along Undercliff Drive to the event site.

As agreed with Seafront Services, all vehicles using this route must arrive before 10am daily and will be accompanied
by a support vehicle the full length of the route. A full list of vehicles using this route will be provided to Seafront
Services no later than one week prior to the build start date.

All other vehicles are to access the site via Boscombe Pier (Sea Road) and use Undercliff Drive.

57 24



All vehicles must stop at the site entry and drivers and passengers report to accreditation before entering the site.
Only authorised vehicles will be allowed onsite and will be issued with an appropriate vehicle pass (static, delivery or
onsite moving).

Live Event
All vehicles which require access during the live event will enter and exit via Boscombe Pier and use Undercliff Drive.

On-site traffic management

Any vehicle on site must be under the control of a competent person, and will be subject to a strict 3mph speed limit.

There will be limited parking onsite, restricted to the backstage areas of both stages, and all other vehicles must use
the designated offsite parking.

Vehicles likely to be on site will be but not limited to:

Emergency vehicles

HGV'’s from contractors during build and break
Waste removal vehicles

Stalls and trader vehicles

Artist vehicles / tour buses

The event is committed to the welfare and protection of Bournemouth Beach. Every effort to minimise any
unreasonable damage to the beach and surrounding areas will be made as a first priority.

Food traders will be informed that once on site, they should remain there and artist tour buses will be parked away
from the event arena alongside the production route.

The vehicle entrance/ load in/load out will be manned as well as matted with heavy duty matting to prevent wear at
point of entry. In the case of inclement weather there will be a strict no vehicles on site rule.

A full vehicle curfew will be in place 2 hour before gates open on the day of the event, the vehicle curfew will be lifted

by the Event Management Team once all ticket holders have left site on the event closing each night. At this point,
vehicle access and movement will be permitted in the same controlled manner as during event build.

Walkways will be free of cars onsite and the only area where cars and public are likely to meet will be:

e On the route from public transport hubs to the festival - this will be via public pathways along the roadside.
Adequate stewards, barriers and signage will be used, alongside trained SIA security team, to ensure that
pedestrian access to the festival site safe

e At the front gate should an emergency occur and emergency vehicles need access to the site. A steward and
security presence will remain to ensure safe access for the vehicle

58

25



5: Crowd Management

Introduction

The event intends to cater for two different, over 18 audiences over the two days. Friday 1st is focused around pop,
mainstream and popular DJ acts. The headliner is Clean Bandit. Saturday 2nd line-up intends to target indie, rock and
pop fans, with the Manic Street Preachers headlining the show. As a new event, there is no historical data available,
however, ticket sales are expected to between 6000 - 8000 daily. Ticket sales will be closely monitored, and if
necessary, plans updated to reflect the change in data closer to the event.

Below are the current ticket sales broken down into demographics of age and gender. It shows that the majority of the
audience is currently female, in the age range of 25-44. Note that both of these graphics are based on current sales

data which may change as sales progress.

Ticket Sales by Gender

Female 68.03%
Male 31.06%
® Non-Binary 0.15%
Other 0%
Prefer not to say 0.76%
Ticket sales by age range

18-24 18.68%

25-34 35.83%

® 3544 30.17%

45-54 11.64%

55-and older 3.68%

A key part of the crowd management to be considered at this event surrounds crowds beyond the festival site, how to
manage ingress of ticket holders and also discourage members of the general public crowding outside the festival fence

to spectate.
As the event has a start time of 3pm on both days, the chance of the main crowd of festival goers arriving to the site
combining with the majority of beach go-ers is reduced. From the organisers experience at other similar events, it can

59 26



be anticipated that many ticket holders will not arrive until closer to the main acts begin playing. In this case, the
organisers expect entry queues to be at their busiest around 5pm.

The below crowd management plans are based on the above factors. The festival organisers will maintain a clear line
of communication with the head of security throughout the event to monitor crowds and adjust placement of staff and
stewards on a proactive and dynamic basis.

Festival Site Access

Access to the main gates for ticket holders is via Undercliff Drive only, there will be gates at both ends of the site with
security search points. Access from the Toft Zig Zag (East Overcliff Drive) is restricted to crew and artists. The zig zag
will only be used by ticket holders in the event of an emergency evacuation from site.

Staff and crew admission to backstage and production areas will be strictly controlled through wristbands and passes.
All permissible wristbands will be denoted on signage at entrance points to each area. Staff will be positioned at key
areas to protect equipment, maintain exit routes, maintain emergency routes and monitor and control public flow.

Admission to the pit areas will be restricted to the front of stage security, management team and medical teams in the
event of an emergency. Photographers may only enter the pit if escorted in and out by a member of the security team
and a designated press liaison officer.

The security manager will maintain communication with the event management team throughout the event and will
liaise directly with the event managers as to the deployment of their resources in response to intelligence received by
event control.

Site Capacity Calculations

42. Event Site Exits Width Capacity

High Tide Festival

Reference: Purple Guide - Open Air Events

Total Capacity.
Total Area in m2

s [ ansTaime - 0% for useable space<20% ]

Floor Space Factor
Calculated Occupancy Levels

Actual Agreed Occupancy Levels
Risk Level

Escape Time

Exit Flow rate

Total Exit width inm

Minimum No of exits in Units

Size of Exitsinm

No of Exits Required

Total No of Occupants for exit width

Occupancy per Exit -
Occupancy per Exit -
Occupancy per Exit -

1
2
3
Occupancy per Exit - 4
Occupancy per Exit -5

6

Occupancy per Exit -

05
66,195 |

10,000

Low
g
62
133.458 |

127.103
10

10

al

132 |

7

127 |

12.71

3178

9.63 |

18.16

3
42.37
1,488.00 23,411.20

4,960.00 |

4,960.00

1,984.00

6,547.20 |

3,472.00

Exit1-
Stage Right
Exit

Exit 2 -
Stage Left

Exit3 -
Stage Right

Exit4- Main | Exit 5 - Main

Entrance 1

Entrance 2

Exit 6 - Exit
towards the
Sea

4960
1,984

3,472
1,488

| Discounted | INNENRSTRESTSREN

The festival's capacity has been calculated in the above table. Special consideration has been given to the shoreline
perimeter fenced line. It has been based on a high-tide of 2.4m; this is considered a peak high tide for the area based
on historical data. The event does not expect the high-tide to reach this level and data taken from the UK

60 27



Hydrographic Office (UKHO) shows the following predicted highest tide for the event reaches 2.03m at its peak on
Friday at 22:46. All other predicted high tides are under 2m and do not fall within the event hours.

As these are predicted tides, the event management team will monitor the data closer to the date and during the
event. It is understood that dynamic changes may need to occur to the fence line if these tide heights change.

Ingress & Ticket Holder Management

The organisers anticipate that the main mode of transport to and from the festival will be via foot, from public
transport hubs and stations. This includes local bus stops and Bournemouth Station (National Rail Services and buses).
Road Traffic Solutions will be providing traffic and pedestrian management plans to cover the event. Stewards will be
positioned along the walking route on the Promenade to the event site to assist with ingress and help to minimise
disruption to the local community. They will be aided by directional correx signage from major transport hubs along the
walking route.

Taxi drop off zones will be established at Boscombe Pier, with the local taxi companies made aware that no drop offs
are to take place on Overcliff Drive.

Due to the nature of the surrounding areas and the limited parking facilities, the organisers will actively discourage
ticket holders from driving to the event. This will help to reduce the environmental impact that the event has on the
local area and keep traffic congestion to a minimum.

The festival site will be fenced off from the public and entrance gained though the main security checked entrance
points on Undercliff Drive (public / ticket holders), or, sterile entrance and production entrance where applicable. A
list of permissible wristbands will be present at each entrance.

Sufficient and appropriate signage will clearly indicate the entry route to the festival site and stewards will be
proactive in assisting members of the public. Entry lanes will be constructed on the sand, adjacent to the promenade
using the correct barriers to help control crowds at the entrance and maintain order as ticket holders await security
and ticket checks. Security team will be present on all entrances and exits for the duration of the event to further
assist with crowd control.

All production and working staff will be in possession of valid accreditation pass and enter only through designated
entrance points. Pre-event information will give specific gate numbers for contractor and delivery access if applicable.

Last entry for the event is 1900, after this time, the search lanes and ticket scanning zones will be closed down, and
both East and West gates of the festival will become exit only. Security and stewarding staff will stay in position at
these points to communicate that the gates are now closed to any late arrivals.

61 28



Flow Rates

Gates will open at 1500 on both Friday and Saturday, with the first act starting on the main stage at 15:20 daily. In the
event that the weather is favourable it is expected that ticket holders will begin queueing 30 - 45 minutes before the
doors are opened. There will be sufficient security and steward presence along arrival routes and queuing areas to
ensure this is managed and to mitigate the risk of crowd surging when gates are opened.

The flow of ticket holders will come from both ends of the site, with entrance possible from East and West gates. East
Gate (Bournemouth Pier end of the site) is expected to be the busier of the two entrances, as all who access the site
from Bournemouth town centre, including the public transport hubs, will walk along the Promenade from Bournemouth
Pier. The exception to this is those who take mainline trains, their closest access will be from the East Gate (Boscombe
Pier end). All information regarding access to the site will be communicated clearly to ticket holders and be included in
website FAQs, and in social media posts leading up to the event.

For further calculations on flow rates, please refer to the crowd management plan which is included in the “Security
Plan” in the appendix of this EMP.

Both entrances will be equipped and staffed sufficiently for ticket and security checks, and stewards and members of
the security team will be strategically placed along both walk routes from where ticket holders would enter the
Promenade. These teams will be aided with the use of directional signage.

For egress, flow rates will reflect those of entry, however in the opposite direction; with the understanding that most
ticket holders will exit the same way they entered. Further provisions for egress are outlined below.

Movement onsite

Once ticket holders have passed through ticket and security checks they will enter the main arena. The space is one
large area which is designed to allow free movement of crowds throughout the day. The majority of facilities, including
bars, toilets and food traders will be positioned along the edge of the Promenade facing the sea with minimal seating
and shaded areas being placed in the centre of the arena. This is to maximise spectator space for the main and second
stages and to allow free movement between the two during act change over.

To ensure that queuing for the food vendors does not interfere with crowd movement, the food trader area is situated
beyond the second stage, at the east end of the site. This area also includes a bar and seating options and is designed
to be a space where dwell time can be longer and unimpeded by movement of crowds.

Egress

Egress from the site will be via the same routes as entry. The main exit point will be manned by stewards and security
at all times. This route will be kept clear of obstacles at all times and lit with tower or street lighting. All
considerations outlined for ticket holder access from public transport hubs will also be put into place for egress. End of
show messaging will also be presented on stage screens to help with egress; including directional messaging and arrows
indicating routes to Bournemouth and Boscombe.

To assist with egress from site, the fire escape stage left of the main stage will be opened after show down to allow a
13m egress route directly from front of stage out onto the promenade.

62 29



The event has taken into account the recent comments by Townwatch regarding dispersal. The festival plans to explore
different stratagies in consultation with Townwatch and Police to make every practicable effort to reduce the festival's
impact on the town centre during egress.

A designated taxi rank, alongside a designated pick up point if personal vehicles, will be established at Boscombe Pier.
This will be advertised in the lead up to the event and aims to reduce the level of foot traffic arriving to the town
centre during egress. The noise complaints hotline established for the event hours will continue to be monitored during
egress so any disturbance to the surroundingl community is dealt with swifty.

The event will operate a “zone x” perimeter around the festival site which stretches to Boscombe Pier and the pick up
zone for vehicles in the East, and 270m in the direction of Bournemouth Pier. In this area there will be a strong
stewarding and security presence, along with existing promenade lighting to help usher ticket holders away from the
site and to their onward destinations.

i

S
T

Poole B

Other considerations for crowd management

Parts of East Overcliff Drive may offer a favourable vantage point for members of the public who will try and watch the
show from outside the festival site. There will be stewards and members of the security team placed along the cliff top
to ensure a crowd does not gather along the curb and also to discourage people from attempting to traverse the cliff to
enter the site. The open public access route at the bottom of the cliff on the Promenade will ensure that fence
jumping via the cliff is not possible.

The Toft Zig-Zag poses another potential vantage point for members of the public to view the event. To mitigate this,
the festival organisers intend to close the zig-zag and employ roaming stewards to positions along the cliff face. This is
with the exception of persons with accessibility needs, artist and management entry who are permitted to use the zig
zag to access the site. Any member of the public wishing to use the Toft Zig-Zag would be directed to either the East
Cliff Zig Zag or Sea Road on the Boscombe end. In the event of overcrowding of public on the Promenade, the zig-zag
could be opened and operated one way for egress away from the promenade.

63 30



To manage members of the public who may attempt to spectate from the seafront edge of the festival there will be
security placed at predetermined points along this fence line. This is to both discourage any attempt at fence jump or
other form of unauthorised entry to the festival, and also manage any members of the public who attempt to spectate
from outside the festival.

DIM-ICE Model for Crowd Management

The crowd safety risk assessment model is known as design, information, management-ingress, circulation, egress
(DIM-ICE) is implemented to optimise crowd safety and potentially throughout an event. It assesses the following

elements:

e Three primary phases of crowd behaviour - Ingress, Circulation and Egress
e Three primary influences on crowd behaviour - Design, Information and Management
e Two primary modes of crowd behaviour - Normal and Emergency

This model has been applied to the following two areas:

e Fenced festival site

e The promenade at either end of the festival site (including public access route)

Fenced Festival Site

The fenced festival site is located on Bournemouth Beach, in close proximity to the Toft Zig Zag. It can reached through
two pedestrian routes; entering from either Boscombe or Bournemouth Pier and using the pedestrianised Promenade
(Undercliff Drive). Ticket check and security search points are situated at both entrances (East and West Gate) with
queuing systems in place at both gates. Egress will occur through the same routes, along with an extra gate being
utilised at the front of the main stage to aid in flow of egress.

As the site contains two stages in an open arena the flow of crowd will alternate between the two stages, and to the
designated food and seating areas.

NORMAL Ingress Circulation Egress

Design -Two designated points of -Large open arena -Extra point of exit opened
entry -Minimal obstacles or at front of main stage to
-Ticketed entrance structures built in path help with egress (total 3)
-Queuing systems to between stages and - Security checkpoints to
maximise space on services be closed after last entry
promenade -Designated area and and all equipment packed
-Barriers used to maintain access routes for non-able | away to allow wider egress
queues bodies ticket holders route
-Pre-sold tickets only

Information -Stewards and security -High, clear signage to -High, clear directional
positioned along pedestrian | denote all areas of sighage
route to site to direct importance and facilities -Use of main stage screen
ticket holders and maintain | throughout site for extra messaging
queues -Main stage screen to be -P.A announcements
-Direction signage used for informative -Stewards and security
positioned along route to messaging in between acts | positioned at key points
site -P.A announcements with directional signage

64

31




-Pre-event communication
to ticket holders and the
public

-P.A system and loud
hailers

-Social media updates and
messaging

Management

-Security and steward
provisions
-Event control in operation

-Security patrols inside
festival arena

-Event control in operation
-Strong stewarding
presence

-Ticketing and security
check lanes removed
-Stewards along egress
route

-Rapid response security
team

-Event control in operation

_ Ingress Circulation Egress
Design -Entry closed and becomes | -Sterile route to allow -5 emergency exits totally
egress only obstacle free movement of | 42m to allow for quicker
-Queuing barriers removed | emergency services egress and possibility of
to allow for quicker egress | -Open site with multiple some exits being cut off
flow emergency exits -Barriers beyond festival
-Stewards and security site minimal and easily
positioned away from moveable
entrances to turn back all -Lighting towers to be lit to
ticket holders and aid vision if required
members of the public -Sterile route can be
utilised for pedestrian
egress if required
-Toft Zig-Zag to be opened
to allow quicker evacuation
from seafront if necessary
Information -Stewards and security -High, clear signage to -Use of main stage screen
positioned along pedestrian | denote all exits for emergency messaging
route to turn back new -Main stage screen to be -P.A announcements and
arrivals and members of used for informative loud hailers
the public messaging -Stewards and security
-Signage advising “site -P.A announcements positioned at key points
closed” deployed to key -Social media updates and | with directional signage
positions offsite messaging -Directional signage to
-Social media and website evacuation points and
communication of site signage to denote these
closed points
-P.A system and loud
hailers
Management -Head of Security to deploy | -Event control in operation | -Security and stewards
and manage security and -Security patrolling units to | along egress route to
stewards team direct crowd towards exits | manage single directional
-Event control in operation | from main arena flow of crowd
and responsive -Strong stewarding -Event control in operation
presence at key points of -Additional exits opened
flow to manage direction

65

32




The promenade outside the fenced site

Access to the festival site will be along The Promenade (Undercliff Drive) which runs from Bournemouth Pier to
Boscombe Pier. This is a public access road which the organisers expect to have large numbers of the general public on,
due to the time of year that the event is being held.

There has been special consideration to the flow of public along the promenade and to ensure this is kept possible the
festival site fence allows for a 4m wide pedestrian access route to the rear of the site (at the edge of the cliff). This
allows free flow of the general public along the promenade and access to beach huts to remain unhindered through all
phases of the event.

Ingress is a key time for crowd management to ensure that ticket holders are kept separated from the general public.
Stewards and members of the security team will be in place along the walking route to ensure that none of the general
public join the entry queue and that queues and lines are managed well. This will be aided by appropriate barriers and
signage. As the event has a late finish time, and well after sunset, egress from site should not impact or be impacted
by the general public on the promenade.

NORMAL Ingress Circulation Egress
Design -Two lane system with -Public access route behind | -Multiple exits opened to
barriers (ticket holders site kept open allow crowds to disperse
kept separate from general | -Fence lines scrimmed to from site quickly and safely
public) discourage crowds
-Public access route behind | gathering on the fence line
site for non ticket holder
thoroughfare
-Queuing systems to
maximise space on
promenade
-Barriers used to maintain
queue
Information -Stewards and security -Direction signage for -High, clear directional
positioned along pedestrian | public access route sighage
route to site to direct -Stewards positioned at -Stewards and security
crowds and maintain vantage points to positioned at key points
queues discourage crowds with directional signage
-Informative signage at key | congregating
points -P.A announcements
-Pre-event communication | -Social media updates and
around “ticketed event” messaging
and “advance tickets only”
-Social media posts
Management -Security and steward -Security patrols on -Ticketing and security
provisions en route to the exterior fence line to check lanes removed
festival site discourage crowds -Stewards along egress
-Event control in operation | gathering route
-Event control in operation | -Event control in operation
-Strong stewarding
presence

66

33




_ Ingress Circulation Egress
Design -Entry closed and becomes | -Sterile route to allow -Barriers beyond festival
egress only obstacle free movement of | site minimal and easily
-Queuing barriers emergency services moveable
repurposed to shut ingress | -Crowd flow away from site | -Lighting towers to be lit to
route and out of exits aid vision if required
-Toft Zig-Zag to be opened
to allow quicker evacuation
from seafront if necessary
-Site and sterile route can
be used for crowd
retainment if required
Information -Stewards and security -High, clear signage -P.A announcements and
positioned along pedestrian | -P.A announcements loud hailers
route to turn back new -Social media updates and | -Stewards and security
arrivals and members of messaging positioned at key points
the public -Stewards for advice and with directional signage
-Signage advising “site information -Signage to evacuation
closed” deployed to key points and signage to
positions offsite denote these points
-Social media and website
communication of site
closed
-P.A announcements
Management -Head of Security to deploy | -Event control in operation | -Security and stewards
and manage security and -Security patrolling units to | along egress route to
stewards team direct crowd on the manage single directional
-Event control in operation | promenade flow of crowd
and responsive -Strong stewarding -Event control in operation
presence at key points of -Sterile route has the
flow to manage direction possibility of being opened
once emergency services
inside fenced site

Levels of Evacuation

A number of factors can lead to the need for a type of evacuation which may be unseen by either audience or crew.
Levels of evacuation are considered as:

A. Low level evacuation
B. Partial site evacuation

C. Full site wide evacuation

The decision to begin any type of evacuation can have a significant impact on crowd behaviour and safety, so should be
undertaken solely by the core event management team who have authority to do so. This should be co-ordinated by
event control in conjunction with heads of security and medical; including emergency services if required.

In the event of a site wide evacuation being required, there are two predetermined evacuation points at Sea Road Car
Park by Boscombe Pier and/or East Cliff Road in the direction of Bournemouth Pier. These will be dynamically assessed
for safety in the event of evacuation and members of security and/or stewards will be sent to these locations with

signage denotion the RVP points.

67

34




Routes for evacuation will be determined based on the area of the incident. The site has a total of 5 fire escapes gates
which are situated at strategic points around the perimeter and allows egress either the west or east of the site and
along Undercliff Drive in the directions of Boscombe or Bournemouth Piers. In an emergency the security provision on
the Toft Zig Zag will also be instructed to open this to allow it to be used as a route of evacuation off the beach.

Egress in the event of an emergency will be through all available fire exits. There are 5 fire escape gates onsite which
total to an amount of 42.2m of exits. Using a reduced flow rate calculation of 62 people per metre of width per
minute, (BS EN 13200-1:2019),and discounting 2 exits, evacuation of site based on 10,000 spectators would take 8
minutes.

All communication with the public will remain polite, firm and calm at all times so as not to induce panic. Following
evacuation, all areas will be checked by stewards and security to ensure no-one remains on site.

A/ Low Level Evacuation

This type of evacuation would be employed if an event occurred which required a local, small scale evacuation from a
single point on site. A local cordon and evacuation could be implemented by zone or area managers and co-ordinated
with the event manager.

The process of a local cordon will be started by the first on the scene, and elevated to event control through a member
of the stewarding or security team. Event control will alert the event manager who will then coordinate stewards and
security with the Head of Security.

Public and crew will be advised of the cordon through use of loud hailers. The public will be moved away from the area
by stewards and directed to less populated areas as determined by the event manager.

Once the incident is under control, the event manager can notify Event Control to resume duties. A radio broadcast can
then be made that the area is safe to re-enter and the cordon removed. Stewards on the ground can distribute this
information to the public and crew.

B/ Partial Evacuation

For partial evacuation, as above, an initial cordon would be established by the first on scene and escalated to event
control and event management. Event control will remain in control of the response, however, it is noted that at this
level, emergency services or policing may need to be involved or notified. If required, event control would coordinate
the opening of emergency exits onsite to evacuare certain zones of the event.

C/ Full Evacuation

If there is an incident which requires full, site wide evacuation the major incident plan would be implemented. At this
point, the event manager would coordinate with local emergency services and/or council representatives to determine
if the police should take command of the incident.

A full emergency response plan is included as an appendix to this document.



6: Event Communications

Local communication considerations
At least six weeks prior to the event, the following communications will take place:
e Letters to local residents and businesses in the immediate area that may be affected by the road closure
e Signage indicating temporary closure of parking spaces along Undercliff Drive that accompany the road closure

e Consultation with local licensing authorities and SAG

As a new event to the area, local residents will also be offered monthly meetings with a dedicated council member to
discuss all aspects of the event.

Radios

All core members of the management team, security and designated stewards will be equipped with a two way radio
and all users will be trained how to use them effectively.

Each team with a direct line of command will operate on their own secure channel. All users will also be briefed on the
radio channels and codes to be used in the event of an emergency, and supplied with a channel and call sign sheet.

Event Control

Event control office will be located in the production compound behind the main stage. Event control will hold its own
specific raadio channel and all radio users will be made aware of this. An event log will be maintained in the event of
any emergency to detail any decisions or incidents which may occur during the event

Emergency Announcements

In the event of an emergency, announcements will be made via the stage PA, and assisted with messaging displayed on
the main stage screens.

Loud hailers will also be positioned at key locations to be used by event management in the event of an emergency -
locations of the loud hailers are detailed below:

e Production office
e Security compound
e East and West Gate

Press

In the event of a major incident all press will be handled by the relevant press representative from CPR Comms. This
will be on instruction of emergency services, relevant authorities or event managers. The press representative will
liaise with event control to update social media platforms and official websites etc.

Press conferences in regards to a major incident will be held at a location decided by the emergency services.



7: Environmental & Local Considerations:

Local Flora and Fauna

High Tide Festival is aware of the presence of local flora and fauna on the beach and surrounding areas, and it is of
utmost importance to maintain and preserve this through all stages of the event.

Planning and consideration of the proposed event space ensures that areas of public access/ingress/egress are kept
away from the cliffs and the shoreline. Through these measures High Tide Festival aims to minimise the risk of contact
with vegetation, fauna and the sea; therefore minimise the long term risk to the local ecosystem.

Waste management

Greenline Environmental will be the contracted waste management company onsite, and has provided a waste
management plan which is included as an appendix to this EMP. The event will make every effort to keep waste to a
minimum and will actively encourage all contractors, customers and staff to recycle where possible.

Sufficient receptacles will be provided on site for storage of waste and will be emptied often to minimise fire risk.
Litter picking will be carried out by a team of staff on site throughout the event and prior to the stage areas opening
each day of the festival. The site will also be cleared of litter following the closure of the event each night.

A condition of trade for vendors and food traders will be that they leave their pitch in the same condition as before
they arrived - any waste or damage left behind will mean that they may be subject to a fine, or loss of their deposit.

Where the fire officer can see a fire risk or hazard, the waste management company will have this risk removed from
the site accordingly. The event or area managers will advise of any potential hazard before it reaches a point where
obvious hazard is represented.

Clinical waste from the designated welfare and first aid areas will be suitably removed from the site and disposed of in
the correct manner. Refuse collection points will be located outside the festival arena with consideration of ease of
access and minimal disruption of the event.

Recycling

All stall holders, sponsors and bars will be reminded about the importance of recycling where possible and will be
issued with recycling bags which will be collected with the general waste. Both general waste and recycling bins will be
made available to the public to reduce the environmental impact of the festival.

Noise

The event will be in consultation with the noise management team (Vanguardia) to ensure that the licensing conditions
are met. The noise management plan is included in the appendix of this EMP. The sound levels for the event will be set
to comply with legislation and levels set by the local authorities and sound level testing will be carried out by acoustic
experts.

70 37



Due regard is made to contractors and all event staff to ensure compliance with the Control of Noise at Work
Regulations (2005). These regulations apply to employees and workers and not members of the public although both
the public and employees will be advised that hearing protection should be worn to mitigate hearing damage.

The sound monitoring team will be in contact with event control should any action need to be taken during the event
to ensure that any environmental noise limitations/conditions are adhered to.

All stages will be scheduled to finish within the terms of the licensing agreement and it is of the highest priority that
noise levels from the event shall not exceed the following:

e Between the hours of 0700 and 2300, noise levels shall not exceed levels set out after a noise propagation has
taken place
e Music from both stages will cease at 2300 hours at which point monitoring will cease

A propagation test (or “sound test”) will be carried out to set indicative noise limits at mixer desk positions at all
stages. Noise levels must be subsequently monitored at all original testing positions. The noise management team will
also compile a list of local dwellings which should be used as monitoring locations throughout the event.

The sound consultants will:

e Provide a qualified consultant with enough sets of monitoring equipment to cover each mixer desks, plus two
additional sets of mobile monitoring equipment (for measurements at nearby dwellings) on the day of the
festival

e Propagation tests will be carried out before the opening of the event. Assistance from the sound engineer will
be required during these tests. This will be witnessed by the licence holder, or a representative of; and mixer
desk noise limits will be set. The sound metres will then be left to monitor continuously for the duration of the
festival and the sound engineering contractor will be instructed of the allowable limits and how to determine if
noise levels are close to exceeding those prescribed limits

e For the remainder of the weekend, two consultants will stay near to or inside the site to carry out spot checks
of noise levels at predetermined, nearby dwellings and check that the monitors are working correctly. They will
also respond to noise queries from local authority / promoters / sound engineers / police etc

A letter will be issued to local residents who could be affected by the activities of the festival no later than two weeks
before the event. The letter will contain details of a contact on site should there be a noise complaint. The complaint
will be logged and addressed as soon as possible. Details of any noise complaints will be sent to the local authority
within seven days of the event.

As this is a set of two single day events, the event management team recognise that there will be peak times for arrival
and departure from the festival site with public transport. There will be stewards and security stationed along the
pedestrian route to public transport to ensure that no undue disturbance is caused by people arriving or leaving the
festival and help to respect local residents. Signage will also be used to remind ticket holders that they are entering
the festival via a residential route, and to be mindful and respectful of local residents.

Traders will not be allowed to operate background music only and the event organisers and managers retain the
right to turn it off if needed.

Weather

Whilst the weather is beyond the control of the management team, it is their responsibility to make preparations for
the occurrence of inclement weather, and be constantly aware of forecasts and changing conditions - safety is always
the priority and should never be compromised.



The types of weather likely to cause disruption to the festival are as follows (more detail in on each below):

Heavy Rain
High Winds
Extreme Heat
Flooding

All of the above conditions may occur individually or in combination but each situation will be addressed by the event
management team and a dynamic decision will be made as to the best course of action.

The weather forecast will be monitored in the days and weeks prior to the event, in order to ensure that preparations
are made as far as is reasonably practicable.

Regular risk assessments will take place on site and the findings of those assessments will be recorded from which
dynamic decisions will be made.

Heavy Rain and Flooding

Heavy rain is the type of inclement weather most likely to occur given the British climate. While rain itself is not a
danger to staff, contractors or attendees, the effect it has on the ground condition, standing water and the potential
for flooding are a real danger.

As flash flooding is unlikely, there should be time and flood warning from the Met office in the event of heavy rains
leading to flooding. In this case, the event will be cancelled, the build will not take place and all contractors, traders
and general public will be informed of this cancellation.

In the unlikely event that heavy rain and unpredicted flash flooding should occur during the festival, the following
measures will be in place:

All activity will cease and an evacuation will take place. (See major emergency plan)

First aid on site to deal with any casualties from slips, falls or hypothermia

Generators will be switched off immediately if it is safe to do so

Area will be cordoned off and traders and contractors will not be able to remove their stock and equipment
until it is deemed safe to do so

Cancellation will be an absolute last resort. Only if the conditions on site due to heavy rain are deemed unsafe will the
event be cancelled. Should this cancellation take place prior to the festival, announcements will be made via the
website, mailing list, social media and local press. In the event that the festival is cancelled whilst it is taking place,
our evacuation procedure will come into action.

High Winds

High winds will be the most likely cause of cancellation of this festival as they can cause serious issues with stages and
temporary structures. Although all stages and temporary structures are erected by trained and competent professionals
and completion certificates are provided, several precautions are taken to ensure the safety of the event should the
site be affected by high winds.

The following checks and precautions will be carried out:

e All structures should have wind load calculations. Each contractor is responsible for ensuring that they do not
erect those structures in winds higher than the calculations state

72 39



e In the event that winds close to the wind load limit are predicted, contractors must ensure that extra weight,
ballast or tethering takes place to further secure the structures
Dynamic risk assessments will take place to assess the weather at regular intervals
An anemometer will be used by the trained stage crew to monitor wind speeds. In the event that wind speeds
reach a level that is deemed unsafe, the area will be closed to the public and production with only a trained
team present and all activity on the stage will cease. Only when the crew have secured the structure will the
area be reopened

e The event management team will perform regular site checks on temporary structures to ensure their safety.
This will include checking that any tethers and ballast have remained in place. Although this is a standard
practice throughout the event, the frequency of the checks will increase in the event of high winds
If it is safe to remove structures, they will be dismantled and the event will be cancelled
If the structures are deemed unsafe, and it is not possible to dismantle them, traders must leave their stock,
the areas will be evacuated and all activity will cease

e First aid will be onsite to deal with any injuries caused by blown debris

Any evacuation procedure required will be carried out in line with the policy outlined in the major emergency section
of this event management plan.

Extreme Heat

Extreme heat has little impact on the infrastructure of the event and is highly unlikely to cause its cancellation. As the
event takes place in July, there is a strong possibility that temperatures could be high; the major impact of extreme
heat is on staff, contractors and attendees.

The following procedures and precautions will be carried out in the event that hot weather is expected:

e Adequate supply of fresh drinking water will be available to all crew and attendees; and it will be promoted
throughout site that water intake should be increased to reduce the likelihood of dehydration

e First aiders will be on site and will be well equipped to deal with the symptoms of being exposed to these
conditions, with stewards and security team briefed to look out for attendees who may be suffering from
dehydration / heat stroke

e Security will provide trained crowd spotters who will make the stage managers aware of any members of the
crowd who come into difficulty as the result of heat exhaustion or for any other reason. At this point the show
stop procedures as outlined in the major emergency section of this plan will come into effect if necessary

e Stewards, traders and the event management team are responsible for ensuring that any combustible material
such as waste is not allowed to build up and is removed from the site. All traders are required to bring fire
fighting equipment (FFE) and additional FFE will be available on site

In the event of extreme heat during the build or break phases of the event, staff and contractors will be made aware
of the facilities onsite for drinking water, shaded rest areas and the dangers of prolonged exposure to the sun or high
temperature conditions (e.g - inside enclosed structures).

Sea Safety

Sea safety and the responsibility to protect all persons onsite and the sea are of high priority to the event. As the event
site is fully fenced off from the waterline the risk of an event occurring which requires the coastguard or sea patrol is
low, however, as ticket holders will travel to the site on foot via the promenade they will be in proximity to the water
during ingress and egress.

73 40



To increase sea safety during egress, security and stewarding staff will be in position along the promenade to assist
directing those exiting the site to stay on the promenade. The event is also currently in consultation with two private
lifeguarding firms in relation to employing a team at the event.

The event recognises that there is a high likelihood that boats and boat owners may attempt to spectate from the

water causing a higher than normal risk in the water beyond the festival site. The event is in consultation with the RNLI
with regards to establishing a water exclusion zone in front of the festival site and how to manage seasafety.

74 41



8: Miscellaneous

1.

ul

Pass outs: The festival will operate a no pass-outs policy. Once a ticket holder has entered the festival, they
will not be permitted re-entrance if they exit the site

Animals: No animals are allowed on site unless for the purposes of being a guide, helper or emergency dogs.
Guests of artists and promoter: Guests will be allowed to use the backstage VIP area which is separated from
the production and artist area. There will be a steward presence at all times and the area will be monitored by
the production team to ensure the area is safe. Guests will enter through the main gate, however, will have a
separate pass to enter the area and this will be checked by security and stewards before they are allowed to
enter from the arena.

Skin Piercing: No skin piercing or tattooing will take place onsite

Smoking: No smoking is permitted in enclosed or substantially enclosed areas. Signage will be present and
security and stewards will politely ask people not to smoke inside structures and should they persist, they will
be ejected from the structure

Late Arrivals / higher than expected numbers: The event gates are closed for entry after 19:00 daily. ANyticket
holder arriving after this time will not be permitted entry. The number of tickets is in line with the conditions
of the licence. Security and stewards are positioned around the site in places to ensure that anybody
attempting to enter the site without a valid ticket is politely asked to leave.

Local residents: The event has consulted with chairpersons of the resident blocks surrounding the festival to
understand any fears and concerns surrounding the event. Where possible, the traffic management plan will
include strategies aimed at easing the concerns of this group. The line of communication between residents
and the festival will continue in the lead up to the festival.

75 42



This page is intentionally left blank

76



Agenda ltem 6

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE BCP

Council

Report subject

Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk — Application for a
Premises Licence

Meeting date

27 April 2022

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

Keystone Law have made an application on behalf of Rockwater
Sandbanks & Branksome Limited for a premises licence for off
sales to enable customers to consume food and drink on a decking
structure proposed on the beach or elsewhere.

Off sales of alcohol are requested for 10:00 to 23:00 each day of
the week.

The Licensing Authority has received 56 representations on the
grounds that to grant the application it would undermine the
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder,
prevention of public nuisance, public safety and the protection of
children from harm.

Recommendations

Itis RECOMMENDED that:

Members are asked to decide whether to:-

a) Grant the application for a premises licence as made;

b) Refuse the application for a premises licence;

c) Grant the premises licence subject to additional conditions.

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are asked to make a
decision at the end of the hearing after all relevant parties
have been given the opportunityto speak. Members must give
full reasons for their decision.

Reason for
recommendations

The Licensing Authority may only consider aspects relevant to the
application that have been raised in the representation.

Where representations have been received from a responsible
authority or any other person, and the concerns have not been
resolved through mediation between all parties, the Scheme of
Delegation set out in the Council’s Constitution states that these
applications should be dealt with by the Licensing Sub-Committee.

77




Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Bobbie Dove — Community Safety & Regulatory Services
Corporate Director Jess Gibbons — Chief of Operations
Report Authors Sarah Rogers — Senior Licensing Officer
Wards Canford Cliffs
Classification For Decision
Background

1. An application for a premises licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003
was made on the 11 March 2022. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix
1.

A plan showing the location of the premises is attached at Appendix 2.

Opposite the application site, and part of the proposed operation, is located
Branksome Beach Restaurant. These premises have the benefit of a premises
licence which permits both on and off sales from 10:00 until Midnight, each day of
the week. For information a copy of the premises licence and approved plan,
showing the extent of the licensed area, for the main restaurant is attached at
Appendix 3.

Consultation

4. The application was served on all responsible authorities and the applicant
confirmed that the statutory notices were displayed on site and published in the local
newspaper.

5. DorsetPolice have submitted a representation in addition to 55 further
representations received from other persons. Copies of the representations are
attached at Appendices 4 and 5.

Options Appraisal

6. Before making a decision, Members are asked to consider the following matters:
» The submissions made by or made on behalf of the applicant.

* The representation made by or on behalf of Dorset Police and other persons.

*» The relevant licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder,
prevention of public nuisance, public safety and the protection of children from harm.

* The Licensing Act 2003, appropriate Regulations, Statutory Revised Guidance
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 — April 2018 and the Council’s
Statement of Licensing Policy.

Summary of financial implications
7. N/A

78



Summary of legal implications

8. If Members decide to refuse the application, or attach conditions to the licence which
the applicant does not agree to, the applicant may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court
within a period of 21 days beginning with the day that the applicant is notified, in
writing, of the decision.

Summary of human resources implications
9. NA

Summary of sustainability impact
10. N/A

Summary of public health implications
11. N/A

Summary of equality implications
12. N/A

Summary of risk assessment
13. N/A

Background papers
BCP Council — Statement of Licensing Policy —

https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licencesandpermits/Documents/Licensing/solp2
020.pdf

Hearing Regulations —

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 —

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
data/file/705588/Revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act
2003 April 2018 .pdf

Appendices

1 — Copy Application

2 — Location Plan

3 — Copy Premises Licence for Branksome Beach Restaurant
4 — Copy Representation from Dorset Police

5 — Copy Representations from Other Persons

79


https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licencesandpermits/Documents/Licensing/solp2020.pdf
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/Business/Licencesandpermits/Documents/Licensing/solp2020.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act%20_%202003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act%20_%202003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment%20_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act%20_%202003__April_2018_.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank

80



APPENDIX 1

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Rockwater Sandbanks & Branksome Limited

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk
Pinecliff Road

Post town | Poole Postcode BH13 6LP

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £100,000

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * [ ] please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *

i asa limited company/limited liability
partnership

ii  asa partnership (other than limited
liability)

iii  as an unincorporated association or

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)
iv  other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

c) a recognised club please complete section (B)

oodd o ox

d) a charity please complete section (B)

81



e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

f) a health service body please complete section (B)

OO O

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

please complete section (B)

ga) aperson who is registered under Chapter 2 of [ ] please complete section (B)
Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008
(within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in [ ] please complete section (B)
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one
box below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the

premises for licensable activities; or X
I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or ]
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative ]

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

. Other Title (for
Mr [ Mrs [] Miss [ ] Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth | am 18 yearsold or over [ ]  Please tick yes
Nationality

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 15 for information)

82



SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

. Other Title (for
Mr [ Mrs [] Miss [ ] Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth lam 18 yearsold orover [ ]  Please tick yes
Nationality

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see
note 15 for information)

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
Rockwater Sandbanks & Branksome Limited

Address
The Old Casino, 28 Fourth Avenue, Hove, East Sussex, United Kingdom, BN3 2PJ

Registered number (where applicable)
13507702

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)
Limited Company

83



Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

. . DD MM YYYY
When do you want the premises licence to start?
Y P Asi AP [ | | ]

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, DD MM YYYY
when do you want it to end? R

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

The intention is to refurbish the kiosk and sell alcohol, soft drinks, teas/coffees and food for
takeaway. The hope is to secure use of a decking structure on the beach where patrons who
purchase takeaway food and drinks can consume them. Previously takeaway alcohol has been
sold from the kiosk of Branksome Beach Bar & Restaurant and, if this application is granted as
sought, this will cease in the long term. Hence, in effect, this application is to swap the
locations for the takeaway sale of alcohol. Pre-application consultation has taken place with the
Licensing Authority and the Police, albeit conditions have not yet been agreed.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any ‘

one time, please state the number expected to attend.
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick all that
apply

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) ]

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)

b)  films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

O O o0O0ddod

h)

84



Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

85



Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for On the

Standard days and consumption — please tick (please read premises

timings (please read guidance note 8)

guidance note 7) Off the %4

premises

Day | Start | Finish Both ]

Mon | 10:00 | 23:00 | State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 5)

Tue | 10:00 | 23:00

Wed | 10:00 | 23:00

Thur | 10:00 | 23:00 | Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri | 10:00 | 23:00

Sat | 10:00 | 23:00

Sun | 10:00 | 23:00

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the
checklist at the end of the form):

Name Kathleen Cross

Address

Date of birth I

Postcode | [

685

Personal licence number (if known)

Issuing licensing authority (if known)
New Forest District Council

86




K

None.

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

L

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read

guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

Day | Start Finish
Mon | 10:00 | 23:00
Tue | 10:00 | 23:00
Wed | 10:00 | 23:00
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be
open to the public at different times from those listed in the
Thur | 10:00 | 23:00 | column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Fri 10:00 | 23:00
Sat 10:00 | 23:00
Sun | 10:00 | 23:00

87




M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

Please see the attached Annex A which follows at the end of this application.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Please see the attached Annex A which follows at the end of this application.

¢) Public safety

Please see the attached Annex A which follows at the end of this application.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Please see the attached Annex A which follows at the end of this application.

e) The protection of children from harm

Please see the attached Annex A which follows at the end of this application.

88



Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

e | have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
® | have enclosed the plan of the premises.

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable. ONLINE APPLICATION LA TO SERVE

® | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be
designated premises supervisor, if applicable.

® | understand that I must now advertise my application.

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.

® [Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not
a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United
Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work ]
checking service (please read note 15).

X XX X XK

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO AFINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

o [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] | understand |
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if | am subject to a
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on
of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if |
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance
note 15).

Declaration

e The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing
work relating to a licensable activity) and | have seen a copy of his or

89



her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to
work check using the Home Office online right to work checking
service which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)

Signature \lﬂ«ﬁ/%/m’\ﬁ L"‘J

Date 11 March 2022

Capacity Keystone Law Solicitors Authorised Agents on behalf of Applicant

For joint applications, signature of 2"? applicant or 2" applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please
state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Marilyn Gayle
Keystone Law
48 Chancery Lane

Post town ‘ London Postcode | WC2A 1JF

Telephone number (if any) ‘ ]

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)
Marilyn.Gayle@keystonelaw.co.uk

90



ANNEX A

BRANKSOME BEACH RESTAURANT KIOSK
PINECLIFF ROAD
POOLE BH136LP

The holder of the licence shall undertake a risk assessment with regard to the
deployment of SIA Door Supervisors at different times of the day and on different days
of the week to determine whether it is appropriate to deploy door staff on those days
and/or at any other time(s) and to then implement the outcome of the risk assessment.
A copy of the risk assessment should be made available to an authorised officer of the

Licensing Authority or Dorset Police upon request.

A Refusals Register shall be maintained at the premises and used to record any and all
occasions upon which any person is refused the sale of alcohol (or delivery of the same)
with a note of the reason for the refusal, the date and time and a brief description of the
person(s) concerned. If the refusal relates to a delivery, the record shall also contain a
note of the delivery address and the name of the customer concerned. The register shall
be kept at the premises for a minimum period of 12 months and made available for

inspection by police, council and other authorised officers on request.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises. The log should include the date and time
of the incident and the name of the member of staff involved. The log to be made
available on request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will
record the following:

(a) all crimes reported to the venue as having occurred within or immediately outside
the premises

(b) any complaints received relating to crime and disorder

(c) any incidents of disorder

(d) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons

(e) any faults which have come to light in the CCTV system or searching equipment or

scanning equipment
The incident log shall be kept at the premises for a minimum period of 12 months and

be made available for inspection by police, council and other authorised officers on

request.

91



No beer, lagers or ciders of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or above shall be sold at

the premises.

A CCTV system, shall be installed and thereafter maintained in good working order to
cover all public parts of the premises. The CCTV system shall continually record and
cover areas where alcohol is kept for selection and purchase by the public, whilst the
premises are open for licensable activities and whilst customers remain on the
premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with correct
date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made available for viewing (subject to
Data Protection Act 2018 or any replacement legislation) immediately upon the
reasonable request of Police or an authorised officer and copies provided in a playable
format as soon as is reasonably practicable, provided in each case that requests for
viewing and/or copies are compliant with data protection regulations.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open to the public.

The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which forms
outside the premises is orderly and supervised by door staff or management so as to

ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction to the public highway.

The premises shall maintain membership of the Townwatch scheme (or any successor
scheme); a senior member of staff shall attend all Townwatch meetings unless an
emergency arises preventing such attendance and the premises will support Townwatch

initiatives.

All drinks shall be served in plastic/paper/toughened glass or polycarbonate containers.
The contents of any bottled beverage shall be decanted into a plastic/paper/toughened

glass or polycarbonate container before service to any customer.
The collection of glass and bottles shall be undertaken at regular intervals. Bottle bins

shall be provided at the exit doors and staff shall show due diligence in preventing

bottles and glasses being taken from the premises.

92



No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the

premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or

placed in outside areas between 00.00 (midnight) and 07.00 hours on the following day.

No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises
shall take place between 00.00 (midnight) and 07.00 hours on the following day.

A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available
at all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to

residents and businesses in the vicinity.

Challenge (21/25), shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable forms
of identification are (recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving
licence or passport | holographically marked PASS scheme identification cards).
Appropriate sighage advising customers of the policy shall prominently displayed in

the premises.

All staff working at the premises concerned with the sale of alcohol shall be trained
with regard to the law on restricted sales (to persons under the age of 18 and/or who
are intoxicated) and with regard to the terms and conditions of the premises licence. A
written record of all staff training shall be maintained and kept on the premises and

made available on request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police.

93



¥6

Fire Safety Key Signage

Hy Extract fans connected to lighting circuit & Fire Notice - General sign to B.S. 5499 Pt.1
ducted to outside air. size to allow 6-7 air
changes per hour with 15 miniute overrun. Fire Notice - Staff' Sign to B.S. 5499 Pt .1 (as
amended) ‘Keep Locked Shut When Not In Use'
Fire alarm panel sign to B.S. 5499 Pt. 1
2 Fire alarm sounders Notice on door 'Fire Door Keep Locked' Sign to
B.S.5499 Pt.1
T Fire alarm call point
HOSHIZAKI Notice on door 'Fire Door Keep Clear' Sign to
Mﬁ:g’:_’::a:g'f @' Non maintained emergency light fitting, with a B.S.5499 Pt.1
7O4W x 650D x 15221 three hour battery back-up (all to B.S.5266
1 m Pt.1 1988) Notice on door 'Fire Door Keep Shut' Sign to
LT B.S.5499 Pt.1 (As Amended) Sign to both sides
(o]0] llluminated 3 hour Maintained emergency exit of door
sign, with directional and running man
STORE BRITVIC WALK-IN legends, to BS 5499 Part 1 European All fire extinguishers to be positioned to specialist
directive. supplier and fire officers comments.
&L @’ &v COOLERS V¢
Combined smoke detector/sounder/beacon AW 6 Itr AFFF Water Extinguisher
CELLAR
CO2 COOLERS Combined smoke detector and sounder ~F 6 ltr AFFF Foam Extinguisher
[r —
(sD) Smoke detector AP 6 kg Powder ABC Extinguisher
5 00 &
E Combined heat detector and sounder A.co2 2 kg co2 Extinguisher
o :
P <D G} * Fa
Ol *
éi AN 7 ] coza Door SymbOIS The Fire Alarm, system shown adjacent is indicative only.
i J © N6 @ [ ] ] Fire alarm specialist to Extend / adapt Existing Automatic
) LINGAT PIZZA OVEN Z «x FD 60 S self closing one hour fire door Fire Detection and Alarm System in accordance to BS 5839 :
: (ON STAND) 8 set and smoke seal Part 1 to L3 Standard. Details to be forwarded to Approved
o E. Building control inspector for approval. Fire Alarm System to
o g £ 5 «  FD 30 S self closing half hour fire door be mains powered with secondary battery power supply.
o) _a} = é% '._.D_J set and smoke seal Provide a Smoke detection / Alarm system - zoned to cover,
_ s |5 A) Public House, B) Back of House, C) Roof Terrace, - All
©0 i z @ Vision Panel smoke detectors to be interconnected. Wiring to conform to
o xg |U IEE Wiring Regulations.
‘:S,DJG} HD\-@» 159’69‘ § & @» pb  Panic bar 9res
;‘ ] COMMISSIONING CERTIFICATES - are required for,
= Fire Blanket 1) The Emergency Lighting, 2) The Fire Alarm, (design,
3 installation and testing). Commissioning certificates, for the
R Malg |ECK ”nkt?d :0 ala;ThsyFs'temAlto above are to be given to Architect to be forwarded on to the
= = = unlock on activation or the Fire Alarm Client and Approved building control officer, for approval.
{Eﬂ |:J pp 9 pp
¢ [ o
COFFEE SHACK BAR SHACK P1ZZA SHACK FISH SHACK
————— ——
p—— — — — —
10
F\07
> l ! R Dat D t
“ 0 _
@ — ACCEL CONSULTING LTD
Construction Consultants
BN42 478
N2 == Denotes area to be used for Tel. 01273 934 920
STAFF ENTRANCE / licensable activities G
EXIT (8] Rockwater
‘ = Denotes extent of demise —
Branksome
DRAWING TITLE

Main Shack Licensing Plan

SHACK 4 - BRANKSOME .

PROJECT No. DRAWING No Approved BY
030




G6

89800

406300

406400

406500

406600

1to12

»

Starpoint

89800

APPENDIX 2

89700

Branksome Chine

89700

89600

Solarium

|, Lifeguard Lookout

Car Park

Outfall
\

89600

M
Mga

406300

25m

406400

406500

50m 75m 100m 125m

406600

PLANNING

Rev Date Description

ACCEL CONSULTING LTD
Construction Consultants

20 Southwick Street
Southwick
BN42 478

Tel. 01273 934 920

CLIENT

Rockwater

PROJECT

Branksome

DRAWING TITLE

Location Plan - Main Shack

SCALE
1:1250@A3

DATE
07 Mar 2022

REVISION

PROJECT No

DRAWING No.
001

Approved BY




96

Fire Safety Key Signage

Hy Extract fans connected to lighting circuit & Fire Notice - General sign to B.S. 5499 Pt.1
ducted to outside air. size to allow 6-7 air
changes per hour with 15 miniute overrun. Fire Notice - Staff' Sign to B.S. 5499 Pt .1 (as
amended) ‘Keep Locked Shut When Not In Use'
Fire alarm panel sign to B.S. 5499 Pt. 1
2 Fire alarm sounders Notice on door 'Fire Door Keep Locked' Sign to
B.S.5499 Pt.1
T Fire alarm call point
HOSHIZAKI Notice on door 'Fire Door Keep Clear' Sign to
Mﬁ:g’:_’::a:g'f @' Non maintained emergency light fitting, with a B.S.5499 Pt.1
7O4W x 650D x 15221 three hour battery back-up (all to B.S.5266
1 m Pt.1 1988) Notice on door 'Fire Door Keep Shut' Sign to
LT B.S.5499 Pt.1 (As Amended) Sign to both sides
(o]0] llluminated 3 hour Maintained emergency exit of door
sign, with directional and running man
STORE BRITVIC WALK-IN legends, to BS 5499 Part 1 European All fire extinguishers to be positioned to specialist
directive. supplier and fire officers comments.
&L @’ &v COOLERS V¢
Combined smoke detector/sounder/beacon AW 6 Itr AFFF Water Extinguisher
CELLAR
CO2 COOLERS Combined smoke detector and sounder ~F 6 ltr AFFF Foam Extinguisher
[r —
(sD) Smoke detector AP 6 kg Powder ABC Extinguisher
5 00 &
E Combined heat detector and sounder A.co2 2 kg co2 Extinguisher
o :
P <D G} * Fa
Ol *
éi AN 7 ] coza Door SymbOIS The Fire Alarm, system shown adjacent is indicative only.
i J © N6 @ [ ] ] Fire alarm specialist to Extend / adapt Existing Automatic
) LINGAT PIZZA OVEN Z «x FD 60 S self closing one hour fire door Fire Detection and Alarm System in accordance to BS 5839 :
: (ON STAND) 8 set and smoke seal Part 1 to L3 Standard. Details to be forwarded to Approved
o E. Building control inspector for approval. Fire Alarm System to
o g £ 5 «  FD 30 S self closing half hour fire door be mains powered with secondary battery power supply.
o) _a} = é% '._.D_J set and smoke seal Provide a Smoke detection / Alarm system - zoned to cover,
_ s |5 A) Public House, B) Back of House, C) Roof Terrace, - All
©0 i z @ Vision Panel smoke detectors to be interconnected. Wiring to conform to
o xg |U IEE Wiring Regulations.
‘:S,DJG} HD\-@» 159’69‘ § & @» pb  Panic bar 9res
;‘ ] COMMISSIONING CERTIFICATES - are required for,
= Fire Blanket 1) The Emergency Lighting, 2) The Fire Alarm, (design,
3 installation and testing). Commissioning certificates, for the
R Malg |ECK ”nkt?d :0 ala;ThsyFs'temAlto above are to be given to Architect to be forwarded on to the
= = = unlock on activation or the Fire Alarm Client and Approved building control officer, for approval.
{Eﬂ |:J pp 9 pp
¢ [ o
COFFEE SHACK BAR SHACK P1ZZA SHACK FISH SHACK
————— ——
p—— — — — —
10
F\07
> l ! R Dat D t
“ 0 _
@ — ACCEL CONSULTING LTD
Construction Consultants
BN42 478
N2 == Denotes area to be used for Tel. 01273 934 920
STAFF ENTRANCE / licensable activities G
EXIT (8] Rockwater
‘ = Denotes extent of demise —
Branksome
DRAWING TITLE

Main Shack Licensing Plan

SHACK 4 - BRANKSOME .

PROJECT No. DRAWING No Approved BY
030




APPENDIX 3
PremisesLicence

Part A

Premises licence number: BH183029

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

Branksome Beach Restaurant Branksome Chine Cafe Pinecliff Road

Post town: Poole | Post Code: BH13 6LP

Telephone number: 01202 767235

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Live Music

Recorded Music

Activity like Music / Dance
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Live Music

Monday - 10:00 to 00:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 00:00

Friday - 10:00 to 00:00

Saturday - 10:00 to 00:00

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Performance of live music will take place indoors and outdoors.

Non-standard timings for the performance of live music.

Live music shall take place outdoors during the summer months only, from 1st May to 30th September
inclusive. All outdoors regulated entertainment shall terminate at 23:30 hrs.

Recorded Music

Monday - 10:00 to 00:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 00:00

Friday - 10:00 to 00:00

Saturday - 10:00 to 00:00

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Playing of recorded music will take place indoors and outdoors.

Non-standard timings for the playing of recorded music.

Recorded music shall take place outdoors during the summer months only, from 1st May to 30th
September inclusive. All outdoors regulated entertainment shall terminate at 23:30 hrs.

Activity like Music/ Dance

Monday - 10:00 to 00:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 00:00

Friday - 10:00 to 00:00

Saturday - 10:00 to 00:00

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Entertainment will take place indoors.

Non-standard timings for entertainment.

Anything similar to live and recorded music shall take place outdoors during the summer months only,
from 1st May to 30th September inclusive. All outdoors regulated entertainment shall terminate at
23:30 hrs.

Late Night Refreshment

97



2 0of6

Monday - 23:00 to 00:00

Tuesday - 23:00 to 00:00

Wednesday - 23:00 to 00:00

Thursday - 23:00 to 00:00

Friday - 23:00 to 00:00

Saturday - 23:00 to 00:00

Sunday - 23:00 to 00:00

Provision of late-night refreshments will take place indoors and outdoors.

Supply of Alcohol

Monday - 10:00 to 00:00

Tuesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Wednesday - 10:00 to 00:00

Thursday - 10:00 to 00:00

Friday - 10:00 to 00:00

Saturday - 10:00 to 00:00

Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Non-standard timings for the supply of alcohol.

New Year's Eve from the start of permitted hours on 31st December to the end of permitted hours on
1st January — a continuous period and the premises shall remain open during this period.
Off sales of alcohol shall be permitted until 23:00 hours.

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday - 10:00 to 00:30
Tuesday - 10:00 to 00:30
Wednesday - 10:00 to 00:30
Thursday - 10:00 to 00:30
Friday - 10:00 to 00:30
Saturday - 10:00 to 00:30
Sunday - 10:00 to 00:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies:

Alcohol will be consumed on and off the premises.

98




30f6

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:

Rockwater Sandbanks & Branksome Limited
The Old Casino

28 Fourth Avenue

Hove

East Sussex

BN3 2PJ

Email: lee@rockwater.uk

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable):

13507702

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Ms Kathleen Cross

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

6385
New Forest District Council

99



4 0f6

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

Mandatory Conditions (Sections 19,20,21 LA 2003)

1.1. There shall be no sale or supply of alcohol when there is no designated premises supervisor in
respect of this premises licence or at a time when the said premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or when his/her licence is suspended.

1.2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014

1.3.

(@)

(i)

(ii)
(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

The responsible person mustensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange
or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to -

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on
the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised
to sell or supply alcohal), or

drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti- social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that
other personis unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

1.4. The responsible person mustensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

15.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,

100



1.6.

(@)
(b)

50f6

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either

a holographic mark, or

an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that -

(@)

(if)
(i)
(b)

(€)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures—

beer or cider: % pint;

gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers onthe premises; and

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014

1.7.

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

@ “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —

P=D+(DxV)

Where —

0] P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) Vs the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohal;

(©) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

0) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(i) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a

licence;

101



(d)

(e)

6 of 6

“‘relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

“value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest
penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph
2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

On the ground floor intoxicating liquor shall only be consumed by persons seated at tables.

Noise from regulated entertainment shall not cause a statutory nuisance.

Notices shall be displayed prominently at all exits requesting customers leave the premises and
surrounding areas quietly.

A refusals register shall be maintained at the premises and all refusals shall be documented and
will include the reason for refusal.

Any person who appears to be under the age of 25 shall be asked to provide proof of age prior to
the purchase of alcohol.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

N/A

Annex 4 - Plans

This licence is issued in accordance with the plans submitted with the application.

102



I ]
L |
i A0 Ny
Wﬁll.||! & 1”|_| =
|
..... bl
|
|
{
$

M2

Bencsomne. Banch Resiounid

neC\ U K -

]|

Ground Floor Loose Furniture Plan (01.12.01)

G - e e e - et

RN

| &
A B
g 0\
| I—
e e o
! 1
| U
! y
_m[-- I
- !
A .
s )
&

First Floor Loose Furniture Plan (03.12.01)

103



PremisesLicence

Part B
Premises licence number: BH183029

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

Branksome Beach Restaurant Branksome Chine Cafe Pinecliff Road

Post town: Poole | Post Code: BH13 6LP

Telephone number: 01202 767235

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Live Music, Recorded Music, Activity like Music / Dance, Late Night Refreshment, Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

Live Music: (Indoors and Outdoors) Monday to Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Non-standard timings for the performance of live music.

Live music shall take place outdoors during the summer months only, from 1st May to 30th September
inclusive. All outdoors regulated entertainment shall terminate at 23:30 hrs.

Recorded Music: (Indoors and Outdoors) Monday to Sunday- 10:00 to 00:00

Non-standard timings for the playing of recorded music.

Recorded music shall take place outdoors during the summer months only, from 1st May to 30th September
inclusive. All outdoors regulated entertainment shall terminate at 23:30 hrs.

Activity like Music / Dance: (Indoors) Monday to Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Non-standard timings for entertainment.

Anything similar to live and recorded music shall take place outdoors during the summer months only, from
1st May to 30th September inclusive. All outdoors regulated entertainment shall terminate at 23:30 hrs.
Late Night Refreshment: (Indoors and Outdoors) Monday to Sunday- 23:00 to 00:

Supply of Alcohol: Monday to Sunday - 10:00 to 00:00

Non-standard timings for the supply of alcohol.

New Years Eve from the start of permitted hours on 31st December to the end of permitted hours on 1st
January — a continuous period and the premises shall remain open during this period.

Off sales of alcohol shall be permitted until 23:00 hours.

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Sunday - 10:00 to 00:30

Where thelicence authorises supplies of alcohol whetherthese are on and/ or off supplies:

Alcohol will be consumed on and off the premises.

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:

Rockwater Sandbanks & Branksome Limited, The Old Casino, 28 Fourth Avenue, Hove, East Sussex, BN3
2PJ Email: lee@rockwater.uk

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable):

13507702

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of
alcohol:

Ms Kathleen Cross

State whether accessto the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

N/A

Issued: 04 October 2005 Mrs Nananka Randle : :
Revised: 07 January 2022 {Transfer} Licensing Manager M M

104




APPENDIX 4

Good morning

Further to the application in relation to Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk, Dorset Police is of the opinion
that the conditions as detailed do not offer the assurances that the Licensing Objectives of the Prevention
of Crime and Disorder and Public Safety will be promoted, therefore on behalf of the Chief Officer of
Dorset Police, we wish to submit a representation.

Dorset Police is however of the view that, pending further mediation , this representation may be
withdrawn.

Kind regards,

DORSET L.oui.seBl.JsfieId
Po LI C E Licensing Officer

Drug & Alcohol Harm Reduction Team
Bournemouth Divisional Headquarters
5 Madeira Road

Bournemouth

Dorset Police

BH1 1QQ

105



This page is intentionally left blank

106



APPENDIX 5

Representations

APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE —BRANKSOME BEACH
RESTAURANT KIOSK

SARAH ROGERS - LICENSING

107



Branksome Beach Restaurant and Kiosk, Reference 194927

We strongly object tothe application foralicence for off sales of alcohol between the hours of 10.00-
23.00 at the above location forthe following reasons

--Thereisnoneedfora new outlettosell alcohol at Branksome Beach as there is already adequ ate
provisionin nearby Canford Cliffs, Sandbanks and Westbourne

--Sales of alcohol would attract those who participate in late night drinking parties which can be noisy,
violentand generate significantlitter as we have seen nearby, and which would be totally out of
context with a high quality residential area

-- High levels of late night noise would be detrimental to the sleeping patterns of nearby residents
--The car park at Branksome is often full and there are no safe places for overflow parking nearby.
Increased trafficflow in and out of the car park would be a safety hazard particularly with the
pedestrian crossing nearby

--The unwelcome precedent setin Canford Cliffs and Sandbanks with respect to off sales of alcohol,
noise, litter, violence and traffic problems would be totally out character at Branksome Beach
--This Applicationis for the benefit of one individualwho has made no attempt to consult or share
plans and residentsinterests and safety have been completelyignored

We expect our comments will be factored-in to your consideration of the above Application

108



Dear Sirs

We understand that a licensing application has recently been submitted on behalf of the
proposed Rockwater development at Branksome Chine Cafe.

As a local resident we would like to object to the granting of a licence or a restriction on the
sale of alcohol to within the premises only when food is consumed.

Our reasons for the objection are:

1. The prevention of public nuisance which could include:

Noise from people drinking late at night.

Overspill of people drinking onto the beach with the inherent increase in litter on our
Blue Flag Beach.

Families driven away from beach by loutish behaviour.

People returning to cars late at night both in the inadequate adjacent parking and the
surrounding residential roads.

2. Public Safety
Road users using the car park and surrounding roads at risk from inebriated people.
Danger for pedestrians and cyclists within the car park and at entrance.

3. Prevention of crime and disorder.

Late night and all day drinking can lead to anti-social behaviour.

Potential for drinking and driving around residential roads with potential danger to
residents.

We thank for your consideration of the points we have made.

109



| wish to object to the above application for a late night license as | am very concerned the
negative impact it will have in this quiet residential area.

1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The outdoor drinking from kiosk could lead to increased anti-social behaviour in this residential
area.

It encourages drinking and driving.

2. Public Safety

Road users using the car park will be at risk from inebriated people.

Dangerous crossing by beach corner with blind corner - don’t need additional danger. Busiest
entry point to the beach for pedestrians and thoroughfare with bikes and pedestrians passing
doesn'’t fit with alcohol purchases until 11 pm 7 days a week.

The Kiosk is located where the train to and from Bournemouth, which is popular with families,
makes its turn. There are three barbecues there and there is congestion during summer.

3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Noise from late-night music

Noise from visitors visiting the shop 24/7 Encouraging late-night drinking on the beach which
will become a ‘NO GO AREA’

Visitors returning to cars late at night in this residential area.

4., Protection of Children from Harm

The family beach and alcohol don’t go together.
Children visiting the shop for ice-cream will be mixing with party people.

110



Sent: 14 March 2022 17:16

To: Licensing Com <licensing@bcpcouncil.gov. uk>

Cc

Subject: Reference 194927 - Rockwater Sandbanks & Branksome Limited

Sirs/Madam,

It is our intention to submit a reasoned objection to the application for a licence for the
Supply of Alcohol (off sales only) between 10:00 to 23:00 each day of the week in
relation Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk.

In the meantime, please accept this email as an objection to the application.

By way of clarification, would BCP please confirm more precisely the location of the
Kiosk? Is a different location to the Branksome Chine Café?

To enable us to submit a full and reasoned objection, it would be helpful to understand
whether it is possible to access on line information on BCP licenced premises along
the Bournemouth/Poole sea front?

If not available on line, how/where can this information be accessed?

Thank you for your assistance.

Ms Rogers,
Thank you for the clarification.

‘The hope is to secure use of a decking structure on the beach...” goes beyond what
exists by way of ad hoc alcohol sales.

It is teling that none of the Conditions Offered address the creation, in effect, of a
bespoke drinking area on the beach. No such area currently exists.

By default, a decking structure effectively extends the foot print of the Branksome
Beach Café. Which, tellingly, is not part of the Planning Permission Application
currently before BCP.

Your clarification suggests the intention of extending of licenced premises by unsubtle
stealth.

The objection remains and, with the benefit of your clarification, will be documented
fully.

111


mailto:licensing@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Dear Licensing Team,

| wish to object to the above application to turn the Branksome Chine shop into an off-licence
open till 11 pm 7 days a week.

| live overlooking the carpark and am concerned about increased noise and disturbance, traffic
congestion, parking problems, gatherings of people late at night, litter etc as a result of this
change of use. 'm particularly concerned about Rockwater’s plans for the cafe and have
objected to those too.

Branksome Chine has always been a family friendly place and an off-licence sends completely
the wrong message and will encourage drinking of alcohol and possible resulting bad
behaviour on the beach in front of children and so on. There seems to have been a lack of
information re these plans but | understand Rockwater wants decking onto the beach so
people can sit and drink there. This is a complete change of cultural use of our wonderful
beach and I really hope you will not allow it to go ahead.

| can understand that the shop needs modernising but this would lead to trouble the area
would not want. Please do not allow this development which will upset a lot of people and
cause a detrimental change to Branksome Chine.

Yours sincerely,

112



Dear Sarah

| understand thatthe new owners of Branksome Chine Cafe have applied foranalcohol licence in the
kiosk attached to the cafe from 10am until midnight.

I'm a resident of Branksome Towers in Westminster Road and am very concerned about the late night

licence requestsince | fearit will encourage drunken, anti social behaviour on the beach, promenade,
car park and surrounding areas.

Under the formerowners the restaurant closed at 10 pm whichin my opinionis acceptable.

Branksome Parkisa quiet neighbourhood and quite unsuited to late night revelling. Bournemouth
provides many facilities forthose who wish to drink late into the night. I'm sure the Police have enough
to do maintaininglaw and orderat nightin Bournemouth, without having to send officers to
Branksome Chine to deal with drunken and disorderly trouble makers.

The beach huts at Branksome Towers have beenvandalised and broken into late at night by drunks on
a number of occasions and we fearthe longerlicensing hours requested will exacerbate this problem.

| would therefore earnestly request thatyou limit the alcohol licence requested to perhaps noon until
10 pm which is compatible with afamily beach and a relatively quiet residential area.

Yours sincerely

113



Dear Sarah,

we understand that the new owners of Branksome Chine Cafe have applied for an
extended alcohol licence to Midnight.

As nearby elderly residents we are extremely concerned about this late night licence
request. It will almost certainly encourage loud and anti-social behaviour around the
cafe and surrounding areas until midnight and beyond. The former owner closed the
restaurant by 10pm which was acceptable and hardly ever caused problems.

Branksome Park, being just a residential neighbourhood, is most unsuited to late night
revelling. Nearby Bournemouth provides inumerable facilities for those who wish to
drink and celebrate late into the night.

We plead that the alcohol licence requested remain no later than 10pm, compatible
with a quiet residential area.

Yours sincerely

114



Dear Sarah ,

It has been brought to my attention that you are considering allowing an Alcohol License to the
shop that is at Branksome Chine.

| would like to say | have had a beach chalet since 1982 at Branksome
Chine, and seen many changes in that time, mostly not for the good .

It will be more like Benidorm than Branksome..

The behaviour of the general public as it is everywhere is not good any more . | have
witnessed, fights alcohol on the beach with large groups . No regards for anyone else ,
children old people these groups just turn up and will drink all day . If you allow this to go
through, | can see lots more vandalism , litter ,anti social behaviour .

Camping on the beach that the council took days to get people removed, lastyear . Even
camping in the car park again took days to get them removed . The toilets close at 10 so they
just got a portable loo and dug it in the sand .

No extra Police or beach wardens , the BBQ the council put in is not well thought out . Do the
people who pass these changes ever go to the beach and see what goes on . | don't think so.

| urge you to reconsider this application .

115



Dear Ms Butt,

| was very disappointed to hear at last night's Poole Beach Hut Users Association
meeting that Luke Davis is planning to sell alcohol from the ice cream and bucket and
spade shop at Branksome Chine.

We have seen the problems drinking alcohol brings at Bournemouth beach - anti-
social behaviour, litter, damage to the beach, even stabbings. Branksome Chine is a
beach where families come for a safe day out. It is not a place for alcohol to be drunk
on the beach.

Please keep the shop for children, and don’t allow alcohol to be sold there.

Thank you

116



10

Dear Council

We are appealing against the application to apply for a licence to sell ‘off sales’ Alcohol at
Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk.

This will bring unwanted gatherings of youths and bad behaviour and will inevitably result in
increased beach debris in particular broken bottles and dangerous glass. This is often hidden
in the sand waiting to injure and is very dangerous (as we have seen in other parts of the
beach).

The area already has licensed premises available to anyone who wants an alcoholic drink and
there is nothing to stop people bringing their own food and drink on to the beach, but to sell ‘off
sales’ in a predominately residential area will only encourage youths, bad and aggressive
behaviour, increased litter and not a pleasant place to be for young families and others.

| encourage you to refuse the licence.

117



11

Dear Sirs

| am the owner of a Branksome Beach Chalet and must object to the 10 to 11pm alcohol sales
license. It will further encourage inappropriate and noisy behaviour thus destroying the relative
peace and family environment existing for so long! Extra litter and broken glass will be
additional negatives especially at public Holidays etc

People can bring their own alcohol or consume it in the restaurant opposite! They do not need
further encouragement !!!

With thanks

118



12

Sent: Friday, 25 March 2022, 11:53:21 GMT

Subject: APP/22/00159/F

| write regarding the Application APP/22/00159/F Reference 194927 Branksome Beach Kiosk

For many years the established Kiosk has been selling food,non alcoholic beverages and beach goods
which are predominantly oriented to young children and families.

The kiosk is adjacent to the turning area for the land train and in close proximity to the Promenade
where cyclists frequently and flagrantly breach the regulations regarding non use of the promenade
during July and August and the 10 mph speed limit, often witnessed by council employees who state

they are unable or unwilling to intervene. If this attitude is combined with excessive alc ohol
consumption, then itis only a matter of time before a tragedy occurs.

Serious disorder occurred in Sandbanks last year as a result of excessive alcohol consumption which
resulted in the injury of two police officers. Police dogs and the Police helicopter had to be deployed.
Glass bottles were thrown and individuals were hospitalised ,one with serious head and hand injuries.
Police stated" An operation would continue throughout the summer to prevent large groups of teenagers
from consuming alcohol in the area, racing vehicles, starting fires on the beaches or camping"

In addition ,there was the tragic rape of a 15 year old girl in the sea off Bournemouth. There is
overwhelming evidence that there is a direct relationship between alcohol consumption and serious
disorder.

This area is poorly served by public transport

There are already severe issues related to parking in the area within at least one mile radius of the
proposed alcohol off sales site.The kiosk is adjacent to the main pedestrian and emergency access
point.

The proposed hours of operation appear to have no consideration whatsoever for local residents

Protection of children from harm should be at the centre of any such application and appears to have
been ignored

No thought has been given to noise and light nuisance,especially bearing in mind the proximity of the
Kiosk to the flats abowe it.

In conclusion,the movement of the off sales from its current location at the East of the Restaurant Site to
the proposed site at the West appears ill considered,and to offer very significant disadvantages to
everyone except the site operators,who have failed to consider the impact of their proposal in any
meaningful way.lt is reasonable to predict that this lack of consideration will continue if consent is
granted.

To safeguard this area for the safe use of families it would appear that this application should be refused
and a PSPO established in the area surrounding Branksome Beach Cafe (also referred to as
Branksome Chine Cafe) to prevent crime ,disorder and to protect children from harm

119



13

Dear BCP Licensing,
| wish to object to the above licensing application for the below reasons;

Prevention of Crime & Disorder

| am concerned that allowing off sales throughout the day and late into the night from
the kiosk that currently mainly sells ice cream will introduce disorderly and anti-social
behaviour to a quiet residential family area. We have seen the problems that outside
drinking has caused in the local area over the last few summers. Operation Sandman
has been instigated at great expense to control the fallout from outside drinking around
Sandbanks and Canford Cliffs. Allowing this licence would only exacerbate the issue
so in the interests of preventing crime and disorder the licence application should be
rejected.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The granting of this application for off-sales will increase the noise levels throughout
the day in what is currently a quiet residential family area. As has been stated in the
numerous planning objections noise travels very easily inthis area. Therefore, the
application should be rejected or substantially curtailed in order to reduce all-day
outdoor drinking which will undoubtedly increase noise levels for local residents and
cause a public nuisance

Public Safety

The increased footfall of inebriated people inthe narrow area around the kiosk will
likely lead to regular collisions between pedestrians, cyclists and e-scooters. This is
already a problem, with children being injured, which will only be exacerbated by the
addition of large numbers of drunk people in a concentrated area. This is in addition to
the negative impact on public safety through increased crime and disorder mentioned
above.

The Protection of Children from Harm

, like many others in the locale, have two young children. | am concerned that their
enjoyment of the local area will be severely impinged upon if Branksome Beach
Restaurant Kiosk is permitted to become an all-day drinking venue. Large groups of
adults drinking in what is currently a family beach area will make mine and other
children feel unsafe when trying to enjoy time at the beach. This is particularly
pertinent in relation to the well-publicised incidents of sexual assault along the coast in
the summer. We must protect other children from such incidents and encouraging all
day drinking on a family beach works against that

objective.

Please could you confirm receipt and how | can be kept informed regarding
developments with the application.

120



14

| am writing to oppose the application for licencing of the Branksome Beach Kiosk .

Alcohol consumption is widely acknowledged to promote aggressive antisocial behaviour - a lot of
research has been undertaken since the granting of the original licence of the off sales from Branksome
Beach Cafe (Branksome Chine Cafe) .

Branksome Beach is a popular destination for families with small children - not only is there concern
about the risk of physical harm but also of learnt behaviour .

With alcohol consumption there will be an increase in the level of noise and plastic pollution which is
again is an issue that has only relatively recently been acknowledged as damaging the environment -in
particular the maritime environment - a factor which would not have been considered in granting the
original licence.

I think it behoves the council to ewolve and refuse this licence application .

121



15

| must object to the granting of a licence for the reasons that

1. Thereisalready considerablevandalism to beach huts and likely excessive drinking will only
uncrease this

2. Thereare incidents of men meetingin the woods and carparkin the chine forunsavourly
behaviourwhich could increase with alchohol

3. Youngchildrenandadukts needtofeel safe especiallyin the evenings and the consumption of

alchohol freely available will make this unlikely and downgrade the good reputation that Poole
beaches have as a holidayresort

4. |objectmoststronglyto thisapplication and the remifications this could have on the area

122



16

| wish to strongly object to the changes proposed by Rockwater at Branksome Chine.

This is a family beach and having alcohol served all day will change the total ambiance of the
area. There is limited parking and not enough space now let alone adding another dimension-
the addition noise and anti social behaviour is a disaster waiting to happen.

If this goes ahead will the area be policed?

123



17

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing

Objective. OBTECT Tz Frr71 AT op

(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless You feel it is relevant )

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

Pofewan aq AT —Sosau AN LR DAnAGe
= enen 3= .

The Prevention of Public Nuisance: . _
TR 10 A [rtrly AEZ — %’ij_;’f oy fﬁm«f// ZEZN

CHkeTE - I _ frTr Bl . T S o ool iR 7

FuClic Aace ARY ARE T3 “Fieglic a wperpocts

Public Safety:
AL ARodc .

The Protection of Children from Harm:

I Jite fovenior oF Fadue Aswisince e
TS A RTRawe  eam)

L~ Fo oS
Benhe AR |

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

ﬂwfr'ro;f Vi /‘g Vﬁ?’

| declare that the f%n‘nation I have provided is true and correct.

124



18

Premises Details (Please give as much information as possible)

Application Ref: 19 .92 F
Name of Premises: Bemcu Syop

IAddress of Premises: B ok sor e Chl-h& Be’&“

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.

(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant.)

'The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:
Busikson. %e«cq (5 @NLIT AP Wi~ DebZnicol oY q/PM -
Ci&vide N oFf-iiCepel Thobe T LGPA wWOULd L7r a

Yoouls PEsPuc O YLK vM A RABC(C noek, CLEAT NG Disopleh,

The Prevention of Public Nuisance:
Tuae Cicadsed TSELD AT Sauddanis \» b & SE~TRE

OF SEUEL%E Pu-doie Momsadeg, 17 womap ke VR 2o NS BLE
T> REPLEAT THi; MSTARE AT BRruvcsme Reacw,

Public Safety:

The Protection of Children from Harm:

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

| declare that the information | have provided is true and correct.

125



19

Ref LAO3Premises licence Application
Branksome Beach

Application

Rockwater Sandbanks &Branksome Ltd

| register objection to the above application for a license for Branksome Beach Restaurant
Kiosk Should a similar application be lodged for Sandbanks Beach the same criteria will apply
The reasons are as follows

1 A danger to Children There will inevitably be broken glass on the promenade and on the
sand .Children and Adults will then cut their feet on the glass as mainly shoes are not worn at
the Beach

2 The danger that alcohol will impair the quality of drivers leaving the beach

3 The increase on Emergency Services eg Sea and Lifeguard should alcohol impair the
judgement of people entering the seafor a swim

4 The increase of Anti Social Behaviour inevitable where alcohol is readily available

| urge you to reject this application

126



20

| object to Rockwater Sandbanks & Branksome Ltd being granted a license to sell
alcohol at the Pinecliff Road Premises, because,;

This will increase litter on the beach,
There is already enough broken glass on the sand and do not want any more,
Drunken people have broken windows in the beach huts,

Increase the opportunity for anti-social behaviour.

With these factors it would be wrong to grant a license to sell alcohol.

127



21

| object to the above application to turn the Branksome Chine shop into an off-licence
open till 11 pm 7 days a week.

The ambience of this area would be spoilt by late night drinkers (a cause of potential
disturbance), and traffic congestion.

The off-licence would facilitate drinking, & inebriation, which may well increase
unacceptable behaviour, in public areas.

Please don’t allow this development, as it would cause a detrimental change to the
Branksome Chine area.

128



22

As owners of a beach hut at Branksome Chine, we are extremely concerned there has
been an application for the Kiosk for an Alcohol Licence at the beach from 10 A.M. to
11 P.M.

Branksome Chine has always been a family beach with a variety of water sports.

Should this application be approved it would result in increased litter pollution,
probable drunkeness leading to vandalism. The toilets are closed at 10 P.M. which
could lead to beach fouling and camping on the beach.

We note that the council have stated that security staff are a condition of the licence so
obviously BCP have reservations about this application.

129



23

Dear Licensing Team

I would like to express my dismay at the application for the off sales supply of alcohol
at the Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk. | am a neighbour of the Branksome Beach
Kiosk and Restaurant, | live at Branksome Towers. | strongly object to the granting of a
licence for the following reasons:

A. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

1. Selling alcohol to passers by will encourage antisocial behaviour in an area with
limited lighting and very little policing.

2. Due to its remoteness, It is likely that many customers would drive to this
location. Sales of take away alcohol will encourage drinking and driving.

B. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

1. The kiosk and restaurant are in a very quiet residential area. All around the
restaurant are residential houses and flats. There are no other commercial
operations. The application is for the hours of 10 in the morning until 11 o'clock
at night. This is likely to have a very detrimental impact on the area. Creating
huge problems due the noise, rowdy behaviour, and increased parking on roads
around that area. The hours of 10 in the morning until 11 o'clock at night may be
appropriate in a city centre location but are not appropriate here. These hours
are far too long.

2. The cafe is located in the mouth of Branksome Chine, meaning it is in a valley
with the ground rising on both sides. This has the effect of amplifying sound so
that it travels a long way. The noise from the inevitable late night anti-social
behaviour will be a real problem for the surrounding residential area.

C. Public Safety

Mixing swimming, driving and alcohol is a direct threat to public safety. This could
hardly be a worse location for the off sale of alcohol.

D. The Protection of Children from Harm

The train running along the promenade turns round at this point. This will bring children
into direct contact people consuming alcohol.

The kiosk has been a place where children buy ice creams and bucket and spades.
Mixing this with sales of alcohol would expose children to harm.

I would also like to point out that the application has omitted to give details of the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) as required by law.

| call on the Council and Police to act responsibly and reject this application.

130



24

Premises Details (Please give as much information as possibie)

Application Ref: 194972 F

Name of Premises: RRANKSOME CHINE TcE CREAM CHOP

Address of Premises: )5 cAR PARK SHoP 1S NoT A KIoSK,
T A FUY FUNCTIONTNG SHOP

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Obijective.
(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant.)

T“ﬁ@?&’ﬁ“ﬁﬁ?&"ﬁﬂe TIPSR A, our MEMBERS ARE SICK. OF

NE To QUR BEACH HUTS Nob ! o
_’%ﬂmﬁ%é ?f? ALLOWED IT WiLL CERTAINKY INCREASEf

T Prevention of PUble NISS2E" LI GHT REVELLER | W ITH NO PUBLIC

ToIETS OPEN, CONSEG UENTLY BEACH HUTS witl B&
LSED AND DAMAGED. CouNci DECK CHAIRS BROKEN
UpP AND NO DOUBT USED AS WEAPSNS OR BURNED.

Public Safely: —nor 1L BE MORE DRUNK THAN EVER
IWITH No RANGERS OR PoUCE OUT OF HOURS

The Prot%c/t!i_?r; fj gh;hdée:f fngHEE\erC:‘[ uT AT @ UEING Eo R TcE CREAMS

& CIMPLE PLEASURE, WILL NoT HAPPEN (ITH DRINK
SALES .

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:
TUAN HRPPY To HAVE MY DETAILS SHARED
BT DoNOT (WANT To HEDIATE WITH ROCKWATER

DuT | Do WANT To SPEAK AT LICENSING COMMITIES

| declare thatthe ipformgation | have provided is true and correct.

131




25

Premises Details (Please give as much information as possible)

Application Ref:  |0) Lch7 oL

Name of Premises: [\ fese11 o (huind 572 Gt Al b -
/Address of Premises: ETWSG'W‘-@ Chime Cow Pouk

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.
(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant. )

The Prevention of Crime and D rder QJZU
Hewe % Medn u’a,quﬂ,mw uﬁ

S WM" f’O _H%a 30 m% pnenih b‘e
_@xmw AMEFE’E wbbd,[%ﬁ M{’i’

The Pre\-elmu ofPubhc Nu;sanca ')CLG{ MLL,QM
S e ’%iﬁ%ﬁbﬁ Ly o g

Public Safety: [\[[F\. T AW |GTIa WWW

PR DA by e ] A

ruiedron of Children from Herh: 7

3

mm ity cgw © He mﬁw %
73101,“@ Il
b\mﬂkjm{? dUl v \‘LJ

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the folluwmg rem

mwmmﬁbe

Ao

| declare that the information | have provided is true and correct.
£

132



26

Premises Details (Please give as much information as possible)

Application Ref: APP/22/00159/F

Name of Premises: Branksome Chine Cafe

IAddress of Premises:

Pinecliff Road, Poole, BH13 6LP

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.
(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant.)

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

| have a beach hut at Shore Road - some evenings, people with alcoholic drinks purchased
in Tesco come to the beach. They are very loud and threatening - | would not wish to see
similar scenes at Branksome Chine

The Prevention of Public Nuisance:

If the licence is granted - there is a strong possibility of drunken, loud behaviour on our
beautiful beach in the evenings.

Public Safety:

The Protection of Children from Harm:

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

| do not wish my email address or phone number to be published

| declare that the information | have provided is true and comect.

133




27

Application Ref APP/22/00 159F

Branksome Beach Kiosk BH13 6LP

| wish to strongly object to the licensing application on the following grounds
1. Branksome Beach Cafe already provides the facility to purchase alcohol.
2. The kiosk is in a residential area which is also a conservation area.

3. There is a substantial risk of criminal and anti-social behaviour.

4. There are Public Nuisance issues including noise, community safety, litter and a severe lack
of car parking.

5. There is an increased risk to Public Safety (alcohol induced violence, anyone being hurt or
having an accident).

6. The risk of under age drinking (The protection of children from harm).

7.1 do not wish my details to be included in the Public Documents as there is a risk of
intimidation and harassment.

134



28

Dear Sirs

We are owner occupiers of a flat on the sea side of Branksome Grange in Lakeside Road,Poole, BH13
6LR . In effect we owerlook what is currently the rear of the Branksome Beach Restaurant and wish to
give notice of our objection to the application by the Applicant.

1. The prevention of crime and disorder

By reason of the hours being sort for the off sale of alcohol from the Kiosk it is our view that the sale of
alcohol particularly at night is extremely likely to result in crime and disorder . It will attract the wrong
type of individual who will arrive at the location using some form of mechanised transport. Such persons
will have had plenty of opportunity of purchasing alcohol in already existing off sale facilities in other
parts of the conurbation. In our view it is inadvisable at all times of the day and night for the sale of
alcohol to be adjacent public male and female toilets.

2. The prevention of public nuisance

The arrival and departure of motorised traffic particularly late into the night with rewing up of cars and
motorbikes and the likely improper use of the car park itself will without doubt create public nuisance
particularly to the occupiers of living accommodation in close proximity to the application premises. The
extended use of the first floor of the restaurant itself for the purposes that the applicant intends will only
serne to heighten/increase the public nuisance element.

3. Public Safety.

Increased use of the public car park lying between Branksome Beach Restaurant and the Kiosk will
further increase the danger to public safety particularly in terms of access and egress from and to
Pinecliff Road. The latter is already difficult and can on occasions become dangerous.

4. Protection of children from harm .

It appears that the Kiosk has already been gutted internally at what is very much a family venue formerly
providing buckets and spades and other items for use by children on the beach and for the supply of soft
drinks and bacon butties for the family. It has always been a happy sight to see children holding daddy
or mummy’s hand awaiting their turn in the queue to make their purchases. Children need to be
protected from the continuous sale of alcohol as though life cannot exist without it . We simply do not
understand why the applicant requires 2 off license premise within approximately 100 yds of each other .
To say the least it is overkill and unwise .

General comments which can relate to all or some of the above we are not satisfied that the applicant
and those operating the applicant are fit and proper persons to operate and effectively ensure proper
owersight and control of the implementation of the license they seek . It is realised that the police will be
involved in making their own enquiries as part of the standard procedures following the application for a
new license. The applicant refers to a switching of the license held by the kiosk on the western side and
part of Branksome Beach Cafe . He will be perfectly aware that liquor licenses cannot be transferred
from one property to another. His reference to “transferring” can only serve to mislead the public . It is
understood from what the applicants have themselves said that the license cowering the kiosk on the
western side and part of Branksome Beach Cafe is to be retained .

The above comments are made so that you may be aware of our objections and concerns at what the
applicant intends . It is factors such as this and their own press statements that do not engender peace
and satisfaction as to the capability of those concerned in holding and operating Liquor Licenses
particularly those for consuming alcohol from off sale premises

135



29

k

Premises Details (Please give as much information as possible)

Application Ref: L ceNSING NCT 20605 —

Name of Premises:  PRANKSONE ( #iIN E— FoRpNCR 1CE  CREAMN SHOP

Address of Premises: Ay oM € CHING
PoolL &

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.
(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant.)

k The Prevention of Crim

and Disorde
“the appli ealien te ﬂ) [c' ol fsun | am o NPM ab bre fomes
1€ cteégpn sbap a} Prasdscpe Qine (4 o fecipe v Azazker end zuld

albrack div Lenl bvvrs M1 :?fmiL becwol, o; fmhe‘)awmlmﬁwt

S ot kd i Aeed  on by wdl) alecka]
vihen ther I; uU‘f"’ ai\kx\MC’ Chine Kc)faﬂz'nvw R aladial je Sereid
The Prevention of Public Nuisance: eifle/ woth o peal n .o Lestauard of en tHe
U f Tesmoce

[ Hus ;\placbunl of Hei s l(eahon choo{d b ﬂlﬂfd I

mu'fbm‘gjj he n (vlwvac’)‘c*/‘ s /%WG@M ki he Mgm'x’r"‘ Canferd
ﬂ‘({f“’ are en the doerdep, ‘J‘L’(d pecple need ale

flecse rehun the shon fesiver a/a/u ;ellu«q ice_cream, solls
Rablic-Safety: ar l\l({;\ Vléw ;,,_'2'\/)4,/‘5 v \/chOL ; a(L\VJC‘bddc B :

T

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

— 1 declare that the information | have orovided is trie and correct

136



30

April 6 2022
Dear Sir/Madam
| wish to object to the application for a new license for the beach kiosk at Branksome Beach.

Whilst the revamping of the kiosk is welcomed the licensed drink sales are not necessary. The
beach has a reputation of a family beach predominantly with young children with life guards
provided and as such alcohol is not a necessity.

Children’s welfare is at risk the kiosk is adjacent to the ladies toilet which is constantly in use
by mothers with their young children.

The council have three electric barbecue stations on the promenade also a new turning circle
for the land train thus the congestion will increase.

The parking is at breaking point on sunny days. In the season this point is born out by the
amount of parking tickets issued by the council. Branksome beach and canford cliffs are
already blighted with anti social behaviour on the seafront in recent summers indeed a
stabbing at canford cliffs.

| note that one of the conditions you feel necessaryto attach to a license is the provisions of
door supervisors. Therefore you are anticipating anti social behaviour and as a family beach
this application should fail. The police have already identified this area as a problem of anti
social behaviour and are running the initiative Operation Sandman from Easter to September.

This area is residential with a great number of retirees whom are unlikey to frequent beach
drinking. The project is therefore designed not for the local residents

.The provision of licensed premises on the sea front in Bournemouth is substantial and meets

the need. Bournemouth/Poole holiday reputation is at stake moving away from a family resort
to a Blackpool/Benidorm stag and hen party drinking destination.

137



31

Reasons for Representation:

The prevention of crime and disorder:
Objection on the following grounds: -

1. Operation Sandman operates from Easter to September in the area in an attempt to control
the well documented and continuing problems in the location. These problems include but are
not limited to-

Antisocial Behaviour (ABS), teen and vehicle. Late night racing
Unlicensed parties and gatherings

Drunken and drug induced behaviour in public areas lllegal encampments
Littering

Rape and sexual assault Serious assault — stabbing Drink driving

Criminal damage

Fighting between gangs. Violent and disorderly behaviour.

The proposal to sell off premises alcohol for extended hours (to those currently operated as
opposed to licensed) would keenly encourage increased numbers and ultimately alcohol
driven crime as above. A perfect gathering location would be created.

Outside of the summer months the crime continues.

There is currently a license for off premises sales at the café kiosk. Whilst I note that it is
“proposed” for these sales to be ended at some future date, until the sales are ended the
current license application, should it be granted, will result in two off premises alcohol sales
points significantly increasing the prospects of drunken behaviour and all that this encourages
as setout herein.

The prevention of Public Nuisance
Objection on the following grounds: -
2. Environmental danger.

A) Physical hazards will result from the sale of off premises alcohol from containers.
The beach is a vast area and disposal of containers will not be limited to the
Applicants designated areas. Animals (wild — Sand Lizards and domestic), children
and fitness enthusiasts all enjoy the beach. Injury is likely to occur.

B) Chemical hazards will result from disregarded alcohol and or accompanying
snacks. Children and animals being particularly susceptible to injury.

C) Biological hazards will result from wildlife attracted to the alcohol and food
debris. Seagulls can seriously injure to obtain food; their waste can carry disease.
The area has just experienced an outbreak of avian flu. Children will be specifically
susceptible. The experienced behaviour of members of the public using areas of
the beach and beach huts to urinate and defecate will be encouraged by alcohol
driven conduct.

D) Cultural hazards will result in terms of social hazards as detailed at 1. above.
Children and beach users will be subject to increased cigarette smoking and
recreational drug use. The health of the community will decline with long hours of
social drinking encouraged.

138



32

Local residents and beach users’ (largely families) ability to feel safe will be impacted due to
drunken behaviour.

Noise nuisance will be created and increase in terms of volume of traffic, parking and general
crowd noise, this will be at both the location and in surrounding residential areas where vehicle
parking takes place. Collection and delivery noise and pollution will also increase.

Public safety

Obijection on the following grounds: -

3.

4.

Crime recorded at 1 above will impact public safety.

The area is used by vulnerable groups who are highly susceptible to ASB to include,
children, the elderly and lone female dog walkers and fitness enthusiasts.

A significant increase in heathland fires has been experienced in the area. lllegal
encampments will be encouraged by the alcohol driven entertainment. The area is
outside of the town centre and not easily commutable. There will be a general and
financial reluctance to use public transport or accommodation. Encampments from
patrons who might be unable to drive due to alcohol consumption increases risk of fire
and danger to human life and property.

Public WC'’s are located immediately adjoining the kiosk. Alcohol driven behaviour
places at serious risk users of the WC faclility specifically children and lone females.

The increased risk of drink driving is significant due to location.

The roads surrounding the café and the carpark itself have been subjectto historic
accidents of a serious nature. The incident of a schoolgirl knocked over at the
crossing. She has sustained life changing injuries. The perpetrator was riding a
pushbike as | am certain will many who seek to drink will also. The infrastructure is
quite simply unable to cope with current visitor numbers.

The protection of children from harm

Objection on the following grounds: -

9.

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

18.

Social conditioning of children re alcohol consumption will be increased.

Physical injury from discarded alcohol containers and discarded unextinguished
cigarettes will increase.

Children will be subject to inappropriate alcohol driven language.
Children will be subject to inappropriate sexual language.
Children will be subjectto surrounding violent behaviour.
Vulnerability to sexual attack will be increased.

Vulnerability to obduction will increase.

Vulnerability to specific personal violence from drunken guardians or third parties will
increase.

Vulnerability to infection and disease may increase due to waste materials or the
hazards set out above.

The likelihood of injury to a child from drink driving will increase.

139



33

Comment on conditions offered.

1. SIA Door supervisors or private security will have minimal if any impactin such a
vast public area.

2. Arefusal register will have little if any impact. The volume and turnover of
patrons will make the process impossible. This is not a venue scene but an
outside kiosk.

3. CCTV and logs will be insufficient to influence given the volume of patrons and
the area. The beach is a public space and there is no ability to restrict drinking to
the prosed decked areas.

4. Container collection will be impossible in such a large public area. Once again it
will be impossible to police drinking away from suggested areas.

140



34

Dear Sarah, Jude, licensingteam, Andrew and other responsible authorities,

| am writingto objectto the licensing application made by Rockwaterto sell alcohol fromthe current
bucketand spade shop by the Branksome Chine entrance to the beach as part of theirstated
intention tore-purposethe shopintoan off-sales outletforalcohol consumption on the beach. |
objectonthe basisthatthe licence applied for would not uphold the 4licensing objectives and |
urge all relevant authorities toalso object. | regard Sarah Rogers’ ‘reassurance’ in correspondence
withresidents that none of the authorities- police, child protection, health and safety, environment
etc have as yet objected as anything but reassuring. Onthe contrary, | regard the lack of objections
as an indicationthat none of these authorities have done theirdue diligenceas yetand hope that
the following will assist. | shall list my objections as they relate to the 4 statutory licensing objectives.

1. The prevention of crime and disorder:

-Alicence encouraginglate night beach drinking (with free music provided by Rockwater’s
restaurant) will attract groups of youths justas was seenin Summer 2021 whenrival gangs of youths
fought on the road at Sandbanks having bought theiralcohol from Tesco Metro. It is highly likely that
there will be anincrease in anti-social behaviourand crime, fuelled by alcohol.

- The sale of alcohol right by a car park will most likely see anincrease in drinking and driving

2. Public safety:
-Branksome beach car park and the area by the beach shop which Rockwaterislookingto repurpose

isthe busiestentry pointtothe beach for pedestrians, amongthem many childrenand avery busy
thoroughfare with bikes and pedestrians passing alongthe promenade. It doesn’t fit with alcohol
purchases until midnight 7days a week andis an accident waiting to happen

-Road users usingthe car park andinebriated people buying theiralcohol fromthe ‘shacks’ are a
threatto publicsafety

-Thereisa very dangerous crossing with ablind bend by the Branksome Chine entry to the beach car
park. Encouraging an alcohol culture onthe beach cornerwill create an additional danger- public
safetyisat risk

- The shop where the licence applicationis being made is located exactly wherethe little trainto and
from Bournemouth makesitsturn. Thisis popular with children and families and alcohol sales right
there are a risk to child safety

-The proximity of the Chine and cliff heathland constitute a considerable addition to the existing fire
risk

- There are two publicbbgsright by where the queue foralcohol would be- adangerto publicsafety

3. The prevention of public nuisance:

-The extended licence and operating hours for off-sales of alcohol on the beach would create a
publicnuisanceinthatitwould encourage late night drinking on the beach. A family beach would
become a no-go areafor families

-Noise fromvisitors to the shop and returning to cars late at night would create a noise disturbance
for residents

4, The protection of children from harm:

-1f BCP council permits this licence they would be putting children at considerable risk. Branksome
beach has always been the low key, relaxed, family beach. This does not combine well with alcohol
sales. Children buyingice cream should not be forced to mix with inebriated party revellers.

-Please recall that during lockdown our beach had two sexual assaults of children. Fuelled by alcohol,
this kind of behaviourwill increase

141



35

Addendum: important context and precedent:

1

Rockwater claimsto be community focused, to be working with the community so thatthey
can create theirown brand (article in Sandbanks newsletter today - Rockwater PR). This
could not be further from the truth. The planning application foraretractable roof,
increased outside seating etcto accommodate a greater number of covers has already
attracted close to 200 objections from the community of local residents. The ‘strong
Community support’ advertised by Rockwater, it would appear with the council’s backing,
appears to be a fabrication. The Council and the Licensing committee should be wary of
supporting such untruths. It has not gone unnoticed that BCP council’s stated aim of
commercialising the seafront- published within the pastyear-ties in with what Rockwater
proposes and the community- your council tax payers- strongly opposes.

We have the precedent of Rockwater Hove and it would be negligent toignore the evidence
of publicnuisance there. Rockwater’s reassurance that ‘we are not a late night venue’ and
that we are notlookingtoincrease the operating hoursisanother untruth. Firstly, the
currentoperating hours are notthe same as the licensing hours applied for. In winter the
place has always closed at 5pm and in the summerat 1030pm- not 10am to midnight 7 days
a weekas perthe licence applied for. Rockwater has also publicly stated their aim of
developing Branksome Beach with the same operating modelas Rockwater Villagein Hove.
Hove is indeed alate night venue and despite claiming otherwisein their operating model
description, they aimto attract large parties of late night drinkers, including Hen and Stag
parties. Have the council and the responsible authorities still not read the hugely negative
presssurrounding Rockwaterin Hove? Are you aware of the publicnuisance created there
by late night drinkers, loud musicetc.

Ironically, beach hutleaseholders on Branksome beach are not permitted to occupy their
beach huts or entertaininthe eveningsin orderto retain the calm, family atmosphere of
Branksome beach and to not cause noise disturbance forlocal residents. How does this tally
with a license tosell alcohol onthe beach and a leaseholder- Rockwater- who is motivated
to encourage late night drinking for commercial reasons?

| read with interest the followinglicensing extension application made by The Cabinin
2018.https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?Committeeld=218&Meet
ingld=1645&DF=16%2F07%2F2018&Ver=2 | understand that Andrew Wemysswasin
attendance when this application was refused on the basis that the existing noise level with
an earlierlicence (4complaints by residents) was unacceptable. It should be noted that the
noise levelwas unacceptable despite the fact that the venue had 2 sets of entrance doors,
allwindows were closed and all speakers were pointinginward. If the noise levelwas
unacceptable underthese circumstancesitisinconceivable thatit would be acceptable with
aretractable roof and openterrace. How can an entertainment venue of thistype in close
proximity to private homes even be considered?

5. Contrary to what the council has claimed, thisis nota simple transfer of an existing licence from
one side of the restaurant to the other. While a licence to sell alcohol isin place forthe cafe
alongside the restaurant currently, the previous operatoronly sold beerand the opening hours were
considerably shorterthan the licence permitted. The restaurantitselfis only open until 5pmin the
winterand 10.30pm in the Summer. Thisisn’t Rockwater’s visionisit? Hence we are dealing with an
entirely new set of circumstances and the licence application should be viewed in this context.

| look forward to your comments on this matter.

142


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk%2FCeListDocuments.aspx%3FCommitteeId%3D218%26MeetingId%3D1645%26DF%3D16%252F07%252F2018%26Ver%3D2&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40bcpcouncil.gov.uk%7C730ddbc5656c4f24d34e08da180e8917%7Cc946331335e140e4944add798ec9e488%7C1%7C0%7C637848748868076100%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=eCoSBGiPhODQt9fAyft3ta%2B6nKXw83o8Uzzw%2B0%2F4EFA%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk%2FCeListDocuments.aspx%3FCommitteeId%3D218%26MeetingId%3D1645%26DF%3D16%252F07%252F2018%26Ver%3D2&data=04%7C01%7Clicensing%40bcpcouncil.gov.uk%7C730ddbc5656c4f24d34e08da180e8917%7Cc946331335e140e4944add798ec9e488%7C1%7C0%7C637848748868076100%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=eCoSBGiPhODQt9fAyft3ta%2B6nKXw83o8Uzzw%2B0%2F4EFA%3D&reserved=0

36

Dear All

Application reference 194927 Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk
Pinecliff Road

Poole

BH13 6LP

Reasons for Representation:

The prevention of crime and disorder:

| object on the following grounds:

The extended (compared to currently limited) hours of operation will fuel the well
documented problems experienced in the local areas including but not limited to:

Antisocial Behaviour

Late night racing (we can hear that taking place late in the evening and we have
called the police on numerous occasions)

Unlicensed parties and gatherings (again living so close to the beach we can hear
these into the night, imagine what will happen when there is abundant alcohol being
readily available every night)

Drunken and drug induced behaviour in public areas

llegal encampments (these are well documented - as a recent example refer to what
happened during lockdown)

Littering (again well documented)
Rape and sexual assault
Serious assault — stabbing

Drink driving

Criminal damage (we have personally experienced that during lockdown both at our
beach hut and our home)

Violent and disorderly behaviour.

The proposal to sell off premises alcohol would undoubtedly encourage increased
examples of the above with devastating consequences for those living nearby and alll
those enjoying the beach all year round.

The above is not what might happen, but what will happen in a magnified way.

The proposal to retain the license at the café kiosk until some future date at the
same time as granting this new license is totally unacceptable and would result in
increased drunken behaviour and crime.

143



37

The prevention of Public Nuisance
| object on the following grounds:

Disposal of bottles, cigarettes, drugs by patrons at the beach and in the chine will
have a detrimental impact on beach users, beach hut owners and residents as well
as local wildlife. Increased traffic, parking and noise levels will negatively impact the
whole community. The experienced and well documented behaviour of some
individuals using the beach and beach huts as ‘a public toilet’” will be multiplied as a
result of this proposal. The existing WCs owned and operated by the Council next
door to the kiosk are closed at night and even if they were kept open for users of this
off license (at significant cost to the tax payer!) would be unusable to children and
families who visit the beach in the morning.

Collection and delivery noise and pollution will also increase.
Public safety
| object on the following grounds:

The impact of all the above on children, elderly people, female dog walkers and
joggers would be monumental. Crime and fear of crime would unquestionably
transform this tranquil, family oriented residential area.

People intoxicated by alcohol would hang around while unable to drive with
increased risk of fire and danger to human life and property.

The increased risk of drink driving is significant due to the location.

The roads infrastructure is totally inadequate to support increased numbers and the
risk to life from accidents on the way in and out of the area is going to increase as a
result of this proposal.

The protection of children from harm
| object on the following grounds:

In addition to children being exposed to inappropriate behaviours fuelled by alcohol
consumption, there is a material risk of danger to children’s life from drink driving.

The conditions offered by the applicant will have no material impact on any of the
above.

Yours sincerely

144



38

Dear Sarah Rogers,

Thank you for your most helpful email of 31 March and the information you gave
about the above application.

You said | could email my objections, which is easier for me than filing in the form by
hand.

| own the flat at ..... Branksome Towers, BH13 6JU, which is close to the premises
the subject of this licence application.

My reasons for objection are:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

Branksome Towers’ property extends down to the promenade. We already suffer
from break-ins of our beach huts, trespassing, and illicit anti-social activity on our
land. The introduction of nearby off sales of alcohol, particularly into the night will
increase those criminal activities, as while the present licence at the café permits
evening off sales they were not done by the previous owner, who sold the café
business in January this year to the applicant, according to Companies House
records.

The applicant has been quite open in the press about how it hopes the area will
become even more popular, especially inthe evenings. The granting of an off sales
licence will increase the need for public conveniences then and throughout the day.
It is submitted that the present public facilities are totally inadequate for the increase
in use and as a consequence the illegal activity of people relieving themselves in
public areas and nearby private ones, such as our property, will become a very
serious problem.

The over consumption of alcohol leads to increased criminal activities including theft
to finance the purchase of more, fights, assaults and drug taking. As the
consumption would be off the applicant’'s premises, there would be no one to control
it.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance:

The above behaviour is a threat to our community’s safety, especially when we walk
along the promenade in the evening, when the area will become unsafe, particularly
for the elderly, women and children.

The premises are surrounded closely on two sides by blocks of flats with ones on the
third side slightly further away. Poole’s Local Plan’s policy PP23 states that
regarding the evening/night time economy centres a “developmentwill not, either
individually or cumulatively, harm the character of the area or residential amenity in
terms of noise, light and other emissions, or result in a harmful concentration of food
and drink uses.” The premises are not in one of those centres listed in the Plan and
so night time drinking outside should not be permitted anyway, and given the
proposal complies with none of the conditions that have to apply to even those
centres, it should be refused the licence, as it would be in breach of the Council’s

policy.

145



39

The aim of obtaining the licence is to increase the sale of alcohol and number of
visitors to both the applicant’'s premises at Branksome Beach, where the proposed
premises were used previously for just selling beach toys, ice creams and soft
drinks. At night we are already frequently kept awake by the noise of rowdy anti-
social behaviour on the beach, promenade and whenever there is a large function at
Branksome Dene. That situation will radically worsen if alcohol is made more easily
available and for longer hours. The police and Environmental Health already lack the
resources to control the present noise and anti-social activities, which means that if
approved the increase in those problems will multiply uncontrolled, to the suffering of
the hundreds of nearby residents.

The applicant states they are merely moving the location of permitted alcohol off
sales from the food and drinks’ kiosk, which is on the western side of the café, to the
former beach kiosk which is on the eastern side beyond the car park. That location is
in a totally different environment. As can be seen from the applicant’s site plan, the
former one had no residential properties near it and the mass of the main building
acted as a sound barrier. The new location is at the foot of the gardens of two large
residential blocks and a house, with at least 23 residences directly affected. The
noise from people congregating so close will be intolerable for the residents and a
clear Public Nuisance that Environmental Health will be unable to control, and the
police without the resource to disperse them day after day.

If the Licensing Authority is minded to grant consent, it is submitted that the
permitted hours should be the same as those actually practised by the original
kiosk’s previous owner, namely closing at 17.00 or 18.00 hours every day,
depending on the season.

See also the noise issues referred to below inthe comments on the Conditions
Offered.

Parking is already a serious problem in the area, with too few spaces available and
consequently illegal parking on the highway, verges, and private land. The increase
in visitors due to the attraction generated by the change of the applicant’s business
in this kiosk accommodation, and with the grant of this licence, will compound those
problems and the law breaking, with too few public resources available to prevent
them.

The proposed off sale of alcohol will generate vast quantities of glass and plastic
bottles, disposable cups and the like. The refuse collection points provided by the
council already frequently overflow and the applicant does not offer any way of
controlling beyond its own premises the disposal of the waste generated by it selling
alcohol for consumption off its premises. The increase in waste generated if the
licence is granted will be an unacceptable public nuisance, a threat to health and
safety, and consequently risk the area losing its blue flag status, which is a valuable
tourist attraction for the families who predominantly use the area.

146



40

Public Safety:

Previously the premises where any off sales were permitted, albeit of an insignificant
amount, were well away from the car park and the turning circle for the promenade’s
land train. If the licence is granted for the kiosk beside the public toilets, there will be
the significantly increased risk of people getting injured as they stand around
drinking alcohol or queuing to buy it.

This will be further compounded by impatient and frustrated drivers trying to find and
get in, or out, of the car parking spaces in the very confined car park right next to the
sales area, and those queuing on the main road to get in.

The Protection of Children from Harm:

It is explained below how the applicant is proposing unrealistic controls to ensure the
licensing laws are not broken. It is submitted that there is a serious risk that the
serving of alcohol to those under age cannot be prevented due to the arrangement of
the premises.

The over consumption of alcohol leads to an increase in criminal and anti-social
activities including assaults, drug taking and illegal activities in the adjacent public
conveniences, creating a risk to children in the area and those using the toilets.
Branksome Beach is a family area, totally unsuited to the operations proposed by the
applicant, which will introduce dangers to children.

The Conditions Offered by the Applicant:

The applicant has offered conditions that could be applied if consent were granted
for the licence. It has also presented a layout plan that shows the part of the
premises selling alcohol would comprise no more than a counter placed just inside
one of the three opening double doors it has on its frontage. Currently the area in
front of the building is indistinguishable from the public paved area between the
beach, car park and public toilets. While the applicant may introduce a planter
extending out from the front at his party wall with the toilets as illustrated, assuming
he is given permission to do so by the landlord and/or street authority, the whole
frontage to the building will remain an open unrestricted area. The area will have no
exit doors where SIA Door Supervisors could stand as proposed, nor can bottle bins
be provided at exit doors as there are none, nor any practical way staff can prevent
bottles and glasses being taken from the customers’ part of “the premises”, as
described, as they are part of the pavement, not “the premises”, which are edged red
on the Licensing Plan and accessed solely by staff and those connected to the
applicant’s business.

The area infront of the premises is just approximately 4.5m deep by 14.5m wide. It
is shared with 3 other counter offers — coffee, pizza, and fish. The area will be solid
with people all trying to get different items. There is no way staff will be able to
distinguish those seeking alcohol and stop them purchasing before itis too late to
realise they may be breaking the law.

With regard to noise, the offered conditions state there will be no noise generated on
“the premises”. That is misleading. As just mentioned, the “premises” are defined on

147



41

the applicant’s Licensing Plan and comprise solely the building itself and the plan
shows that no customers will enter it beyond the double doorways where the
counters are. All the noise resulting from the queue to buy alcohol and then its
consumption will be on the forecourt and the beach, promenade and pavements.

The applicant’s offer on this matter is misleading and of no value whatsoever. Even if
“the premises” were changed to read “the demise”, which includes the forecourt, it
would be a worthless offer, incapable of being fulfilled. The additional noise resulting
from the provision of alcohol in that location and the number of people it would
attract is uncontrollable and so consent should not be granted as there will be a
Public Nuisance caused that there is no way of reducing.

The conditions offered appear to be those for the on-site sale and consumption of
alcohol, not those where itis going to be taken away and consumed elsewhere.
They need radical revision and a resubmission if granting consent is even to be
contemplated.

Therefore the applicant cannot comply with several of the conditions it itself has
offered, and for that reason alone the licence should be refused, let alone for the
other reasons given above.

148



42

Dear Sir/ Madam

Premises details

Branksome Beach Resturaunt Kiosk
Pine cliff Road

Poole

BH136LP

Licensing application 194927

Reasons for representation
The prevention of crime and disorder

A Licience that's purpose is to encourage late night drinking outside in sync with the
Rockwater Entertainment venue will encourage groups of revellers to use this
outside location late into the early hours , drinking alcohol outside and in the face of
an existing family orientated location catering for children and young people .

There is no supporting infrastructure in this location for such a change in use , the
clubs and pubs and outside drinking areas are contained in non residential areas in
Bournemouth where security, CCTV and Police presence is maintained

All alcohol drinking in late night venues is synonymous with unruly behaviour and
crime therefore these ventures should be kept in close proximity where they can be
managed effectively without stretching existing resources, not expanding into
residential and entirely unsuitable locations such as Branksome Chine Beach

Public Safety

The location of the kiosk is next to the car park for Branksome Chine Beach which is
also a notoriously busy entrance to the beach with families and small children in the
majority , their safety is already concerning due to the continuous movement of cars
and the arrival or departure of the prom train to Bournemouth and cyclists that don't
dismount speeding by , alongside the ridiculous mix of two barbecue stations ,
adding hot food and fats into the equation , enabling late night drinking here outside
would make a dangerous mix to this already mis managed section of the

promenade

The prevention of Public nuisance

Drinking on this family beach , changing the character of the location attracting
already well known groups to become a no go area for families , late night
disturbances field by drinking alcohol outside with no supervision , rowdiness and
disturbance for residents

149



43

The protection of children from harm

This beach is a family beach offering the best care for children , this will all be
damaged by the change of use in the Kiosk, from buckets and spades and Ice
cream to bottles of vodka and inebriated neighbours on the beach

This is not about the relicensing of the kiosk but it's reuse , from supporting family
holidays to generating alcohol induced social problems on the door steps of a
residential area

| implore you not to grant this Licience

150



44

Dear Sarah,

| am writing regarding the above application reference 194927 Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk
Pinecliff Road, Poole. BH13 6LP to sell alcohol for private consumption at Branksome Beach

We are a family of 5 including 3 childrenwholive at ..... Lakeside Road, Branksome Park, BH13 6LR
and use the area of the beach daily throughout the yearfor numerous recreational activities,
enjoying the safe family friendly location atthe end of our road. We all objectto the sale of alcohol
fromthe kioskinthe carpark for a number of reasons:

1. The prevention of crime and disorder - This proposal to sell alcohol on the beach will actively
encourage crime and disorderin whatis a residential area. | am truly horrified atthe thought of the
safety of my family both at home just up the road and when using the beach location. Alcohol sales
on and nearthe the beach at sandbanks has seen violenceand antisocial behaviour, excessive
littering and aggression whichis wholly undesirable at Branksome Beach. Bournemouth Pierand the
Winter Gardens attract congregations and people hangingoutin the late hours which hasresultedin
knife crime, sexual assaultand theft - 1am sincerely fearfulthis willhappen at Branksome Beach
with youths, groups and all manner of visitors, who would normally go home soberat dusk, would
be encouraged to congregate on the beach and spill into the chine causing littering, beach hut
vandalism, carvandalism, glass on the beach, petty theft, arson, knife crime and assaultson the
beachand intothe chine. | run alongthe length of the seafrontregularly on an evening throughout
the year and as a female running aloneand through personal experience | have been forced to
change my route and plans as a result of the gatherings alongthe seafrontin Bournemouth and
Boscombe with groups acting intimidatingly while drinking alcohol, blocking the promenade and
smoking cannabis. Fortunately itis different at our part of the beach, | feel safe and confident inthe
areal livein enjoyingthe totally different atmosphere of Branksome Beach. Thisisa quiet
residential area with families on the beach during the day and a quiet peacefullocationonan
evening. Ingeneral we have minimaltrouble and comparatively little crime.

2. Publicsafety - thislocationis busy all year round from dawn to dusk, especiallyin the summer -
Car park traffic, the land train, young families and children and alcohol do not mix. Alcohol sales and
swimmingare nota sensible combination, RNLI lifeguard coverfinishes at 6pmin winter. Sales of
alcoholinglass bottlesis a publicsafety hazard. | would not allow my children to continue to
frequentthislocation with the same freedom of alcohol sales were in place |. Such a prominent
location and duration, as it’s less safe to cross the road, swimin the sea, play on the beach given the
increased alcohol consumption and change of clientele that will be encouraged to the area.

3. The prevention of publicnuisance -This proposal will cause noiseand unsociable behaviour as
demonstrated at sandbanks when young people purchase alcohol from tesco and hang out by the
beach. This will spill into the chine. Thisis aresidential area not Bournemouth Pier. On an eveningit
isa quietand peaceful safe location. Alcohol sales on the beach until late will destroy this. This
proposal would attract a totally different clientele to the location and change the visiting
demographic.

4. The Protection of children from harm - | have 3 children who range from 9-15 years old and they
go downto the beach with us as a family, alone to exerciseand train (they are members of

Branksome Chine Surf life saving club) as well as meet friends, swim and play in this safe and family
friendly location. Thisisa family beach location, thisis not a stag/hen/party/drinking location. | will
not feel comfortable toletthem dothis unsupervised if there are alcohol sales forthe beach. | fear

151



45

that this development would make ourlocation become a more dangerous location, more like the
Wintergardens, meaning | would notlet my children walk through the chine orto the beach
unsupervised, | would not walk through the chine on my own.

Historically this location has arestaurant to service the tourism fromthe local hotelsand guest
housesthatusedto bein the area, however, there are no hotels or guesthouses nearby now to
create the clientele foran upmarket holiday resort restaurant and complex, it has become a
residentialareawith locals and family groups of tourists who travel in for the day. Alcohol sales at
the beach have only ever been minimal with no late opening, with extended hours and more
prominent position onto a carpark, it will totally change the location for the worse diminishing our
freedom and comfortin our ownvillage and home, you are proposingto totally change the
residential environment that we live in and destroy the family tourist attraction of Branksome
Beach.

152



46

Dear Licensing Team

RE: Appn Ref 194927

Please note that | wish to object to the above current licensing application on the
following grounds:

1. The sale of alcohol is already provided for by the Branksome Beach cafe and
there is no case for changing this facility

2. The existing building abuts and is overlooked by a residential frontage whose
amenity will be harmed by the development of an off-licence and its associated
activity

3. The re branding of the existing beach shop as an alcoholic “kiosk” will damage the
character and appearance of this part of the Branksome Beach area.

For the above reasons we urge the council to refuse the application.

Regards

153



47

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.
(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant.)

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

I am afraid this will not help the current situation in respect of Disorder and Crime
with @ number of Beach Huts broken into this winter around Branksome Chine and the persons
responsible have not been found

The Prevention of Public Nuisance:

Public Safety:

with the availabilities of bikes and scooters for hire just along from this venue
you are just asking for problems.

The Protection of Children from Harm:

Your own experance over many years show that drink and young people just do not mix withq
Problems and a lot of these people will be driving back home after a day drinking

ut

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

| declare that the information I have provided is true and correct.

154



48

We are writing to object to this application for a premises licence.

The application proposes that alcohol will be sold for consumption off the premises 7
days a week between 10am and 11pm. Where alcohol is involved, outside, there is a
strong probability of inappropriate behaviour resulting in nuisance to the public users
of the promenade, the beach and our beach chalets located just yards from the
plaza.

Litter, cans, cartons etc are already a problem from beach assemblies and bbq'’s; the
impact on the environment will be exacerbated by this proposal. The consumption of
alcohol in the open will inevitably lead to antisocial behaviour, crime and disorder,
and there is no beach patrol security presence in the evenings.

Branksome Beach Restaurant is available for those wishing to enjoy a drink without
disturbing others.

BCP has gone to considerable effort and expense in regenerating the Branksome
Chine and Beach front with new planting and the formation of the plaza, described in
the plans as the gateway to Poole’s beaches. This proposal will have serious
environmental and safety repercussions and be a nuisance to the public users of this
special locality.

We urge the Licensing Authority to refuse this application.

155



49

LI e nnvniauvnl as PpUSSIIE)

Application Ref. 19 a9

Name of Premises: B oome Bondn Kostauoa b Kioalc

ddress of Premises: R ook sateX Suadbankst Bronkomg Lid
Punechilt RIS
o a2 LLP.

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.

(Please note you are not required to complete all the boxes unless you feel it is relevant.)
The Prevention of Crime and Diso_rder:

The sale o8 clcob fvova a Kios\ on Yoods Srany”
Wl @encoulage SuaXen 4 \oaed bQ\f\a.o'tDQF - o prulotie
open ¥hace us by a st o duiddren

The Prevention of Public Nuisance: : ;

ThE gedo g aleand  fof “\alkee away pesposas’ sl
wentably  result w wae b, 28+ boten 1l |
could alse e used wn a'tso-raq..—ts_ s W il alec
roulx b ostheen glose on R prévesade + o e saud

Public Safety: ;
’ 'Mcébm 5> net aqeed M wikth g f\ag w\ao&\mﬁ
el

o Svaliemidne T @M_(_D‘\—L—W ot aleg

un\mas ae_v\%' (ciaA-io ‘gmg.a\is haa ke hie:vv\s of
The Protection of Children from Harm: = 5
e Beada s a prace Jof anidduen d adulks, o
omen - it Sneudd not be a place fev waseghrcYod +

tmnstonestilad 3W\MLV\(3' S R anse adva Leasye

[MQN\QAYG'&E% 8L Qe M WL o
do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

haces@oqy 2adn ‘o Rrdlen

YO QUWBE \o

| declare that the information | have provided is true and cormrect.

156



50

| am writing to object to the proposed application to supply alcohol from 10am
through to 11pm.

| feel this would be very detrimental to Branksome beach, which is a family beach.
The idea of people sitting around drinking on the proposed decking and the beach all
day with the usual problems associated with the consumption of alcohol sends a
very negative message to the children who currently enjoy this beach.

This, along with the other proposals for the restaurant will change this beach forever.
Please let’'s keep it as the great family beach that it is.

157



51

Premises Details (Please give as much information as possible)

Application Ref: \ =~
Name of Premises: qg;tzs\\c_w (e ecd CD\'\OQ_

Address of Premises: \(\C A\ \% EOOC—\ \)\\fss(\BO-ﬂ M,
Bl (P

Reasons for Representation. Please, give information under the relevant Licensing
Objective.

(Please note you are not required to complete ail the boxes unless you feel it is relevant. )

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

Ricke R ardi-social bdransianss s\,d;\ as =24

= Ges~ =ee~ o~ M(\ew

(ECU‘)‘W“\CS oAce Lo okl e ‘weach:

The Prevention of Public Nunsance

Dtum\:er\ &\eoc \ae&\o\u\oos can \BO- C’\

cX\\\c\ %‘;\32\\
c—é m ant ro \occx\ =

Pu\iccf;fgy == Q=X & oeC—CJ\C\.xer\\% os Qecp\e

haure o agoes e hoemus

The Protection of Children from Harm:
= A o
PRI bl b b e

| do not wish my details to be include in the Public Documents for the following reasons:

| declare that the ipformation | have provided is true and correct.

158



52

May | lodge my objection to the licensing of premises from 10am to 11pm.

| totally understand the Council wanting to capitalise on the sea front but | have huge
reservations about this alcohol ouitlet.

| come from two standpoints.
1. The likely impact to beach users from drunkenness and noise. | can't see how the area will

be peaceful.

2. The impact on the environment. Will the setting be using sustainable products eg
returnable and reusable 'glasses’. What about all the cigarette butts that always appear at
licensed premises.

This project seems to be the absolute opposite of what is being promoted at the new hub at
Durley Chine.

How will the ensuing noise, rubbish and antisocial behaviour be managed effectively?

159



53

Dear Sarah
Thank you for your time on these applications.

| do share the concerns relating to potential ASB caused by the availably of alcohol
(to purchase) until 11pm. Accordingly, | will attend the hearing scheduled for 27t
April to represent neighbouring residents, some of whom have asked me to
specifically speak on their behalf.

Kind regards

Cllr May Haines
Canford Cliffs Ward

160



54

Good afternoon,

>

> | would like to raise an objection to the licence application at Branksome Beach kiosk. | am
concernedthatthisis notin keeping with this family orientated beach and will lead toloud and
unruly, possibly drunken, behaviour.

> | am also concerned about the amount of litterand broken glass which will result.

>

> | am a nearby resident who uses this beach on a daily basis with my family and dog. | feelthatthe
cleanliness and peacefulatmosphere of Branksome will be threatened by this development.

>

161



55

Dear Sirs

| formally objecttothisapplication.lamalocal residentand thisis a much visited and much loved
location.

Introducing off licence sales will encourage more drinking of alcohol and a probable increase in anti
social behaviour.

| doubtwhetherthereisanylocal demand forthis facility : so who exactly would it benefit?

162



Page Name

1 I
2 I

3 Anne Wintle

4 Martyn and Sally McCarthy

5 Linda Reveley

6 Mr Graham Upton

7 Mr and Mrs C Parkhurst

8 Meryl Ponsford

9 Barbara Bamford

10 Sheila Redrupp

11 Robert Longmire

12 Martin Ursell

13 Michael Kelly

14 Christine Ursell

15 Henry South

16 Liz Long

17 I

18 Mr Alan D Evans

19 I

20 Mr Stanley Peters

21 Sandra Best

22 Ann Trevett

23 1IN

24 Bob Lister, Chairman Poole Beach Hut Assoc
25 Pauline Lister

26 Mary Wilson

27 1IN

28 Mr D T and Mrs P L Wilkinson
29 Mr J Russell

30 Mr P and Mrs J Lawrence

31-33 Ms Glynn-Baker
34 -35 Fiona Bengtsson
36-37 Tea Colaianni
38-41 Mr Paul Bennett
42 - 43  Milan Mach
44 - 45 Helen Cullen
46 Martin and Jan Shaw
47 Mr C M Stokes
48 Richard and Daphne Larner
49 Mrs G Ridout
50 Mark Clough
51 Matilda Carstensen

52 Elizabeth Manetta
53 Councillor May Haines

54 Christine Dracup

55 Terrence Scanlan

163


mailto:campbellsimon@btopenworld.com
mailto:d.ceaton@btinternet.com
mailto:annewintle@hotmail.co.uk
mailto:martyn.gmccarthy@btinternet.com
mailto:proflinda@hotmail.co.uk
mailto:graham.upton2@btopenworld.com
mailto:parkhurst484@gmail.com
mailto:Meryl@Kestrelmedical.co.uk
mailto:barbara@attache.co.uk
mailto:sheila.redrupp@me.com
mailto:2rl@live.com
mailto:mjursell@yahoo.co.uk
mailto:michaeljkelly1@outlook.com
mailto:cursell@yahoo.com
mailto:henry.south@btinternet.com
mailto:lizles141@yahoo.com
mailto:last.r@btinternet.com
mailto:alanevanshome@hotmail.com
mailto:jcoy7834@gmail.com
mailto:stanley.peters@btinternet.com
mailto:sndr.bst@gmail.com
mailto:anntrevett24@btinternet.com
mailto:rogersquire@gmail.com
mailto:bob@sunwiser.co.uk
mailto:pauline@sunwiser.co.uk
mailto:wilsonem1958@gmail.com
mailto:rjbosborne@gmail.com
mailto:dnpwilkinson@hotmail.co.uk
mailto:myvod3011@gmail.com
mailto:PL33@hotmail.co.uk
mailto:cherylb@icloud.com
mailto:f.bengtsson@btinternet.com
mailto:tea.colaianni@googlemail.com
mailto:paul.bennett2@outlook.com
mailto:mrm19@mac.com
mailto:cullen32@btinternet.com
mailto:jmartinshaw@btopenworld.com
mailto:colinm@dsl.pipex.com
mailto:richardjlarner@gmail.com
mailto:goridout@gmail.com
mailto:mclough285@gmail.com
mailto:venter.matilda@gmail.com
mailto:lizzie.manetta@yahoo.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

164



	Agenda
	4 Protocol for Public Speaking at Virtual Meetings
	LICENSING COMMITTEE AND SUB COMMITTEE - PROTOCOL FOR PUBLIC REPRESENTATION AT VIRTUAL MEETINGS
	1. Introduction
	1.1. The existing protocol for public speaking has been adapted to apply in respect of virtual hearings under the Licensing Act 2003, the Gambling Act 2005, and Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by the ...
	1.2. This includes applications relating to the licensing of alcohol, regulated entertainment, late night refreshment, gambling, and sex establishments, Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles, which are the responsibility of the Licensing Committe...

	2. General points
	 The hearing may be adjourned at any time at the discretion of the Members
	 Members may amend the procedure at any time if they consider it to be in the public interest or in the interest of a fair hearing
	 The Sub Committee may decide to conduct all or part of a hearing in non public session where it considers the public interest in doing so, outweighs the public interest in the hearing.
	 The Chair may exclude any person from a hearing for being disruptive.
	 Meetings of the Licensing Committee in public session are recorded by the Council for live and subsequent broadcast on its website.
	 The hearing will take the form of a discussion.
	 Only persons (or their representatives) who have made an application, are subject to an application or have submitted a written representation to the Licensing Authority under the relevant Act are permitted to speak at the hearing.
	 Any further information to support an application or a representation must be submitted at least 5 working days prior to the Hearing. Any submissions submitted less than 24 hours before the hearing must be agreed by all parties at the Hearing, befor...
	 If a party has informed the Authority that they do not intend to participate, or be represented at the hearing, or has failed to advise whether they intend to participate or not, the hearing may proceed in their absence
	2.2. For other matters in Part 3(A)-3 of the Council’s Constitution which are the responsibility of the Licensing Committee, the procedures set out in Part 4D of the Council’s Constitution in relation to public questions, statements and petitions shal...
	2.3. This includes such matters as making recommendations on relevant policies, approving the level of fees charged by the Council, and making decisions on tariffs charged by the Public Carriage Trade.
	2.4. The Council’s Constitution can be accessed using the following link: https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
	2.5. For further information please contact democraticservices@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

	Proposed procedure and order of speaking for virtual hearings
	 The Licensing Officer/Other Council Officer presents report
	 Applicant will make their Application
	 Questions of the Applicant by all parties, Members of the Committee/Sub-Committee to go first
	 Responsible Authorities and Other Persons will make their representations.
	 Questions of the Responsible Authorities and Other Persons. Members of the Committee/Sub-Committee to go first.
	 All parties will be given an opportunity to sum up (with the party who spoke last to go first). The hearing will then conclude.
	 Sub-Committee will deliberate in private with Legal Adviser and Clerk present. (Councillors new to Licensing may observe but will not take part in the decision making).
	 Notification of the Sub Committee’s decision will be given within the period of five working days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held in accordance with the regulations. The notification of decision will include info...
	 The Legal Adviser will advise parties of any right of appeal as appropriate at the conclusion of the hearing.



	5 High Tide Festival, Bournemouth Beach
	Appendix 1 - Copy Application and Plan
	M194542 App 1_Redacted
	M194542 App 1a
	C - SITE WORKS (PLANS) [Sheet Title]
	1/C - SITE WORKS (PLANS)-2
	10/C - SITE WORKS (PLANS)-2



	Appendix 2 - Representations
	M194542 Fire rep
	M194542 App 2

	Appendix 3 - EMP v6

	6 Branksome Beach Restaurant Kiosk
	Appendix 1 - Copy Application
	M194927 App 1a
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	M194927 App 1_Redacted

	Appendix 2 - Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 3 - Branksome Beach Restaurant Copy Premises Licence
	Appendix 4 - Representation from Dorset Police
	Appendix 5 - Representations
	Appendix 5a - Index of Reps for Members Only




